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2]

RIN 2130-ZA00

Revised Proposal for Revisions to the
Schedules of Civil Penalties for a
Violation of a Federal Railroad Safety
Law or Federal Railroad Administration
Safety Regulation or Order

AGENCY: Federal Railroad
Administration (FRA), Department of
Transportation (DOT).

ACTION: Revised proposal for revisions
to schedules of civil penalties, with
request for comments.

SUMMARY: FRA is issuing for comment a
revised proposal (New Proposal) that, if
adopted, would amend, line-by-line,
FRA'’s schedules of civil penalties
(“Schedules”) issued as appendices to
FRA'’s rail safety regulations, as well as
other guidance, in order to reflect more
accurately the degree of safety risk
associated with a violation of each
regulatory requirement and to ensure
that the civil monetary penalty amounts
are consistent across all FRA safety
regulations. The New Proposal
represents a revision of FRA’s December
2006 proposal to amend the Schedules
for the same purposes (December 2006
Proposal or Initial Proposal).

DATES: Written comments must be
received by October 21, 2010.
Comments received after that date will
be considered to the extent possible
without incurring additional delay or
expense.

ADDRESSES: Comments: Comments
related to this Docket No. FRA 2006—
25274, Notice No. 2, may be submitted
by any of the following methods:

e Fax:202—-493-2251.

e Mail: U.S. Department of
Transportation, Docket Operations,
M-30, West Building Ground Floor,
Room W12-140, 1200 New Jersey
Avenue, SE., Washington, DC 20590.

e Hand Delivery: U.S. Department of
Transportation, Docket Operations,
M-30, West Building Ground Floor,
Room W12-140, 1200 New Jersey
Avenue, SE., Washington, DC 20590,
between 9 a.m. and 5 p.m. Monday
through Friday, except Federal holidays.

e Federal eRulemaking Portal: Go to
http://www.regulations.gov. Follow the

online instructions for submitting
comments.

Instructions: All submissions must
include the agency name and docket
number or Regulatory Identification
Number (RIN) for this rulemaking. Note
that all comments received will be
posted without change to http://
www.regulations.gov including any
personal information provided.

Docket: For access to the docket to
read background documents or
comments received go to http://
www.regulations.gov at any time or to
U.S. Department of Transportation,
Docket Operations, M—30, West
Building Ground Floor, Room W12-140,
1200 New Jersey Avenue, SE.,
Washington, DC, between 9 a.m. and
5 p.m., Monday through Friday, except
Federal holidays.

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT:
Edward Pritchard, Director, Office of
Safety Assurance and Compliance,
Office of Railroad Safety, FRA, 1200
New Jersey Avenue, SE., Washington,
DC 20590 (telephone 202-493-6247),
edward.pritchard @dot.gov; or Brian
Roberts, Trial Attorney, Office of the
Chief Counsel, FRA, 1200 New Jersey
Avenue, SE., Mail Stop 10, Washington,
DC 20590 (telephone 202—493-6052),
brian.roberts@dot.gov.
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I. General Background

FRA last published comprehensive,
line-by-line final revisions to the
Schedules of its safety regulations on
December 29, 1988. 53 FR 52918. The
revisions reflected the higher maximum
penalty amounts made available by the
enactment of the Rail Safety
Improvement Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100—
342). With the exception of the penalties
relating to the hours of service laws (49
U.S.C. chapter 211), the Rail Safety
Improvement Act of 1988 raised the
maximum penalty for any ordinary
violation from $2,500 to $10,000 (“the
ordinary maximum”) and to $20,000 for
a grossly negligent violation or a pattern
of repeated violations that has created
an imminent hazard of death or injury
or caused death or injury (“the
aggravated maximum”). Therefore, FRA
published amendments to the Schedules
in order to “give effect to the full range
of civil penalties * * * permitted to be
assessed for violation of specific
regulations.” 53 FR 52918. These
amendments revised not only the
maximum civil penalty amount for any
violation, but also the individual line-
item penalties for specific sections or
subsections of the regulations.

The Rail Safety Enforcement and
Review Act (“RSERA”) (Pub. L. 102—
365), which was enacted September 3,
1992, increased the maximum penalty
for a violation of the hours of service
laws, from $1,000 to $10,000 and in
some cases to $20,000, making these
penalty amounts uniform with those of
FRA’s other regulatory provisions.
RSERA also increased the minimum
penalty from $250 to $500 for all of
FRA’s regulatory provisions.

Since the publication of the
Schedules in 1988, FRA has
periodically adjusted its minimum and
its ordinary or aggravated maximum
penalty to conform to the mandates of
the Federal Civil Penalties Inflation
Adjustment Act of 1990. 28 U.S.C. 2461
note, as amended (“Inflation Act”). The
Inflation Act requires that an agency
adjust by regulation each maximum
penalty, or range of minimum and
maximum penalties, within that
agency’s jurisdiction periodically to
reflect inflation. In the Inflation Act,
Congress found a way to counter the
effect that inflation has had on the
penalties by having the agencies
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charged with enforcement responsibility
administratively adjust the penalties.
Currently FRA’s minimum penalty is
$650, the ordinary maximum is $25,000
and the aggravated maximum is
$100,000 (for when a “grossly negligent
violation or pattern of repeated
violations has caused an imminent
hazard or death or injury to individuals,
or has caused death or injury”).

The Inflation Act requires only that
the minimum, the ordinary maximum,
and the aggravated maximum civil
penalty for a violation be adjusted, not
that the guideline penalty amounts for
a specific type of violation (e.g., a
section of a particular regulation) be
adjusted. As a result, FRA has not
adjusted the line-item guideline
penalties found in the Schedules in
conjunction with its adjustments of the
minimum, maximum and aggravated
maximum civil penalties. FRA’s
practice has been to issue Schedules
assigning to each section or subsection
of the regulations specific dollar

amounts for initial penalty assessments.
These Schedules (and all line-item
penalty amounts found within them) are
statements of agency policy that specify
the penalty that FRA will ordinarily
assess for the violation of a particular
section or subsection of a safety
regulation, and are published to inform
members of the regulated community of
the amount that they are likely to be
assessed for a given violation within the
range of $650 to $25,000. The Schedules
are “meant to provide guidance as to
FRA'’s policy in predictable situations,
not to bind FRA from using the full
range of penalty authority where
extraordinary circumstances warrant.”
49 CFR part 209, appendix A. Thus,
regardless of the amounts shown in the
Schedules, FRA continues to reserve the
right to assess, within the range
established by the rail safety statutes (49
U.S.C. chapter 213) or by regulation
pursuant to the Inflation Act, an amount
other than that listed in the Schedules
based on the circumstances of the

alleged violation. 73 FR 79698, Dec. 30,
2008.

II. Proceedings to Date, Provision of
Opportunity for Comment, and
Comparison of Initial and New
Proposals

A. Initial Proposal

FRA published 25 proposed
Schedules with a request for comments
on December 5, 2006, which first
presented the agency’s intention of once
again comprehensively revising the civil
penalty amounts. 71 FR 70590. In this
Initial Proposal, FRA explained its
approach to reevaluating the Schedules
and explained the severity scale that
was developed for setting line-item
penalty amounts in the Schedules. The
severity scale’s penalty amounts were
assessed within the statutory range for
civil penalties at that time, which was
from the minimum of $550 to the
ordinary maximum of $11,000, as
follows:

Severity level (explained in the Initial Proposal and below) \si)éldalﬂg?; Willful violations

LBV A R R h R eh Rt ea e e Rt R e Rt eRe Rt eR e e n e Re e n e Rt e n et nenne s $8,500 $11,000
6,500 9,000

5,000 7,500

3,000 4,500

1,500 2,500

B. Subsequent Changes in the Minimum
and Ordinary Maximum Civil Penalties

Subsequently, in 2007, pursuant to
the requirements of the Inflation Act,
FRA recalculated the ordinary
maximum penalty and raised it from
$11,000 to $16,000. 71 FR 51194, Sept.
6, 2007. Then, on October 16, 2008, the
Rail Safety Improvement Act of 2008
(Pub. L. 110-432, Div. A) (“RSIA”) was
enacted; Section 302 of the RSIA
increased the ordinary and aggravated
maximum penalty amounts to $25,000
and $100,000, respectively. In a final
rule published on December 30, 2008,
FRA adjusted its minimum penalty from
$550 to $650 pursuant to Inflation Act
requirements. 73 FR 79698. In that rule
FRA also evaluated whether it needed to
increase the ordinary and aggravated
maximum penalties pursuant to the
Inflation Act; however, the enactment of
the RSIA statutorily changed the
ordinary and aggravated maximum
penalties to $25,000 and $100,000,
respectively, and therefore rendered any
inflationary adjustments to either figure
unnecessary. Instead, FRA adopted
$25,000 as the ordinary maximum and
$100,000 as the aggravated maximum
required by the RSIA. (See also
correcting amendment to the Schedule

for 49 CFR part 232. 74 FR 15387, April
6, 2009.)

C. Provision of Opportunity for
Comment, With Comparison of the
Initial and New Proposals

Given the large statutorily mandated
increase in the ordinary maximum civil
penalty from $11,000 to $25,000 after
publication of the Initial Proposal, FRA
is offering the public an opportunity to
review and comment on the new higher
civil penalty amounts assessed for
violations on each severity scale level in
the New Proposal. In the New

1For example, the severity scale in this New
Proposal has five levels like the severity scale
proposed in the Initial Proposal. However, the
severity scale in the New Proposal differs from the
severity scale in the Initial Proposal in several
ways. First, FRA has adding the word “materially”
to the description of what constitutes a Level E
violation in the New Proposal. Therefore, Level E
violations in the New Proposal are violations that
do not materially increase the likelihood that a rail
equipment accident/incident or other accident/
incident will occur. This is a clarification from the
previous definition for Level E violations in the
Initial Proposal where Level E violations were
defined as violations that did not increase the
likelihood that a rail equipment accident/incident
or other accident/incident would occur. This
definition did not make sense because failure to
follow any FRA safety regulation would have some
direct or indirect impact on railroad safety and

Proposal, FRA is issuing another set of
proposed Schedules and seeking
comments from the general public.
Comments on the new proposed
Schedules will be useful to the agency’s
decision making process.

FRA has also slightly modified the
severity scale in the New Proposal from
the severity scale in the Initial Proposal.
In the New Proposal, FRA has used a
targeted enforcement approach for
establishing the civil penalties for
ordinary (non-willful) violations of
railroad safety regulations. As part of
the targeted enforcement approach,

thereby increase, even infinitesimally, the
likelihood of an accident or incident. As a result,
the word “materially” was added to the criteria for

a Level E violation in the severity scale in this New
Proposal. Second, FRA has provided more
transparency and referenced the regulatory
language found in 49 CFR 225.19(d) to explain what
FRA means when it says “Other accident/incident”
in Levels A-D in the severity scale in the New
Proposal. Third, FRA has clarified in the New
Proposal that civil monetary penalties associated
with violations of FRA Orders or railroad safety
statutes will be assessed according to severity scale
criteria. Finally, as stated below, FRA has modified
its approach for establishing civil penalties in the
severity scale in this New Proposal. FRA is taking

a graduated approach to assessing civil penalties for
ordinary (non-willful) violations while increasing
the civil penalty amounts in steady increments for
willful violations.
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ordinary violations occurring at the
middle and lower levels of the severity
scale are assessed smaller civil penalties
in relation to the ordinary maximum
while the highest penalty amounts are
assessed for ordinary Level A violations
where serious injuries, deaths, or other
railroad accidents or incidents are most
likely to occur. FRA did not take a
targeted enforcement approach for
establishing the civil penalty amounts
for willful violations in the New
Proposal. Instead, the civil penalty
amounts for willful violations increase
up the severity scale in steady dollar
amounts, not in graduated percentage
increases like the civil penalties for
ordinary violations.

Higher penalty amounts for violations
of Federal railroad safety laws and
regulations are necessary because many
of FRA’s civil penalties have not been
changed in real terms for many years.
As a result, inflation has somewhat
eroded the deterrent effects of most of
FRA'’s civil penalties because the
amounts have not been increased to
account for the effects of inflation.
While many of the penalty amounts in
the New Proposal would represent large
increases in penalty amounts even after
adjusting for inflation, some penalty
amounts for violations would remain
unchanged (e.g., 49 CFR 219.205(b),
222.49(b), 229.71, and 239.301(c)(1)) if
adopted by FRA because of the uniform
rating of FRA’s existing penalties on the
severity scale. The new penalty amounts
in this New Proposal will maintain the
deterrent effects of FRA’s rail safety
penalties, aiding the success of FRA’s
mission to make the United States rail
system safer.

FRA has also reexamined how it had
ranked individual rail safety violations
on the severity scale in the Initial
Proposal. Upon second review of the
severity scale rankings, FRA is
proposing to move certain regulatory
provisions to higher or lower levels on
the severity scale in order to refine the
agency’s application of the severity
scale to the various violations. For
example, FRA is proposing to raise the
severity scale ranking of 49 CFR 219.3
(“Application: Railroad does not have
required program”), in this New
Proposal from a “C” level penalty to a
“B” level penalty. This change is
necessary because the failure of a
railroad covered by 49 CFR part 219 to
have an alcohol and drug testing
program is more likely than not to cause
a rail equipment accident/incident or
other accident/incident involving death,
injury, or occupational illness rather
than just substantially increase the
likelihood that one of these events could
occur. Conversely, in this New Proposal,

FRA would lower the severity scale
ranking of 49 CFR 225.35 (“Access to
records and reports”), from an “A” level
penalty to a “D” level penalty. This
proposed change in severity scale level
reflects FRA’s judgment that denying its
inspectors access to records and reports
required by 49 CFR part 225 is not
extremely likely to lead to a railroad
accident/incident or other accident/
injury including death, injury, or
occupational illness, but could slightly
increase the likelihood of one of the
above mentioned occurrences if FRA is
not provided access to accident
reporting records and reports. FRA
expects that these proposed changes to
the severity scale rankings of some of its
violations in the Initial Proposal better
refine the agency’s application of the
Severity Scale to the various violations.

In addition, FRA is proposing minor
changes to its Schedules in this New
Proposal to correct errors and omissions
and to reflect more accurately FRA’s
current enforcement practices. Such
errors include obvious spelling or
typographical errors that were caught
during the review process. Omissions
corrected include line-item penalties for
any existing section or subsection that
had been inadvertently omitted from an
existing Schedule, such as 49 CFR
213.110. Other proposed minor
revisions to the Schedules include, but
are not limited to, adding or deleting a
suggested penalty for a violation (e.g.,
49 CFR 213.109(c), 214.343(a)(2),
220.38, and 240.201(b)), rewording a
line-item description for a violation
(e.g., 49 CFR 219.23(f) and 233.9),
renumbering violation subsections (e.g.,
49 CFR 214.343(b)(1), 236.587,
236.905(d), and 236.913(j)), and adding
or revising footnotes to the Schedules
(e.g., 49 CFR parts 214, 232, and 239).
For example, FRA is proposing to add
a footnote 3 to the Schedule for 49 CFR
part 214 to clarify that FRA will consult
the suggested penalty amounts under 49
CFR 214.343 (“Training and
qualification, general:”) when assessing
penalties for the training violations in
49 CFR 214.345 through 214.355, as the
suggested penalty amounts for these
sections had been left blank in previous
versions of part 214’s penalty schedule.
FRA is hopeful these proposed minor
changes updating its Schedules would
provide a more accurate picture to the
regulated community of FRA’s actual
enforcement practices.

New suggested penalty amounts have
also been proposed for violations of
subparts that had not been mentioned in
the existing penalty schedules: 49 CFR
part 218, subpart E (“Protection of
Occupied Camp Cars”); 49 CFR part 228,
subpart D (“Electronic Recordkeeping”);

49 CFR part 232, subpart G
(“Electronically Controlled Pneumatic
(ECP) Braking Systems”); and 49 CFR
part 236, subpart I (“Positive Train
Control Systems”) are also included.
FRA is also suggesting new penalty
amounts for 49 CFR part 227
(“Occupational Noise Exposure”) which
was not ranked in the severity scale in
the Initial Proposal because the final
rule creating part 227 was published on
October 27, 2006, but not effective until
February 26, 2007. 71 FR 63066. In
addition, FRA will also be accepting
comments on the new penalties in 49
CFR part 237 that were published in a
bridge safety standards final rule on July
15, 2010 and will become effective on
September 13, 2010. 75 FR 41282.
Further, FRA is proposing to add
language to 49 CFR part 228, appendix
A, to state its proposed guideline
penalty amounts for both non-willful
and willful violations of the hours of
service laws (49 U.S.C. chapter 211). In
addition, this New Proposal would also
add or change language in the portion
of 49 CFR part 209, appendix A, entitled
“Penalty Schedules: Assessment of
Maximum Penalties,” to reflect the new
minimum, ordinary maximum, and
aggravated maximum civil penalties of
$650, $25,000, and $100,000
respectively. Finally, FRA is also
proposing to add the language “or
orders” in two places within this portion
of part 209, appendix A to update the
language to reflect FRA’s already
existing policy of establishing civil
penalty schedules and recommended
civil penalty amounts applicable to
violations of various orders issued by
FRA (such as emergency orders under
49 U.S.C. 20104) when necessary to
advance the agency’s safety mission.

III. FRA’s New Proposed Approach to
Reevaluating the Schedules of Civil
Penalties

The Federal Railroad Administrator is
authorized as the delegate of the
Secretary of Transportation to enforce
the Federal railroad safety statutes (49
U.S.C. chapters 201-213) regulations,
and orders, including the statutory civil
penalty provisions at 49 U.S.C. chapter
213. 49 CFR 1.49. FRA currently has 26
parts of regulations that contain
Schedules.2 With this New Proposal,

2However, as previously stated, FRA recently
published a final rule on bridge safety standards on
July 15, 2010. 75 FR 41282. As part of that final
rule, FRA created new regulations and penalties
under 49 CFR part 237, which was previously an
unused part of the CFR. Therefore after the
September 13, 2010 effective date for the final rule,
FRA will have 27 parts of regulations that contain
Schedules. In this New Proposal, FRA is also
accepting comments on the new penalties
contained in the final rule.



Federal Register/Vol.

75, No. 182/ Tuesday, September 21, 2010/Proposed Rules

57601

FRA is proposing to amend each of the
line-item guideline penalty amounts
contained within the Schedules for each
of the regulations and to add guideline
penalty amounts for violations of the
hours of service laws to 49 CFR part
228, appendix A (collectively, Penalty
Guidelines). In reevaluating the penalty
amounts in the Schedules, FRA has
developed a new proposed severity
scale (“New Proposed Severity Scale”)
for setting the line-item penalty
amounts for each violation of the safety
regulations and for violations of the
hours of service laws. The severity scale
FRA is proposing to adopt in this New
Proposal is described in the following
section.

New Proposed Severity Scale for Setting
Line-Item Penalty Amounts in FRA
Penalty Guidelines

FRA'’s rail safety regulations and the
rail safety statutes are intended either to
prevent a railroad accident/incident or
to mitigate the consequences if one were
to occur. For the most severe ratings on
the scale, FRA concentrated on the
degrees of likelihood that an accident/
incident 3 will occur or that graver
consequences of an accident/incident
will occur as a result of failing to
comply with the section. The following
New Proposed Severity Scale is
intended to reflect this focus:

Level A-Very High Probability—Failure of
a railroad to comply with this section or
subsection of the Code of Federal Regulations
(“CFR”), this FRA order, or this rail safety
statute is extremely likely to result in one or
more of the following events, but does not
create an imminent hazard of death or injury
to individuals or cause an actual death or
injury 4:

3“Accident/incident” is defined at 49 CFR 225.5.
Accidents/incidents are divided into three
categories: highway-rail grade crossing accidents/
incidents, rail equipment accidents/incidents; and
accidents/incidents resulting in death, injury, or
occupational illness. 49 CFR 225.19(c). A highway-
rail grade crossing accident/incident is “[alny
impact between railroad on-track equipment and an
automobile, bus, truck, motorcycle, bicycle, farm
vehicle, or pedestrian at a highway-rail grade
crossing.” 49 CFR 225.5, read in light of 49 CFR
225.19(c). Rail equipment accidents/incidents are
defined in 49 CFR 225.19(c) to include “collisions,
derailments, fires, explosions, acts of God, and
other events involving the operation of on-track
equipment (standing or moving) * * * that result
in damage to railroad property that is greater than
the reporting threshold.” Currently the reporting
threshold is $9,200. 74 FR 65458 (Dec. 10, 2009).

4FRA has statutory authority to assess civil
penalties in the range of $650 (minimum) to
$25,000 (ordinary maximum) for ordinary
violations of its regulations. FRA may assess a
penalty at the statutory aggravated maximum of
$100,000 only “when a grossly negligent violation
or a pattern of repeated violations has caused an
imminent hazard of death or injury to individuals,
or has caused death or injury.” A $100,000,
statutory aggravated maximum penalty is the
equivalent of a Level A Plus and is, therefore, off

1. Rail equipment accident/incident

2. Other accident/incident (including death,
injury, or occupational illness)5

FRA is proposing to issue a penalty guideline

for Level “A” of $19,500 for an ordinary

violation and $25,000 for a willful violation

of the regulation, order, or statute.

Level B—High Probability—Failure of
railroad to comply with this section or
subsection of the CFR, this FRA order, or this
rail safety statute is more likely than not to
result in the occurrence of:

1. Rail equipment accident/incident; or

2. Other accident/incident (including
death, injury, or occupational illness).

FRA is proposing to issue a penalty
guideline for Level “B” of $13,000 for an
ordinary violation and $20,500 for a willful
violation of the regulation, order, or statute.

For the following levels, FRA is not
only addressing the likelihood that
noncompliance will or could contribute
to an accident or aggravated
consequences if an accident occurred,
but also the importance of maintaining
compliance in order to prevent
violations of these regulatory or
statutory sections or subsections from
becoming leading accident causes in the
future.

Level C—Moderate Probability—Failure of
railroad to comply with this section or
subsection of the CFR, this FRA order, or this
rail safety statute substantially increases the
likelihood that one of the following will
occur:

1. Rail equipment accident/incident; or

2. Other accident/incident (including
death, injury, or occupational illness).

FRA is proposing to issue a penalty
guideline for Level “C” of $9,500 for an
ordinary violation and $17,000 for a willful
violation of the regulation, order, or statute.

Level D—Minor Probability—Failure of the
railroad to comply with this section or
subsection of the CFR, this FRA order, or this
rail safety statute slightly increases the
likelihood that one of the following will
occur:

1. Rail equipment accident/incident; or

2. Other accident/incident (including
death, injury, or occupational illness).

FRA is proposing to issue a penalty
guideline for Level “D” of $5,500 for an
ordinary violation and $10,000 for a willful
violation of the regulation, order, or statute.

Level E—Minimal Probability—Failure to
comply with this section or subsection of the

the scale. The standard of “imminent hazard” of
death or injury (the standard for a civil penalty at
the aggravated maximum penalty) is different from
the standard of “extremely likely” to result in death
or injury (the standard for Level A penalties on the
severity scale). Imminent hazards are hazards that
are likely to occur without delay or that actually
may be occurring at the time the violation is taken.
In contrast, a hazard that is extremely likely to
result in a railroad accident/incident or another
accident/incident causing death, injury, or
occupational disease has a high probability of
causing one or more of those adverse events sooner
or later, but is not necessarily likely to occur
without delay or contemporaneously when the
violation is taken.

5 See 49 CFR 225.19(d).

CFR, this FRA order, or this rail safety statute
does not materially increase the likelihood
that a rail equipment accident/incident or
other accident/incident will occur, except in
special circumstances, such as if the
noncompliance is willful or widespread.
Nevertheless, noncompliance with any one of
these provisions undercuts the effectiveness
of the Federal railroad safety program, and
could compromise the safety of rail
operations.

Example: Violation of § 225.13—Late
Reports—Submitting a late accident/incident
report to FRA does not increase the
likelihood that a rail equipment accident/
incident or other accident/incident will
occur. Widespread noncompliance with that
provision, however, could lead to
inaccuracies in Federal accident databases,
which in turn could delay FRA’s response to
emerging safety problems.

FRA is proposing to issue a penalty
guideline for Level “E” of $2,500 for an
ordinary violation and $5,000 for a willful
violation of the regulation, order, or statute.

Like the Initially Proposed Severity
Scale, the New Proposed Severity Scale
shows, there are five different levels of
probabilities, ranging from “A” (the most
severe) to “E” (the least severe of the
types of violations). In developing the
rankings (“A” through “E”), FRA
concentrated on the degrees of
likelihood that an accident/incident will
occur or that graver consequences will
occur as a result of the failure to comply
with the particular section or subsection
of the safety regulations or with the
statute. Using the New Proposed
Severity Scale, FRA then assigned a
ranking (from “A” to “E”) to each of the
provisions of the particular rail safety
regulations and to the hours of service
statute, which the agency has
responsibility for administering and
enforcing. The resulting proposed line-
item penalty amounts for violations of
each of the sections or subsections of
the safety regulations affected and for
violations of the hours of service laws
reflect FRA’s determination, based on
safety data and industry knowledge, of
how likely the violation of a particular
provision is to result in a rail equipment
accident/incident or another type of
accident/incident. Due to the increase in
the ordinary maximum from $11,000 to
$25,000 since the Initial Proposal, the
new proposed civil penalty amounts
have increased in most instances, but in
some cases the new proposed civil
penalty amount would remain the same
(e.g., 49 CFR 219.205(b), 222.49(b),
229.71, and 239.301(c)(1)) if adopted by
FRA. Nonetheless, a determination by
FRA that violation of a provision does
not increase the likelihood that a rail
equipment accident/incident or other
accident will occur, however, does not
mean that the provision is
inconsequential to the effectiveness of
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the Federal railroad safety program or to
the overall safety of railroad operations.

Currently, each Schedule is in the
form of a table consisting of three
columns with one or more footnotes.
Like the initially proposed Schedules,
the new proposed Schedules would
continue to be structured in this fashion
and to provide guideline penalty
amounts for two categories of violations:
Ordinary (non-willful) and willful. Each
new proposed Schedule lists the CFR
section or subsection in the left-hand
column, sometimes with additional
designations to distinguish different
types of violations (penalty codes) of the
section or subsection in order to
facilitate the assessment of civil
penalties. The only exception continues
to be 49 CFR part 231; the left-hand
column of the new proposed Schedule
lists the FRA defect codes © for that part,
and not the corresponding CFR sections.
The reason for this continues to be the
fact that the defect codes are organized
by the type of safety appliance, which
makes them easier to use, than the
section numbers of part 231, which are
organized primarily by car or
locomotive type. Nevertheless, if
necessary, every defect code can be
traced to a specific regulatory provision
in part 231 or statutory provision in 49
U.S.C. chapter 203, or both. The
corresponding penalties for each
violation are listed in the middle and
right-hand columns: The guideline
penalty amount for an ordinary

violation and then the guideline penalty
amount for a willful violation. The
ordinary penalties apply to railroads or
other respondents, except individuals,
while the “willful” column applies to
willful violations committed by
railroads or individuals.

The following chart summarizes the
new proposed guideline amounts for
ordinary and willful violations by
severity level:

e | gpney |
Proposal violations violations
$19,500 $25,000
13,000 20,500
9,500 17,000
5,500 10,000
2,500 5,000

IV. Rankings of the Rail Safety
Regulatory Provisions and the Hours of
Service Laws in the New Proposal

Although the railroad industry’s
overall safety record has improved over
the last decade, significant train
accidents/incidents continue to occur.
As aresult, the FRA’s safety program is
being guided by careful analysis of
accident/incident, inspection, and other
safety data. FRA has also directed both
its regulatory and compliance efforts
toward the areas that involve the highest
of safety risks, in order to reduce the
number and severity of accidents/
incidents caused by a failure to comply

with those safety regulations. Therefore,
the goal of the new proposed line-item
penalty amounts for each of the
Schedules and the new proposed
penalty amount for violations of the
hours of service statute is to reflect the
different degrees of probability that a
violation of a particular regulatory
section or subsection, order, or statute
will result in a rail equipment accident/
incident or other accident/incident, in
order to improve the overall safety of
railroad operations.

A. Motive Power and Equipment
Regulations (MP&E) (49 CFR Parts 215,
218 [Pal‘tia]]y], 223,224,227, 229, 230,
231, 232, 238, and 239 (Partially))

In reevaluating the current line-item
penalty amounts for each of the CFR
sections or subsections found in 49 CFR
parts 215, 218 (partially), 223, 224, 227,
229, 230, 231, 232, 238, and 239
(partially) of the CFR, FRA took into
consideration, among other factors, the
nationwide list of “Top 10” MP&E
defects. The defects are listed in the
table below, in descending order,
according to the number of times that
each defect was determined to have
caused a rail equipment accident/
incident, excluding highway-rail grade
crossing accidents/incidents that are
also classified as rail equipment
accidents/incidents (“train accidents”),
between January 2005 and December
2009.

Journal (roller bearing) overheated—(143)
Pantograph defect (locomotive)—(121)
Side bearing clearance insufficient—(86)
Broken rim—(80)

Truck bolster stiff—(67)

Damaged flange or tread (build up)—(60)

Coupler retainer pin/cross key missing—(57)

Rigging down or dragging—(49)

Other coupler/draft system defects; Worn Flange (tie)—(38)
Center sill broken or bent—(36)

The CFR sections or subsections that
relate to these defects have received
higher proposed rankings in the
Schedules compared to other MP&E
defects and as such now carry higher
penalty amounts. For example, a
violation of 49 CFR 215.103(d)(3),
which involves a defective wheel rim
with a crack of one inch or more,
received a proposed “A” severity
ranking (and a proposed guideline
penalty amount of $19,500) because of
the high safety risk that the defect will
cause a broken rim that, in turn, causes
a derailment. In addition, FRA applied
the New Proposed Severity Scale in
order to determine the degrees of
likelihood that any type of accident/
incident will occur as a result of
noncompliance with the regulations.

6 Defect codes were developed by FRA in order
to facilitate computerization of inspection data

B. Track and Workplace Safety
Regulations (49 CFR Parts 213 and 214)

In recent years, most of the serious
accidents/incidents (train collisions or
derailments resulting in a release of
hazardous materials or harm to rail
passengers, rail employees, or the
general public) resulted from human
factor or track causes. Over the last five
years, 31.9 percent of train accidents
were caused by track defects. In an
effort to reduce track accidents, FRA is
focusing its track inspections on the
areas of highest risks and encouraging
inspectors to recommend enforcement
action on the kinds of violations that are
considered leading causes of track-
caused train accidents. Therefore, in
evaluating the line-item penalty

generated by FRA inspectors by providing a digital
format for every CFR section. Defect codes are

amounts for all the sections or
subsections, FRA took into
consideration the leading causes of
track-related train accidents when
applying the New Proposed Severity
Scale to the Track Safety Standards. For
example, violations of 49 CFR 213.53
“Gage” received a new proposed “A”
ranking (and new proposed penalty
guideline amounts of $19,500 for an
ordinary violation and $25,000 for a
willful violation) because improper gage
is one of the leading causes of track-
related train accidents.

In ranking the sections or subsections
of 49 CFR part 214 (“Railroad Workplace
Safety”), FRA took into consideration
not only the probability that an
accident/incident could result if a
violation occurred, but also the fact that

analytical tools only and are subject to change
without notice.
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the accident/incident could result in
serious injury or death. One example of
the rankings for part 214 is the ranking
for the second type of violation of 49
CFR 214.103, coded 214.103(ii), “Failure
to use fall protection.” This violation
designated 214.103(ii) received a
proposed ranking of “A” (and a
proposed guideline penalty of $19,500
for an ordinary violation and $25,000
for a willful violation) because the
violation could result in serious injury
or death, as evidenced by the several
bridge worker fatalities in the past 10
years due to the failure to use fall
protection.

C. Grade Crossing Signal Systems and
Signal and Train Control Regulations
(49 CFR Parts 233, 234, 235, and 236)

FRA applied the New Proposed
Severity Scale to each of the sections in
49 CFR parts 233, 234, 235, and 236, in
order to determine the appropriate
proposed rankings for each of the
sections or subsections of the
regulations. In the area of signal and
train control (S&TC), FRA followed the
New Proposed Severity Scale, which
concentrates on the potential for an
accident/incident resulting from
noncompliance. S&TC systems are vital
to the safe functioning of the general
railroad system because train crews and
highway motorists rely on the accuracy
of the information provided by these
systems to make safe movements on the
railway system and through highway-
rail grade crossings. While there are
relatively few train accidents and
highway-rail grade crossing accidents/
incidents associated with S&TC causes
that have occurred in recent years, the
consequences of an S&TC-caused
accident can be catastrophic. Therefore,
it is imperative that the Schedules put
into effect by FRA reflect the levels of
risks associated with the violation of
these CFR sections or subsections, in
order to prevent future S&TC-caused
accidents.

D. Operating Practices Regulations (49
CFR Parts 217, 218 (Partially), 219, 220,
221,222, 225, 228, 239 (Partia]]y}, 240,
and 241) and Hours of Service Laws (49
U.S.C. Chapter 211)

Over the five years from January 2005
to December 2009, human-factor-related
causes accounted for 34.2 percent of all
train accidents. A review of the FRA’s
Office of Railroad Safety database
indicated that in 2009 the top four
human factor causes contributing to
train accidents were improperly lined
switches; employees absent on, at, or
ahead of a shoving movement; failure to
control during a shoving movement; and
failure to comply with restricted speed

or its equivalent when not in connection
with a block or interlocking signal.
These top causes are often involved in
violations of such regulations as 49 CFR
part 220 (“Railroad Communications”).
A review of the top four causes for
human factor train accidents between
January 2005 and December 2009
showed that these causes accounted for
1,812 reportable train accidents/
incidents (including 13 employee
fatalities, 463 employee injuries, and
over $96 million in damages). Therefore,
when applying the New Proposed
Severity Scale to the regulatory
provision or statute, FRA considered all
of this safety information in order to
ensure that each new proposed line-
item penalty amount reflected the
likelihood that noncompliance would
result in a train accident/incident, or
that graver consequences would occur
as a result of failing to comply with the
statute or section or subsection of the
regulations.

V. Response to Public Comment on the
Schedules Proposed in December 2006

As previously stated, the existing
Schedules are statements of agency
policy, which FRA has authority to
amend or replace without having to
provide prior notice and opportunity for
comment under the Administrative
Procedure Act, 5 U.S.C. 553(b)(3)(A).
Nevertheless, FRA provided members
and representatives of the regulated
community and the general public with
an opportunity to comment on the
proposed line-item penalty amounts
published on December 5, 2006. FRA
received six comments on the Schedules
proposed in December 2006. FRA has
considered the comments received and
now responds to the questions and
concerns raised in them.

A. Concerns Related to Respondents
That Are Small Businesses

The Small Railroad Business Owners
of America (“SRBOA”) commented that
FRA’s December 2006 proposed civil
penalty policy does not adequately take
into account the interests of small
businesses. The commenter suggested
that doubling certain civil penalties for
smaller railroads is unfair, especially
because most of the accidents/incidents
occur on larger railroads. The
commenter also asked that FRA provide
additional training and assistance to
smaller railroads in comprehension and
application of the rail safety regulations.

In addition, the American Short Line
and Regional Railroad Association
(“ASLRRA”) commented that the
proposed statement of agency policy
ignores the effect that proposed amounts
would have on small railroads. ASLRRA

suggested that FRA move instead,
towards a sliding scale system of civil
penalties based on the class of track
under 49 CFR part 213 that is involved
in the violation. In the alternative,
ASLRRA suggested that FRA take the
time to codify a second, lower schedule
of penalties for small railroads.

In response to these concerns, FRA
would like to emphasize appendix C to
49 CFR part 209, where FRA has
published its policy statement
concerning small business entities. FRA
understands that small entities in the
rail industry have significantly different
characteristics from larger carriers and
shippers. Therefore, FRA has developed
programs to respond to compliance-
related inquiries of small entities, and to
ensure proper handling of civil penalty
and other enforcement actions against
small businesses. FRA inspectors
provide training on the requirements of
all railroad safety statutes for new and
existing small businesses upon request.
Also, it is FRA’s policy to maintain
frequent and open communications
with the national representatives of the
primary small entity associations and to
consult with these organizations before
embarking on new policies that may
impact the interests of small businesses.
Additionally, FRA has posted all of its
manuals electronically for compliance
with the rail safety disciplines at http://
www.fra.dot.gov.

FRA employs an enforcement policy
that addresses the unique nature of
small entities in the imposition of civil
penalties and resolution of those
assessments. Pursuant to appendix A to
49 CFR part 209, it is FRA’s policy to
consider a variety of factors in
determining whether to take
enforcement action against persons,
including small entities, who have
violated the safety laws and regulations.
In general, the presence of both good
faith and prompt remedial action on the
part of the small entity militates against
taking a civil penalty action, especially
if the violation is an isolated event.
Once FRA has assessed a civil penalty,
FRA may adjust or compromise the
initial penalty claim based on a wide
variety of mitigating factors. The
mitigating criteria that FRA applies are
found in the railroad safety statutes at
49 U.S.C. ch. 213 and in the Small
Business Regulatory Enforcement
Fairness Act of 1996 (Pub. L. 104-121)
(“SBREFA?”); these factors include the
severity of the safety or health risk
presented; the existence of alternative
methods of eliminating the safety
hazard; the entity’s culpability; the
entity’s compliance history; the entity’s
ability to pay the assessment; the impact
an assessment might exact on the
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entity’s continued business; and
evidence that the entity acted in good
faith. 49 CFR part 209, appendix C.
FRA'’s enforcement policy with
respect to small entities is flexible and
comprehensive, but FRA’s first priority
in its compliance and enforcement
activities is public and employee safety.
FRA notes that an accident on a small
railroad could have the same
consequences as an accident on a large
railroad. Therefore, small railroads are
responsible for compliance with the
railroad safety statutes and regulations.
Finally, the Small Railroad Business
Owners’ Association of America
(“SRBOA”) commented that FRA’s civil
penalties were higher than those used
by the Federal Motor Carrier Safety
Administration (“FMCSA?”) for enforcing
commercial motor vehicle driver and
trucking safety, and suggested that FRA
should impose civil penalties for
smaller railroads only if discussing the
situation with them does not work first.
As explained above, FRA’s rail safety
inspectors take into account a variety of
factors in determining whether to take
enforcement actions. They have the
option of citing the railroads for defects,
which in their judgment do not merit
civil penalties before citing them for
violations, which do carry civil penalty
recommendations. Also, FRA does not
believe it is appropriate to compare
FRA'’s rail safety penalties to FMCSA’s
penalties for driver and trucking safety.
The safety considerations in the
trucking and rail industries are very
different. An accident involving a train
is potentially far more catastrophic and
costly than a similar accident involving
a truck. For example, one railroad tank
car could contain many truckloads of
hazardous material, and one train could
consist of many such railroad tank cars.

B. Concerns About Initially Proposed
Penalty Amounts for Violations of 49
CFR Parts 222, 225, and 229

The Association of American
Railroads (“AAR”) stated that, in several
cases, the penalties proposed in
December 2006 are disproportionate to
the severity of the violation.
Specifically, AAR took exception to
penalties proposed for noncompliance
with 49 CFR parts 222, 225, and 229.

With regard to part 222 (the train horn
rule), AAR contended that a “D” level
penalty for a violation of § 222.21(b) is
unsubstantiated, as the sounding of a
horn for more than 20 seconds will not
increase the likelihood of an accident or
incident.

FRA provides that the train horn rule
focuses on public and community
interests. To remain true to the intention
of the rule, FRA must take the interests

of the community into account when
determining the penalty amount that a
violation merits. FRA believes that it is
important that sufficient warning be
provided to the motorist who needs
time to recognize the audible signal,
understand its message, initiate a
reaction, and take appropriate action
when at a grade crossing. See 71 FR
47618, Aug. 17, 2006. If the train horn
is sounded more than 25 seconds before
the train enters the train crossing,
motorists might well begin to doubt the
credibility of the train horn as an
indicator of the train’s immediacy to the
grade crossing. As a result, motorists
will be more likely to take the risk of
traveling through the crossing even
when the train horn is sounded.

The rule text for § 222.21(b) also
provides a “good faith” exception for the
required length of time that the horn is
sounded. The section permits additional
flexibility by stating that the engineer
shall not be in violation of § 222.21(b)
if the engineer sounds the horn not
more than 25 seconds before the
crossing, if in good faith the engineer
cannot precisely estimate the arrival
time of the train at the crossing. FRA
has determined that the interests of
avoiding an accident or incident as well
as the interests of the community have
been taken into account in assessing
violations of § 222.21(b) as a proposed
“D” level penalty with the exception of
“failure to sound the horn at least 15
seconds and less than Va-mile before a
crossing,” which is assessed as a
proposed “C” level penalty.

Additionally, AAR stated that routine
sounding of the horn at a grade crossing
within a quiet zone, pursuant to
§222.45, will not increase the
likelihood of an accident or incident.

With regard to AAR’s comment on
§222.45, although sounding the train
horn in a quiet zone may not
substantially increase the likelihood of
an accident the first time or the first few
times, trains that routinely sound their
horns at quiet-zone grade crossings
might cause motorists to doubt the
credibility of signs marking a grade
crossing as a quiet-zone grade crossing
and whether a particular grade crossing
is actually a quiet-zone grade crossing.
Therefore, if routine violations of a quiet
zone continue, motorists will begin to
expect the warning of a train horn when
a train is preparing to enter quiet-zone
grade crossings where routine violations
of the quiet zone occur. That could
predictably lead to fatal accidents.

In addition, violations of § 222.45
increase the annoyance level of the
communities surrounding the grade
crossing. A fundamental feature of this
rule was to balance driver and

pedestrian safety with community noise
concerns. Decreasing the civil monetary
penalty would reduce the incentive to
comply with the part and potentially
increase noise for the surrounding
communities. FRA maintains that the
initial and new proposed “D” level
penalty for a violation of § 222.45
sufficiently addresses the concerns that
brought about the part 222 rulemaking.
See 71 FR 47614, Aug. 17, 2006.

AAR also argued that a “B” level
penalty for a violation of 49 CFR 225.13
was unmerited, as a railroad’s filing of
a report one day late would not be more
likely to cause an accident or incident.

FRA has taken into consideration
AAR’s comments involving FRA’s
regulations on accident/incident
reporting, 49 CFR part 225. FRA
acknowledges the merits in AAR’s
comments with regard to § 225.13, and
FRA has revised the proposed penalty
ranking for a violation of § 225.13 from
a “B” to an “E.” Upon reevaluating how
part 225 violations were ranked on the
severity scale in the Initial Proposal,
FRA has lowered many of the proposed
severity scale rankings for violations of
this part. For example, FRA has
determined to change the ranking of a
§225.11 violation (failure to submit
monthly report of accidents/incidents)
from a proposed “B” to a proposed “D”
level penalty. At the same time, FRA
has determined that a violation of
§ 225.9, failure to report certain
accidents or incidents, immediately via
telephone to the National Response
Center, would be more detrimental to
railroad safety, because the failure could
prevent FRA from learning about the
event and deciding whether or not the
agency should commence an
investigation. Even delayed notification
could compromise such an investigation
and prevent FRA from obtaining
information that could identify safety
problems that could cause future
accidents or incidents. FRA has,
therefore, changed the penalty amount
from a proposed “E” to a proposed “C”
level penalty.

Finally, AAR stated that a “C” level
penalty for a violation of a provision of
the Locomotive Safety Standards, 49
CFR 229.137(a)(3), was uncalled for, as
the lack of a toilet in the lead
locomotive will not “substantially
increase the likelihood of an accident or
incident.”

When FRA promulgated the notice of
proposed rulemaking for the locomotive
cab sanitation standards, FRA
determined that serious health
consequences may result if railroad
employees are exposed to unsanitary
conditions or lack access to facilities. In
fact, it is widely known that exposure to
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human fecal matter or untreated sewage
waste can lead to diarrheal diseases
such as amebiasis, giardiasis,
shigellosis, and viral diseases such as
hepatitis. See 66 FR 137, Jan. 2, 2001.
FRA notes that any one of these
mentioned conditions would fulfill the
reporting requirements under the
definition of an “occupational illness”
pursuant to 49 CFR 225.19(d) and
therefore be considered an accident/
incident within the meaning of the
initially proposed Severity Scale and
the New Proposed Severity Scale. FRA
also notes that an engineer who
contracts one of those diseases on duty
might well be unable to operate his or
her train safely.

C. Concerns Related to Respondents
Who Are Cited as Individuals

The Brotherhood of Locomotive
Engineers and Trainmen (“BLET”) had a
number of comments on civil penalties
against individuals for rail safety
violations. The BLET raised concern
that FRA’s conclusions on the data
indicate a “lack of discipline by the
workers.” Also, the commenter
suggested that the December 2006
proposed statement of agency policy
suffers from “the same infirmity as the
railroad operating rules NPRM (notice of
proposed rulemaking).” Overall, the
BLET seemed very concerned with the
effect that a larger penalty would have
on an individual as opposed to a
railroad.

FRA responds that civil penalties
assessed against individuals pursuant to
the rail safety statutes, regulations, and
orders may be assessed administratively
only if FRA determines that the
individual’s conduct was willful in
nature. 49 U.S.C. 21304. “FRA considers
a ‘willful’ violation to be one that is an
intentional, voluntary act committed
either with knowledge of the relevant
law or reckless disregard for whether
the act violated the requirements of the
law.” 49 CFR part 209, appendix A. FRA
continues to hold that the higher
penalties for a willful violation serve to
deter an individual from engaging in
this type of egregious behavior. Further,
FRA assesses rail safety civil penalties
against railroads at a substantially
higher frequency than against
individuals. As neither the Initial
Proposal nor the New Proposal
addresses the issues covered in
“Railroad Operating Rules: Program of
Operational Tests and Inspections;
Railroad Operating Practices: Handling
Equipment, Switches and Fixed
Derails,” FRA declines to respond in
this proposal to comments regarding
that rulemaking, in which a final rule

was published on June 16, 2008. 73 FR
33888.

D. Concerns About Effects on FRA’s
Confidential Close Call Reporting
Project

The BLET also provided comments
exhibiting a concern as to how the
proposed penalty schedule in the Initial
Proposal would impact FRA’s
Confidential Close Call Reporting Pilot
Project (“Close Call Project”). The Close
Call Project involves encouraging
employees from its participating
railroads to report “close call” incidents
voluntarily and anonymously. A “close
call” is an event in which a death, a
personal injury, or property damage is
narrowly averted. Thus, a “close call”
presents an opportunity to improve
safety practices in a situation or
incident that has potential for more
serious consequences by allowing the
people involved to report the event in
detail without fear of adverse
consequences, thereby providing FRA
with vital data about precursors to
accidents or incidents that FRA might
otherwise not receive. The information
collected from the Close Call Project
provides an opportunity to identify and
correct weaknesses in a railroad’s safety
system before an accident/incident or
other unsafe event occurs. The system
can also be used to monitor changes in
safety over time and to uncover hidden
unsafe conditions that were previously
unreported.

FRA does not agree with BLET’s
comment that the Initial Proposal would
nullify the incentive for voluntary
submission of information in this pilot
program. The employees participating
in the Close Call Project are protected
from carrier discipline, decertification,
and FRA enforcement action in the
same manner regardless of whether the
civil penalties are increased. Before a
Close Call Project may be initiated, the
employing railroad and the employees’
union representatives sign a
memorandum of understanding
(“MOU”) that specifies each party’s
rights and responsibilities. Revising the
Schedules would not impact any MOU
that has been implemented, and would
not affect any MOU that is to be
implemented in the future, as they
would not expand FRA’s enforcement
authority.

E. Concerns About Proposed Monetary
Increases in the Civil Penalty Amounts

Commenters measured the change
between the current penalties and the
initially proposed penalties in nominal
terms. That is, commenters calculated
the price change between the initially
proposed penalties and the current

penalties without first adjusting the
current penalty amounts for inflation.
Inflation erodes the purchasing power of
money over time. As previously stated
in this New Proposal, the enforcement
and deterrent effects of the current
penalties have decreased over time as
they had not been increased line by line
to account for the effects of inflation. A
better, “apples-to-apples” comparison
would be to compare the proposed
penalties to the inflation-adjusted, or
real, current penalties. Adjusting for
inflation allows comparison of the
penalties using dollars with the same
purchasing power.

Given that inflation-adjusted, current
penalties serve as the proper baseline
for measuring change, it is significant
that many of the current penalties have
not changed in nominal terms for many
years.

As previously stated, in undertaking
this effort to revise the Schedules
comprehensively after many years, FRA
is focusing on areas that pose greater
safety risks, and maintaining
enforcement in other regulatory areas
per its authority to set penalty
guidelines within the minimum,
ordinary maximum, and aggravated
maximum statutory penalties. With the
New Proposal, some of the proposed
penalty amounts if adopted by FRA will
indeed show large increases, even after
adjusting for inflation.” However, as
previously stated, some newly proposed
penalty amounts for violations would
remain unchanged (e.g., 49 CFR
219.205(b), 222.49(b), 229.71, and
239.301(c)(1)). Again, the penalty
amounts in the New Proposal reflect the

7For example, BLET stated that the penalty for 49
CFR 214.103(ii) (“Failure to use fall protection”)
would increase 340 percent. Expressing the original
penalty amounts in 2006 dollars (for consistency
with the first proposed penalty schedules that were
published on December 5, 2006), the increase
would actually have been 204 percent; however,
with the proposed penalties in this notice, the
increase in real dollars would be 559 percent.
Similarly, for 49 CFR 218.22(c)(5) (“Utility
employees: Assignment conditions: Performing
functions not listed”), BLET found an 87.5 percent
increase. Measured in 2006 dollars, the difference
between the current penalties and the originally-
proposed revised penalties would have been 15
percent, and with the proposed penalties in this
notice, the real difference would be about 46
percent. For 49 CFR 219.11(b)(1) (“General
conditions for chemical tests: Employee unlawfully
refuses to participate in testing”), BLET calculated
a 120 percent increase, the change in real dollars
from the original proposal would have been 41
percent. With the proposed penalties in this New
Proposal, the increase would be about 22 percent
(Upon reevaluating the severity scale rankings in
the Initial Proposal, FRA lowered the severity scale
ranking for violations of § 219.11(b)(1) from a
proposed “A” to a proposed “D” level penalty.) In
each of these examples, the rules concern areas of
significant risk. Consequentially, FRA has
determined that higher proposed penalties are
necessary and justified.
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reanalyzed risk basis for the penalty
amounts and the new ordinary
maximum statutory penalty. FRA
believes that these new proposed
Schedules will maintain and increase
the effect of the civil monetary
penalties, fostering a higher overall level
of safety.

List of Subjects
49 CFR Part 209

Administrative practice and
procedure, Hazardous materials
transportation, Penalties, Railroad
safety, Reporting and recordkeeping
requirements.

49 CFR Part 213

Bridges, Penalties, Railroad safety,
Reporting and recordkeeping
requirements.

49 CFR Part 214

Bridges, Occupational safety and
health, Penalties, Railroad safety,
Reporting and recordkeeping
requirements.

49 CFR Part 215

Freight, Penalties, Railroad safety,
Reporting and recordkeeping
requirements.

49 CFR Part 217

Penalties, Railroad safety, Reporting
and recordkeeping requirements.

49 CFR Part 218

Occupational safety and health,
Penalties, Railroad employees, Railroad
safety, Reporting and recordkeeping
requirements.

49 CFR Part 219

Alcohol abuse, Drug abuse, Drug
testing, Penalties, Railroad safety,
Reporting and recordkeeping
requirements, Safety, Transportation.

49 CFR Part 220

Penalties, Radio, Railroad safety,
Reporting and recordkeeping
requirements.

49 CFR Part 221

Penalties, Railroad safety, Reporting
and recordkeeping requirements.

49 CFR Part 222

Administrative practice and
procedure, Penalties, Railroad safety,
Reporting and recordkeeping
requirements.

49 CFR Part 223

Glass and glass products, Penalties,
Railroad safety, Reporting and
recordkeeping requirements.

49 CFR Part 224

Penalties, Railroad locomotive safety,
Railroad safety, Reporting and
recordkeeping requirements.

49 CFR Part 225

Investigations, Penalties, Railroad
safety, Reporting and recordkeeping
requirements.

49 CFR Part 227

Locomotives, Noise control,
Occupational safety and health,
Penalties, Railroad safety, Reporting and
recordkeeping requirements.

49 CFR Part 228

Administrative practice and
procedures, Buildings and facilities,
Hazardous materials transportation,
Noise control, Penalties, Railroad
employees, Railroad safety, Reporting
and recordkeeping requirements.

49 CFR Part 229

Penalties, Railroad safety, Reporting
and recordkeeping requirements.

49 CFR Part 230

Penalties, Railroad safety, Reporting
and recordkeeping requirements.

49 CFR Part 231
Penalties, Railroad safety.
49 CFR Part 232

Penalties, Railroad safety, Reporting
and recordkeeping requirements.

49 CFR Part 233

Penalties, Railroad safety, Reporting
and recordkeeping requirements.

49 CFR Part 234

Highway safety, Penalties, Railroad
safety, Reporting and recordkeeping
requirements.

49 CFR Part 235

Administrative practice and
procedure, Penalties, Railroad safety,
Reporting and recordkeeping
requirements.

49 CFR Part 236

Penalties, Railroad safety, Reporting
and recordkeeping requirements.

49 CFR Part 238

Fire prevention, Penalties, Railroad
safety, Reporting and recordkeeping
requirements.

49 CFR Part 239

Penalties, Railroad safety, Reporting
and recordkeeping requirements.

49 CFR Part 240

Administrative practice and
procedure, Penalties, Railroad

employees, Railroad safety, Reporting
and recordkeeping requirements.

49 CFR Part 241

Communications, Penalties, Railroad
safety, Reporting and recordkeeping
requirements.

In consideration of the foregoing, FRA
proposes to amend parts 209, 213, 214,
215, 217, 218, 219, 220, 221, 222, 223,
224, 225, 227, 228, 229, 230, 231, 232,
233, 234, 235, 236, 238, 239, 240, and
241 of subtitle B, chapter II of title 49
of the Code of Federal Regulations to
read as follows:

PART 209—[AMENDED]

1. The authority citation for part 209
continues to read as follows:

Authority: 49 U.S.C. 5123, 5124, 20103,
20107, 20111, 20112, 20114; 28 U.S.C. 2461,
note; and 49 CFR 1.49.

2. Appendix A to part 209 is revised
to read as follows:

Appendix A to Part 209—Statement of
Agency Policy Concerning Enforcement
of the Federal Railroad Safety Laws

Penalty Schedules: Assessment of Maximum
Penalties

As recommended by the Department of
Transportation in its initial proposal for rail
safety legislative revisions in 1987, the RSIA
raised the maximum civil penalties for
violations of the safety regulations or orders.
Under the Hours of Service Act, the penalty
was changed from a flat $500 to a penalty of
“up to $1,000, as the Secretary of
Transportation deems reasonable.” Under all
the other statutes, the maximum penalty was
raised from $2,500 to $10,000 per violation,
except that “where a grossly negligent
violation or pattern of repeated violations has
created an imminent hazard of death or
injury,” the penalty was raised to a maximum
of $20,000 per violation.

The Rail Safety Enforcement and Review
Act (RSERA), enacted in 1992, increased the
maximum penalty from $1,000 to $10,000
and in some cases, $20,000 for a violation of
the hours of service laws, making these
penalty amounts uniform with those of FRA’s
other regulatory provisions and orders.
RSERA also increased the minimum civil
monetary penalty from $250 to $500 for all
of FRA’s regulatory provisions and orders.
The Federal Civil Penalties Inflation
Adjustment Act of 1990, Public Law 101—
410, 104 Stat. 890, note, as amended by
Section 31001(s)(1) of the Debt Collection
Improvement Act of 1996 (Pub. L. 104-134,
110 Stat. 1321-373, April 26, 1996) (Inflation
Act) required that agencies adjust by
regulation each minimum and maximum
civil monetary penalty within the agency’s
jurisdiction for inflation and make
subsequent adjustments once every four
years after the initial adjustment.
Accordingly, FRA’s minimum and maximum
civil monetary penalties have been adjusted.

In 2008, the Rail Safety Improvement Act
of 2008 (RSIA of 2008) was enacted raising
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FRA’s civil monetary ordinary and
aggravated maximum penalties to $25,000
and $100,000 respectively. FRA amended the
civil penalty provisions in its regulations so
as to make $25,000 the ordinary maximum
penalty per violation and $100,000 the
aggravated maximum penalty per violation,
as authorized by the RSIA of 2008, in a final
rule published on December 30, 2008 in the
Federal Register. 73 FR 79700. The
December 30, 2008 final rule also adjusted
the minimum civil penalty from $550 to $650
pursuant to Inflation Act requirements. Id. A
correcting amendment to the civil penalty
provisions in 49 CFR part 232 was published
on April 6, 2009. 74 FR 15388.

FRA'’s traditional practice has been to issue
penalty schedules assigning to each
particular regulation or order specific dollar
amounts for initial penalty assessments. The
schedule (except where issued after notice
and an opportunity for comment) constitutes

a statement of agency policy, and is
ordinarily issued as an appendix to the
relevant part of the Code of Federal
Regulations. For each regulation or order, the
schedule shows two amounts within the
$650 to $25,000 range in separate columns,
the first for ordinary violations, the second
for willful violations (whether committed by
railroads or individuals). In one instance—
part 231—the schedule refers to sections of
the relevant FRA defect code rather than to
sections of the CFR text. Of course, the defect
code, which is simply a reorganized version
of the CFR text used by FRA to facilitate
computerization of inspection data, is
substantively identical to the CFR text.
Accordingly, under each of the schedules
(ordinarily in a footnote), and regardless of
the fact that a lesser amount might be shown
in both columns of the schedule, FRA
reserves the right to assess the statutory
maximum penalty of up to $100,000 per

violation where a grossly negligent violation
has created an imminent hazard of death or
injury. This authority to assess a penalty for
a single violation above $25,000 and up to
$100,000 is used only in very exceptional
cases to penalize egregious behavior. FRA
indicates in the penalty demand letter when
it uses the higher penalty amount instead of
the penalty amount listed in the schedule.

PART 213—[AMENDED]

3. The authority citation for part 213
continues to read as follows:

Authority: 49 U.S.C. 20102-20114 and
20142; 28 U.S.C. 2461, note; and 49 CFR
1.49(m).

4. Appendix B to part 213 is revised
to read as follows:

APPENDIX B TO PART 213—SCHEDULE OF CIVIL PENALTIES

: — Willful
Section 23 Violation violation
Subpart A—General
213.4(a) Excepted track2 .... $9,500 $17,000
213.4(b) Excepted track? .... 13,000 20,500
213.4(c) Excepted track 2 .... 13,000 20,500
213.4(d) Excepted track? 13,000 20,500
213.4(e):
(DI = (eT=T o] (=T I (- Tod GO PSP USPOPRTUPRRPRTPPPT 13,000 20,500
(2) Excepted track .. 13,000 20,500
(3) Excepted track .. 13,000 20,500
(4) Excepted track .. 13,000 20,500
213.4(f) EXCEPLEA traCK .....coiiiiiiiiiiiccee e s 5,500 10,000
213.7 Designation of qualified persons to supervise certain renewals and inspect track .... 9,500 17,000
213.9 Classes of track: Operating speed limits ........cccooiiiriiiiiiiiee e 19,500 25,000
213.11 Restoration or renewal of track under traffic conditions .. 9,500 17,000
213.13 Measuring track NOt UNAEr 1080 .........coouiiiiiiiieiiee et e e enneas 13,000 20,500
Subpart B—Roadbed
P2 TR I T B 1= g - To [ TP PP PO PP RO PRSP 13,000 20,500
P B Y A V=T o = - L[] ISP PP ORI 9,500 17,000
P2 B TR TC T C -V 1= TP TP ORI ORORRURORN 19,500 25,000
213.55 Alignment 13,000 20,500
213.57 Curves; elevation and speed lIMItatioNs ..........ccoiiiiiiiiiiiiie e 13,000 20,500
213.59 Elevation of curved track; rUNOFE ...........coooiiiiii e 13,000 20,500
21B.83  TrACK SUIMACE ....ueiiiiiiiieeee ettt ettt a ettt eeae e et e s b e e bt e st e e nbe e et enaeeennes 13,000 20,500
Subpart D—Track Structure
213,103 Ballast; GENEIAL .....c.eeiiiiiieeee ettt s s nr e e e r e e e nr e e e nneas 9,500 17,000
213.109 Crossties:
(a) Material used ........... 5,500 10,000
(b) Distribution of ties ........ccccevvreiriieiiienens 13,000 20,500
(d) Sufficient number of nondefective ties .... 9,500 17,000
(f) JoiNt ties .vovvveeerieee e 9,500 17,000
(g) Track constructed WIthOUL CrOSSHIES ........ccouiiiiiiiiiiiie ittt eee e 9,500 17,000
213.110 Gage restraint measurement systems:
(@) through (b) NOTIfICATION ......coiiiiiiiiiee ettt ere e 9,500 17,000
(c) Design requirements ............... 13,000 20,500
(g) through (i) Exception reports .. 9,500 17,000
(j) Data integrity .......ccccceervevrieeenenn. 13,000 20,500
(k) Training .............. 9,500 17,000
(I) Remedial actions 19,500 25,000
a0 T T T PO P TP PP UPRRUPURPPRORN 13,000 20,500
(N) RECOIAKEEPING ..ottt sttt et e e e b e e s b e e st e e s be e e b e e s be e st e e sanestee e 9,500 17,000
(o) Inspection frequency .. 19,500 25,000
213.113 Defective rails .......... 19,500 25,000
213.115  Rail @nd MISMAICN .....eiiiiiii ettt 9,500 17,000
213.118(a) CWR plan in effect 13,000 20,500
213.118(b) CWR plan filed With FRA ...ttt e esee st e saesneenneaneens 13,000 20,500
213.119 Continuous welded rail:
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APPENDIX B TO PART 213—SCHEDULE OF CIVIL PENALTIES '—Continued
Section 23 Violation vi\gllllalgiuc:n
(a) CWR installation/adjustment ProCEAUIES ..........coouiiiiiiiiiiiieiieeie ettt e 13,000 20,500
(b) CWR fastening requirements .........ccccceveeeneeennen. 13,000 20,500
(c) CWR joint installation/maintenance procedures .. 13,000 20,500
(d) CWR rail temperature requirements .................... 13,000 20,500
(€) CWR alinement .......coveiiiiierieeiieeeie et 13,000 20,500
(f) Procedures for controlling train speed on CWR track .... 13,000 20,500
(9) CWR track inSpections ........c.cccceveevrereniecnenireseseeneeeees 13,000 20,500
(h) CWR joint bar inspections ... 13,000 20,500
(i) CWR training ......ccccoveveennene. 13,000 20,500
(j) CWR records .......ccc...... 9,500 17,000
(k) CWR manual at JOD Site ........cociiiiiiiiiiie ettt 9,500 17,000
213.121(a) Rail joints 13,000 20,500
213.121(b) Rail joints 13,000 20,500
213.121(c) Rail joints 19,500 25,000
213.121(d) Rail joints 13,000 20,500
213.121(e) Rail joints 13,000 20,500
213.121(f) Rail joints ...... 13,000 20,500
213.121(g) Rail joints ..... 13,000 20,500
213.121(h) Rail joints ..... 13,000 20,500
213.122 Torch cut rail .. 13,000 20,500
213.123 Tie plates ........ 9,500 17,000
213.127 Rail fastenings ........ccoceviieiiieiineeeeen, 13,000 20,500
213.133 Turnouts and track crossings, generally .. 9,500 17,000
213.135 Switches: ....
(@) through (@) .coevceevvereenne 13,000 20,500
(h) chipped or worn points 13,000 20,500
213.137 Frogs ....cccevvrenen. 13,000 20,500
213.139 Spring rail frogs .... 13,000 20,500
213.141 Self-guarded frogs .......ccccceeeeveneeriieeneennne. 9,500 17,000
213.143 Frog guard rails and guard faCeS; QAGE .....cciiuerrieriiieriiiitieiie ettt sttt e e e sae e s 13,000 20,500
Subpart E—Track Appliances and Track-Related Devices
213.205  DEIAIIS ..uteeueiiiieeeiti ettt R R bt bt ne e e et eae e re e neeaeen 9,500 17,000
Subpart F—Inspection
213.233 Track inspections ........ccccceceeriiieiieenne. 9,500 17,000
213.235 Switches, crossings, transition devices 9,500 17,000
213.237 Inspection of rail ........cccceeviviiniiiinnenne. 13,000 20,500
213.239 Special inspections . 9,500 17,000
213.241 Inspection records ... 9,500 17,000
Subpart G—Train Operations at Track Classes 6 and Higher
213.305 Designation of qualified individuals; general qualifications .............cccccooiiiiiiiiiiniiiiieeee 19,500 25,000
213.307 Class of track; operating speed limits .........cccccceeeereernenne 19,500 25,000
213.309 Restoration or renewal of track under traffic conditions 19,500 25,000
213.311 Measuring track not under load .. 13,000 20,500
213.319 Drainage .......ccccceevveeieenneennen. 9,500 17,000
213.321 Vegetation .. 9,500 17,000
213.323 Track gage . 19,500 25,000
213.327  Alignment ..o 19,500 25,000
213.329 Curves, elevation and speed limits ... 19,500 25,000
213.331 Track surface ........ccccceveveveeeniieeseennne. 19,500 25,000
213.333 Automated vehicle inSpection SYSEMS .........cc.ooiiiiiiiiiiii s 19,500 25,000
213.335 Crossties:
() Material USEA .......oouiieie e et ae e 9,500 17,000
(b) Distribution of IeS .....cccceeeriiieeciie e 13,000 20,500
(c) Sufficient number of nondefective ties, non-concrete ... 9,500 17,000
(d) Sufficient number of nondefective, concrete ties . 19,500 25,000
(€) JOINt IS ..oveeeieeieierieeee e 19,500 25,000
(f) Track constructed without crossties ................... 19,500 25,000
(9) Non-defective ties surrounding defective ties ... 19,500 25,000
(h) Tie plates .. 19,500 25,000
(i) Tie plates ............ 19,500 25,000
213.337 Defective rails .......cceeeveeneee 19,500 25,000
213.339 Inspection of rail in service .. 19,500 25,000
213.341 Inspection of new rail ........ccccccvvveennnnnne 19,500 25,000
213.343 Continuous welded rail (a) through (h) .......... 19,500 25,000
213.345 Vehicle qualification testing (a) through (b) ... 19,500 25,000
(C) through (€) .eeeuveeeeeeiiieecceeee e 19,500 25,000
213.347 Automotive or railroad crossings at grade ..... 13,000 20,500
213.349 Rail end mismatch .........cccccvriiiiiiiiiiiicn, 13,000 20,500
213.351(@) Ral JOINS ..o e e 19,500 25,000
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APPENDIX B TO PART 213—SCHEDULE OF CIVIL PENALTIES '—Continued

’ L Willful
Section 23 Violation violation
P T Lo N (o) 2 =TT o) USSR 19,500 25,000
P T Lo I (o) T o E= T/ o o (OSSR 19,500 25,000
P R Lo I (o) 2 =TT o) PSSP 19,500 25,000
213.351(e) Rail joints .. 13,000 20,500
213.351(f) Rail joints ... 19,500 25,000
213.351(g) R JOINS ...ttt b e b e bt e et e eae e et et e et eneenaeeneenaeaneen 19,500 25,000
P B TR 1 Y2 o (oo o U | A = U SRR 9,500 17,000
213.353 Turnouts, crossovers, transition devices .... 19,500 25,000
213.355 Frog guard rails and guard faces; gage 13,000 20,500
P T L A B 1T - V1 OSSR USRRP 9,500 17,000
213.359  Track SHffNESS ....veiiiiiiie ittt e et e e et e e e e e e e e e e e ab e e e e aare e e enreeeaanaeeeanreas 19,500 25,000
213.361 Right of way ......... 9,500 17,000
213.365 Visual inspections ... 19,500 25,000
213.367 SPECIal INSPECHONS ....oiiiiiieiiiiie ettt e et e e ettt e e et e e e s ate e e s neeeeanbeeesanseeesnnseeeanneeeennneas 19,500 25,000
213.369  INSPECHIONS FECOITS ....eeiiiiiiiiiiiie et ett e sttt ettt e ettt e et e e e be e e e et e e e e aee e e e ane e e e anb e e e e sneeesanreeeannreeeannnas 9,500 17,000

1A penalty may be assessed against an individual only for a willful violation. The Administrator reserves the right to assess a penalty of up to
$100,000 for any violation where circumstances warrant. See 49 CFR part 209, appendix A.

2|n addition to assessment of penalties for each instance of noncompliance with the requirements identified by this footnote, track segments
designated as excepted track that are or become ineligible for such designation by virtue of noncompliance with any of the requirements to which
this footnote applies are subject to all other requirements of part 213 until such noncompliance is remedied.

3The penalty schedule uses section numbers from 49 CFR part 213. If more than one item is listed as a type of violation of a given section,
each item is also designated by a “penalty code,” which is used to facilitate assessment of civil penalties, and which may or may not correspond
to any subsection designation(s). For convenience, penalty citations will cite the CFR section and the penalty code, if any. FRA reserves the
right,lghﬁulddli#gation become necessary, to substitute in its complaint the CFR citation in place of the combined CFR and penalty code citation,
should they differ.

PART 214—[AMENDED] Authority: 49 U.S.C. 20103, 20107; 28 6. Appendix A to part 214 is revised
U.S.C. 2461, note; and 49 CFR 1.49. to read as follows:
5. The authority citation for part 214

continues to read as follows:

APPENDIX A TO PART 214—SCHEDULE OF CIVIL PENALTIES *

. - Willful
Section2 Violation violation
Subpart B—Bridge Worker Safety Standards
214.103 Fall protection:
(i) Failure to provide fall ProtECHON .........oiiiiiiiiei et $13,000 $20,500
(i) Failure to uSe fall ProtECION ........oiiiiiiieiee ettt sar e e e 19,500 25,000
214.105 Standards and practices:
(a) General:
(1) Fall protection used for other purposes ..... 9,500 17,000
(2) Failure to remove from service ................... 9,500 17,000
(8) Failure to protect from deterioration . 9,500 17,000
(4) Failure to inspect and remove .......... 13,000 20,500
(5) Failure to train .......cccccceevieeiiniiieeinne 13,000 20,500
(6) Failure to provide for prompt rescue 13,000 20,500
(7) Failure to prevent damage ............... 9,500 17,000
(8) Failure to use proper connectors ..... 9,500 17,000
(9) Failure to use proper anChOrages ........ccoocuiiciiiiiiiiiiiie et 9,500 17,000
(b) Fall arrest system:
(1)—(17) Failure to provide conforming eqUIPMENT .........cociiiiiiiiiiieie e 9,500 17,000
(c) Safety net systems:
(1) Failure to install CloSe 10 WOIKPIACE ......eevieviieiiieeciee ettt e et e et e e e e e e e nnneeeas 9,500 17,000
(2) Failure to provide fall arrest if over 30 fEet ........cooiiiiiiiiiic e 13,000 20,500
(8) Failure to provide for unobstructed fall .......... 13,000 20,500
(4) Failure to test ......cccoeeiiiiiieeee 9,500 17,000
(5) Failure to use proper equipment ................... 9,500 17,000
(6) Failure to prevent contact with surface below ... 13,000 20,500
(7) Failure to properly install ............cccoceenienen. 13,000 20,500
(8) Failure to remove defective nets ... 13,000 20,500
(9) Failure to inspect .........cccoeniienens 13,000 20,500
(10) Failure to remove objects ........c.cccccevreeennen. 5,500 10,000
(11)—(13) Failure to use conforming eqUIPMENt ........ccciiiiiiiiiiie e 9,500 17,000
214.107 Working over water:
(a)(i) Failure to provide life VEST ... 13,000 20,500
(i) Failure to use life vest .... 13,000 20,500
(c) Failure to inspect .........ccccceeenee. 9,500 17,000
(€)(i) Failure to provide NG DUOYS .......coiiiiiiiiiiiiie ittt sare e 13,000 20,500
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APPENDIX A TO PART 214—SCHEDULE OF CIVIL PENALTIES T—Continued

: I Willful
Section 2 Violation violation
(i) Failure to USE MNG DUOYS ....ccoiiiiiiiiii s | eesresres e enes 17,000
(f)(i) Failure to provide skiff 9,500 17,000
(ii) FAIIUIE 10 USE SKIff ...iiiieeeiiiee et e e e e e st e e e st e e s nee e e ssaeaesnseeeesnseneessnneennsnnns | eessseessssseessnsseeennnens 17,000
214.109 Scaffolding:
(a)—(f) Failure to provide conforming EQUIPMENT ..........cciiiiiiiiiiiieiie e 13,000 20,500
214.113 Head protection:
(2) (1) FaIlUre 10 PrOVIE ....ceiiuieieiieeieet ettt r ettt n e e e nnesmnenne e e nnesneen 13,000 20,500
(i) Failure to USE ..cceeeieeeiiiee e 13,000 20,500
(b) or (c) Failure to provide conforming eqUIPMENt ...........coiiiiiiiiiiiiii e 9,500 17,000
214.115 Foot protection:
(a)(i) Failure to require use of 9,500 17,000
L I = LU T = (o T = P 9,500 17,000
214.117 Eye and face protection:
(2)(1) FAIIUIE 10 PrOVIAE ..eeiieeieeeiieeeiee et e et et e e e e e e et e e et e e et e e e enta e e e snteeeannaee e sseeesnseeeenneeeeanneeeennnes 9,500 17,000
(i) Failure to use ... 5,500 10,000
(b) Failure to use conforming equipment ... 9,500 17,000
(c) Use of defective equipment ................... 9,500 17,000
(d) Failure to provide for COrreCtiVE IEBNSES ......cccuueieieiie et e e nee e e nnneas 9,500 17,000
Subpart C—Roadway Worker Protection Rule
214.303 Railroad on-track safety programs, generally:
(a) Failure of a railroad to implement an On-track Safety Program ...........ccccoceveriininienieieneceenesens 19,500 25,000
(b) On-track Safety Program of a railroad includes no internal monitoring procedure ..........c.cccoceeveeene 9,500 17,000
214.305 Compliance Dates:
Failure of a railroad to comply by the specified dates ...........cccoiiiiiiiiiiiiii e 9,500 17,000
214.307 Review and approval of individual on-track safety programs by FRA:
(a)(i) Failure to notify FRA of adoption of On-track Safety Program ..........ccccooiiiiiiiniinccnec e 2,500 5,000
(i) Failure to designate primary person to contact for program review ............ccccccevveiiiniiiieennen. 2,500 5,000
214.309 On-track safety program documents:
(1) On-track Safety Manual not provided to prescribed employees ...........cccceciveriiininiiniiie s 9,500 17,000
(2) On-track Safety Program documents issued in fragments ..........ccccoieiiiiiiiiiiiinieeseeee e 5,500 10,000
214.311 Responsibility of employers:
(b) Roadway worker required by employer to foul a track during an unresolved challenge ................... 19,500 25,000
(c) Roadway workers not provided with written procedure to resolve challenges of on-track safety
o]0 To7=To [ 1] Y= PR 9,500 17,000
214.313 Responsibility of individual roadway workers:
(a) Failure to follow railroad’s on-track safety rules .........ccccoeeiiieniiiiiniieec s 25,000
(b) Roadway worker fouling a track when not necessary in the performance of duty ...................... 25,000
(c) Roadway worker fouling a track without ascertaining that provision is made for on-track safety ..... 25,000
(d) Roadway worker failing to notify employer of determination of improper on-track safety provisions 25,000
214.315 Supervision and communication:
(a) Failure of employer to provide job briefing ... 25,000
(b) Incomplete Job DrEfiNg .......coceiiiiiiiiieee e 20,500
(c)(i) Failure to designate roadway worker in charge of roadway work group .........cccccceeeeerieenen. 20,500
(i) Designation of more than one roadway worker in charge of one roadway work group ... 17,000
(iii) Designation of non-qualified roadway worker in charge of roadway work group ............ 20,500
(d)(i) Failure to notify roadway workers of on-track safety procedures in effect ..........cccccovviininiinnnens 20,500
(i) Incorrect information provided to roadway workers regarding on-track safety procedures in ef-
LS ST 13,000 20,500
(iii) Failure to notify roadway workers of change in on-track safety procedures ................. 13,000 20,500
(e)(i) Failure of lone worker to communicate with designated employee for daily job briefing .. 9,500 17,000
(i) Failure of employer to provide means for lone worker to receive daily job briefing ................... 13,000 20,500
214.317 On-track safety procedures, generally:
On-track safety rules conflict with this Part ...........ccooiiiiiiii s 19,500 25,000
214.319 Working limits, generally:
(a) Nonqualified roadway worker in charge of working limitS ............ccceiiiiiiiiiii e 13,000 20,500
(b) More than one roadway worker in charge of working limits on the same track segment .... 13,000 20,500
(c)(1) Working limits released without notifying all affected roadway workers ............ccccoceerienen. 19,500 25,000
(2) Working limits released before all affected roadway workers are otherwise protected 19,500 25,000
214.321 Exclusive track occupancy:
(b) Improper transmission of authority for exclusive track occupancy ...........ccccceceees 9,500 17,000
(b)(1) Failure to repeat authority for exclusive track occupancy to issuing employee ..... 9,500 17,000
(2) Failure to retain possession of written authority for exclusive track occupancy .. 5,500 10,000
(3) Failure to record authority for exclusive track occupancy when issued .............. 13,000 20,500
(c) Limits of exclusive track occupancy not identified by proper physical features ..........cccccoooiriininns 19,500 25,000
(d)(1) Movement authorized into limits of exclusive track occupancy without authority of roadway
o] g T o] o =T o = PSPPI 19,500 25,000
(2) Movement authorized within limits of exclusive track occupancy without authority of roadway
WOFKET IN CRAIGE ...ttt et e et e e e e e e e s e e e s e e e snr e e e sanr e e e annneenannnas 19,500 25,000
(3) Movement within limits of exclusive track occupancy exceeding restricted speed without au-
thority of roadway WOrKEr iN Charge ...........ooceiiiiiiiiiie it 19,500 25,000
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APPENDIX A TO PART 214—SCHEDULE OF CIVIL PENALTIES T—Continued

: I Willful
Section 2 Violation violation
214.323 Foul time:
(a) Foul time authority overlapping movement authority of train or equipment 19,500 25,000
(b) Failure to repeat foul time authority t0 iSSUING €MPIOYEE .......oovuiiiiiiiiiiiiiie e 9,500 17,000
214.325 Train coordination:
(a) Train coordination limits established where more than one train is authorized to operate ............... 13,000 20,500
(b)(1) Train coordination established with train not visible to roadway worker at the time ........ 9,500 17,000
(2) Train coordination established with moving train .........c.ccccceeirienniinneceeee 9,500 17,000
(3) Coordinated train moving without authority of roadway worker in charge ............... 13,000 20,500
(4) Coordinated train releasing movement authority while working limits are in effect ................... 13,000 20,500
214.327 Inaccessible track:
(a) Improper control of entry to iNACCESSIDIE TraCK ..........cociiiiiiiiiiiii e 13,000 20,500
(5) Remotely controlled switch not properly secured by control operator ..........ccccccoeeeieeriiinneennen. 13,000 20,500
(b) Train or equipment moving within inaccessible track limits without permission of roadway worker
1T ed T 1o = TP OO 13,000 20,500
(c) Unauthorized train or equipment located within inaccessible track limits ...........cccccoviiiiniiieniennens 13,000 20,500
214.329 Train approach warning provided by watchmen/lookouts:
(a) Failure to give timely warning of approaching train ...........ccccoiiiiiiiiiii s 19,500 25,000
(b)(1) Failure of watchman/lookout to give full attention to detecting approach of train .. 13,000 20,500
(2) Assignment of other duties to watchman/IoOKOUL ...........cccoeciiiiiiiiiiiniiiee e 19,500 25,000
(c) Failure to provide proper warning Signal deVICES .........cceieeiiiiiiiiiiieiie ettt 9,500 17,000
(d) Failure to maintain position to receive train approach warning signal 13,000 20,500
(e) Failure to communicate proper warning signal ..........cccccoeeeeriierieens 13,000 20,500
(f)(1) Assignment of nonqualified person as watchman/lookout .................... 13,000 20,500
(2) Nonqualified person accepting assignment as watchman/lookout ...... 9,500 17,000
(g) Failure to properly equip a watchman/IooKOoUt ...........cccoiiiiiiiiiiiiee e 9,500 17,000
214.331 Definite train location:
(a) Definite train location established where prohibited ............ccccooveiiiiiiiiin e 13,000 20,500
(b) Failure to phase out definite train location by required date . 9,500 17,000
(d)(1) Train location information issued by unauthorized person ..... 13,000 20,500
(2) Failure to include all trains operated on train location list ..........c.cccoooiiiiiiiiiiinee, 19,500 25,000
(5) Failure to clear track 10 minutes before earliest departure time of train at last station prior to
work location, or failure to remain clear until such train passed ..........ccccooceeiiiiiiienieeneeee, 13,000 20,500
(6) Train passing station before time shown in train location list ..........c.ccooviiiiiiiiiiiienee 19,500 25,000
(7) Nonqualified person using definite train location to establish on-track safety .............ccccceeeene. 13,000 20,500
214.333 Informational line-ups of trains:
(a) Informational line-ups of trains used for on-track safety where prohibited .............ccccoiiiiiiniinics 19,500 25,000
(b) Informational line-up procedures inadequate to protect roadway WOrkers ...........ccccoceevieniiircieennenns 19,500 25,000
(c) Failure to discontinue informational line-ups by required date ...........ccccoceeiiiiiieniiiiec e 9,500 17,000
214.335 On-track safety procedures for roadway work groups:
(a) Failure to provide on-track safety for a member of a roadway WOrk group ........c.ccceceeveeeneenieenninene 19,500 25,000
(b) Member of roadway work group fouling a track without authority of employee in charge .......... 13,000 20,500
(c) Failure to provide train approach warning or working limits on adjacent track where required ........ 19,500 25,000
214.337 On-track safety procedures for lone workers:
(b) Failure by employer to permit individual discretion in use of individual train detection .................... 19,500 25,000
(c)(1) Individual train detection used by nonqualified employee ..........cccceevieiniirieennns 13,000 20,500
(2) Use of individual train detection while engaged in heavy or distracting work .. 19,500 25,000
(8) Use of individual train detection in controlled point or manual interlocking ...... 19,500 25,000
(4) Use of individual train detection with insufficient visibility ............cccccoccoeiniies 19,500 25,000
(5) Use of individual train detection with interfering noise ...... 19,500 25,000
(6) Use of individual train detection while a train is passing ........ 19,500 25,000
(d) Failure to maintain access to place of safety clear of live tracks .. 19,500 25,000
(e) Lone worker unable to maintain vigilant lookout ..............c.ccceeee. 19,500 25,000
(f)(1) Failure to prepare written statement of on-track safety . 5,500 10,000
(2) Incomplete written statement of on-track safety ........................ 2,500 5,000
(8) Failure to produce written statement of on-track safety to FRA ........cooiiiiiiiiieeee, 2,500 5,000
214.339 Audible warning from trains:
(a) Failure to require audible warning from trains ................... 9,500 17,000
(b) Failure of train to give audible warning where required 9,500 17,000
214.341 Roadway maintenance machines:
(a) Failure of on-track safety program to include provisions for safety near roadway maintenance ma-
chines 19,500 25,000
(b) Failure to provide operating instructions ...........c.cccocceiiiiiennenne 9,500 17,000
(1) Assignment of nonqualified employee to operate machine . 13,000 20,500
(2) Operator unfamiliar with safety instructions for machine ..... 13,000 20,500
(3) Roadway worker working with unfamiliar maching ...........cccccoiiiiiiiniii e 13,000 20,500
(c) Roadway maintenance machine not clear of passing trains or operation of machine component
closer than four feet to adjacent track without procedural iNStructions .............ccoecveeiiiiieiienieeneeee 19,500 25,000
214.343 Training and qualification, general:
(a)(1) Assignment of roadway worker duties to employee that is not trained or qualified ............ 13,000 20,500
(a)(2) Acceptance of roadway worker assignment by employee that is not trained or qualified .. 13,000 20,500
(b)(1) Failure to provide initial traiNing .........coiiiiiiiii e e 13,000 20,500
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Section 2 Violation vi\gllllal;ciuoln
(b)(2) Failure to provide annual traiNiNg .........ccceeoiiiiiiiiie e 9,500 17,000
(c) Failure to provide training to employee other than a roadway worker on functions related to on-
track safety .....ooooviiii s 13,000 20,500
(d)(1) Failure to maintain records of qualifications ... 9,500 17,000
(2) Incomplete records of qualifications ..............cccc...... 5,500 10,000
(8) Failure to provide records of qualifications to FRA .... 2,500 5,000
214.345 Training for all roadway workers ................... 3 3
214.347 Training and qualification for lone workers ......... 3 3
214.349 Training and qualification of watchmen/lookouts 3 3
214.351 Training and qualification of flagMEN ..........cooiiiiiiii s 3 3
214.353 Training and qualification of roadway workers who provide on-track safety for roadway work
[o 10101 o - PSSP SPPP 3 3
214.355 Training and qualification in on-track safety for operators of roadway maintenance machines ...... 3 3
Subpart D—On-Track Roadway Maintenance Machines and Hi-Rail Vehicles
214.503 Good-faith challenges; procedures for notification and resolution:
(a) Failure of employee to notify employer that the machine or vehicle does not comply with this sub-
part or has a condition inhibiting safe Operation ... | e 20,500
(b) Roadway worker required to operate machine or vehicle when good-faith challenge not resolved 19,500 25,000
(c) Failure of employer to have or follow written procedures to resolve good-faith challenges .............. 19,500 25,000
214.505 Required environmental control and protection systems for new on-track roadway maintenance
machines with enclosed cabs:
(a) Failure to equip new machines with required SYStEMS ........ccooiiiiiiiiiiiii e 19,500 25,000
(b) Failure of new or existing machines to protect employees from exposure to air contaminants . 19,500 25,000
(c) Failure of employer to maintain required list of machines or make list available .... 9,500 17,000
(d) Removal of “designated machine” from list before retired or sold ..........ccccecvvieiinenen. 9,500 17,000
(e) Personal respiratory protective equipment not provided when ventilation system fails . 19,500 25,000
(f) Personal respiratory protective equipment fails to meet required standards .............cccocceiiiiiiiiinens 19,500 25,000
(g) Other new machines with enclosed cabs not equipped with operable heating and ventilation sys-
L0 TSP P PP PRSPPI 19,500 25,000
(h) Nonenclosed station not equipped with covering, where feasible ............ccoccoeiieiiiniiiiie 19,500 25,000
214.507 Required safety equipment for new on-track roadway maintenance machines:
(a)(1)—(5) Failure to equip new machine or provide protection as specified in these paragraphs ......... 19,500 25,000
(a)(6)—(7) Failure to equip new machine with first-aid kit or operative and charged fire extinguisher ... 13,000 20,500
(b) Position for operator to stand not properly equipped to provide safe and secure position 19,500 25,000
(c) New machine not equipped with accurate speed indicator, as required 13,000 20,500
(d) As-built light weight not conspicuously displayed on new maching ..........ccoccceceeniiniieiccnec e 13,000 20,500
214.509 Required visual illumination and reflective devices for new on-track roadway maintenance ma-

Lo 31T g T= PP PSP 13,000 20,500
214.511 Required audible warning devices for new on-track roadway maintenance machines ................. 19,500 25,000
214.513 Retrofitting of existing on-track roadway maintenance machines; general:

(a) Failure to provide safe and secure position and protection from moving parts inside cab for each
roadway worker transported 0N MAaCKINE ..........oooiiiiiiiiiiie e e 19,500 25,000
(b) Horn or other audible warning device is missing, inoperable, or has noncompliant triggering
Lo gT=Ted o Fo T a1 o o TR 13,000 20,500
(c) Nlumination device or portable light missing, inoperable, improperly secured, or incapable of illu-
MINAtiNG traCk @S FEQUITEA ......cooiiiii ittt e et s s e s e e s e e e snn e e s ennneeennees 13,000 20,500
214.515 Overhead covers for existing on-track roadway maintenance machines:
(a) Failure to repair, reinstall, or maintain overhead cover as required ........... 19,500 25,000
(b) Failure to provide written response to operator’s request within 60 days 9,500 17,000
214.517 Retrofitting of existing on-track roadway maintenance machines manufactured on or after Janu-
ary 1, 1991:
(a) Failure to equip machine with change-of-direction alarm or rearward viewing device ... 19,500 25,000
(b) Failure to equip machine with operative heater ............ccccooniiiiiiiiiiniii 19,500 25,000
(c) Failure to display light weight of machine as required ...........cccocceiiiiiieniicne e 13,000 20,500
(d) Failure to equip machine with reflective material, reflective device, or operable brake lights 19,500 25,000
(e) Failure to install or replace safety glass as required ..........cccceeveerieinieiieenieeseeen 19,500 25,000
(f) Failure to equip machine with turntable restraint device or warning light as required 19,500 25,000
214.518 Safe and secure position fOr FIAErs .........ccccviiiiiieie e 19,500 25,000
214.519 Floors, decks, stairs, and ladders for on-track roadway maintenance machines ............. 19,500 25,000
214.521 Flagging equipment for on-track roadway maintenance machines and hi-rail vehicles ................ 13,000 20,500
214.523 Hi-rail vehicles:
(a) Failure to inspect hi-rail gear annUAlY ..........c.ccooiiiiiiiiiii e 19,500 25,000
(b) Failure to maintain inspection record or make record available to FRA .................. 9,500 17,000
(c) Failure to equip new hi-rail vehicle with alarm and light or beacon as required ..... 13,000 20,500
(d)(2) Failure of operator to tag, date, or report noncomplying condition ........................ 9,500 17,000
(d)(8) Failure to repair or replace noncomplying alarms, lights, or beacons as required 13,000 20,500
214.525 Towing with on-track roadway maintenance machines or hi-rail vehicles ...............cccccceiiiniinn 19,500 25,000
214.527 On-track roadway maintenance machines; inspection for compliance and schedule for repairs:
(a) Failure of operator to check on-track roadway maintenance machine for compliance ..................... 9,500 17,000
(b) Failure of operator to tag, date, or report noncomplying Condition ...........cccceevieeriiiiienieeiee e 9,500 17,000
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: — Willful
Section? Violation violation
(c)(1)-(4) Failure to meet requirements for operating on-track roadway maintenance machine with
noncomplying headlights, work lights, horn, fire extinguisher, alarm, warning light, or beacon .......... 13,000 20,500
(c)(5) Failure to repair or replace defective or missing operator’s seat within required time period ...... 19,500 25,000
214.529 In-service failure of primary braking SYStemM ..........cccoooiiiiiiiiiiic e 19,500 25,000
214.531 Schedule Of rePairS; GENETAI ......cc.eiiiiiiii ittt st sbe e st esbe e e b e saeeennes 13,000 20,500
214.533 Schedule of repairs subject to availability of parts:
(a)—(c) Failure to order necessary part(s), make repair(s), or remove on-track roadway maintenance
machine or hi-rail vehicle from service as requIred ...........cccoeeiiiiiiiiiie i 13,000 20,500
(d) Failure to maintain record or make record available to FRA .........cccoiiiiiiiiiiiiee e 9,500 17,000

1A penalty may be assessed against an individual only for a willful violation. In addition, there are certain sections of the penalty schedule for
which no penalty is listed in the ordinary violation column. These sections may only be cited as willful violations. The Administrator reserves the
right to assess a penalty of up to $100,000 for any violation where circumstances warrant. See 49 CFR part 209, appendix A.

2The penalty schedule uses section numbers from 49 CFR part 214. If more than one item is listed as a type of violation of a given section,
each item is also designated by a “penalty code,” which is used to facilitate assessment of civil penalties, and which may or may not correspond
to any subsection designation(s). For convenience, penalty citations will cite the CFR section and the penalty code, if any. FRA reserves the
right, should litigation become necessary, to substitute in its complaint the CFR citation in place of the combined CFR and penalty code citation,
should they differ.

3 See §214.343 (Training and qualification, general).

PART 215—[AMENDED] Authority: 49 U.S.C. 20103, 20107; 28 8. Appendix B to part 215 is revised
U.S.C. 2461, note; and 49 CFR 1.49. to read as follows:
7. The authority citation for part 215

continues to read as follows:

APPENDIX B TO PART 215—SCHEDULE OF CIVIL PENALTIES !

Section 2 Violation V\i,(\)/;lal.];ilf)ll’]
Subpart A—General
215.9 Movement for repair:
€Y R () T PSR URUSPTRR 1 1
(b) $5,500 $10,000
215.11 9,500 17,000
215.13  Pre-departure iNSPECHION .........ccciiiiiiiiii i s 9,500 17,000
Subpart B—Freight Car Components
Suspension System
215.103 Defective wheel:
(a) Flange thickness of:
(1) 78”7 Or 1eSS but MOre than 13/16” ......uiiiecie e e e et e e e e e e e e e nneeeeennaeean 9,500 17,000
{2 B AT o] g =YX USRI 13,000 20,500
(b) Flange height of:
(1) 1727 or greater but 1855 than T8/8” ..ot 9,500 17,000
(2 B o g 1T T (= PSSR 13,000 20,500
(c) Rim thickness of:
(1) 1746” Or 1€SS bUt MOIE thaN 58" .....eeeee e e e e e e e e e nae e e ennaeean 9,500 17,000
[ IR o g (=TT T TSP 13,000 20,500
(d) Wheel rim, flange plate hub width:
[ T =T o 1730 { = o T 9,500 17,000
(2) Crack Of 17 OF MOKE ....eeii ettt ettt et e et e e s st e e s te e e e saseee e saeeeeaneeeeeaseeesanseeeaneeeaan 13,000 20,500
(B) BIBAK .ttt R et r e n e e n e e ne s 19,500 25,000
(e) Chip or gouge in flange of:
(1) 1'2” or more but less than 15&” in length; and '2” or more but less than %&” in width 5,500 10,000
(2) 58” or more in length; or %8” or MOre iN Width .........ccooiiiiiiiiee e 9,500 17,000
(f) Slid flat or shelled spot(s):
(1)(i) One spot more than 22", but less than 3”, in length ........cccociiiriiniiie 5,500 10,000
(i) One spot 3”7 or More iN 1ENGEN ...oc.oiiiiiiie e 9,500 17,000
(2)(i) Two adjoining spots each of which is more than 2” but less than 212" in length ................... 5,500 10,000
(i) Two adjoining spots both of which are at least 2” in length, if either spot is 212" or more
(10 =T g o {0 PP PP PR TP 9,500 17,000
() LOOSE ON @XIE ...ttt ettt ettt n e E Rt r e nn e ne e nne e neeneen 19,500 25,000
(h) Overheated; discoloration extending:
(1) More than 4” but 1€SS than 472" ... 9,500 17,000(
(2) 42" or more 13,000 20,500
() WEIHEA ..ot ees e aes e e en e e enaeessensenaee s ensanseessaanaen s s anannen 13,000 20,500
215.105 Defective axle:
(B)(1) Crack Of 17 OF IESS ..ottt ettt b et e sbe e eb e e be e e b e sanennee e 9,500 17,000
(2) Crack of more than 1”7 ... 13,000 20,500
(B) BIBAK ...t e e 19,500 25,000
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: o Willful
Section 2 Violation Violation
(b) Gouge in surface that is between the wheel seats and is more than &” in depth .........cccoocieiins 5,500 10,000
(c) End collar with crack or break 9,500 17,000
(e )TN o T g F= U o1V =T g T =Y SR 19,500 25,000
(e) Journal surface has: A ridge; a depression; a circumferential score; corrugation; a scratch; a con-
tinuous streak; pitting; rust; Or BICHING ....coo i 9,500 17,000
215.107 Defective plain bearing box: general:
(a)(1) No visible free oil 5,500 10,000
(2) Lubricating pad dry (no expression of oil observed when pad is compressed) ............ccccceeneee. 13,000 20,500
(b) Box lid is missing, broken, or open except to receive SErviCing .........cccoccceveeeieeniieneesee e 5,500 10,000
(c) Contains foreign matter that can be expected to damage the bearing or have a detrimental effect
on the lubrication of the journal and bearing 9,500 17,000
215.109 Defective plain bearing box: journal lubrication system:
(a) Lubricating pad has @ tEAr ..........ccciiiiiiiiiicie e e 5,500 10,000
(b) Lubricating pad scorched, burned, or glazed .................... 9,500 17,000
(c) Lubricating pad contains decaying or deteriorating fabric . 9,500 17,000
(d) Lubricating pad has an exposed center core or metal parts contacting the journal .. 9,500 17,000
(e) Lubricating pad is missing or not in contact with the journal .............cccoooiiiiiiii e 13,000 20,500
215.111 Defective plain bearing:
(8) MISSING ..ttt sttt h e e b e b e bt b e s e e e bt e s e e e b e saneete e 19,500 25,000
(b) Bearing liner is loose or has piece broken out .. 9,500 17,000
(o) IO AT 4 g 1= 1 LYo LSRR TURRPRRR 19,500 25,000
215.113 Defective plain bearing wedge:
(8) MISSING <.ttt b e s b e e e e b e e b b e bt e s he e b e e e e e e be e seeere e 19,500 25,000
(b) Cracked .... 9,500 17,000
(C) Broken ......cccevevvenenienieneeniene 13,000 20,500
(d) Not located in its deSigN POSItION .........iiiiiiiiiiiiieie e eee e 9,500 17,000
215.115 Defective roller bearing:
L= L O AT 1 41= =1 (T SR 19,500 25,000
(2)(i) Cap SCrew(s) 100SE ......ccceevereeriirieieneee e . 13,000 20,500
(i) Cap screw lock broken, missing or improperly applled 5,500 10,000
(3) Seal is loose or damaged, or permits leakage of lubricant .... 5,500 10,000
(b)(1) Not inspected and tested after derailment 13,000 20,500
(2) Not disassembled after derailment ... 9,500 17,000
(3) Not repaired or replaced after derailment ...........ccooocieeicii i e 13,000 20,500
215.117 Defective roller bearing adapter:
(= L - To] (= Te o o] o1 (=Y o TSR 9,500 17,000
(b) Not in its design position 13,000 20,500
(o) I e ¢ T o T T 14 T3 oo L1 o SR 9,500 17,000
215.119 Defective freight car truck:
(a)(1) A side frame or bolster that iS DrOKEN .........cooiciieiiiiie e e e 19,500 25,000
(2)(i) Side frame or bolster with crack of: ¥4” or more, but less than 1” .. 9,500 17,000
L T o g .4 To T = RS 13,000 20,500
(b) A snubbing device that is ineffective or missing .. 9,500 17,000
(c) Side bearing(s):
(1) Assembly MiSSING OF DrOKEN .....c..oiiiiiiiiii e s 19,500 25,000
(2) In contact EXCEPt DY AESIGN ..cuveiiuiiiiieiii e e 13,000 20,500
(3), (4) Total clearance at one end or at diagonally opposite sides of:
(i) More than 4” but NOt MOre than 17 ........c.oe i e e e e 9,500 17,000
(1)) MOTE than 17 .ottt et ettt e b e e e ab e e bt e sate e beeenbeesaeeenseesneeenbeaaneeas 13,000 20,500
(d) Truck spring(s):
(1) Do not maintain travel or load 9,500 17,000
{2 @044 o (=T=T=T=To =] o SR 9,500 17,000
(3) Outer truck springs broken or missing:
(1) TWO OULET SPHINGS weueiiitiiiiiieie ettt ettt ettt b et bt sttt et e abe e et e e naeeebeesane s 9,500 17,000
(i) Three or more outer springs ... 13,000 20,500
(e) Truck bolster-center plate interference .... 13,000 20,500
(f) Brake beam shelf SUPPOIt WOIN ........ouiiiiiii e e 9,500 17,000
Car Bodies
215.121 Defective car body:
(a) Has less than 212" clearance from the top of rail ........ccccoivieiii e 9,500 17,000
(b) Car center sill is:
(1) BIOKEN ..ttt ettt et et 19,500 25,000
(2) Cracked more than 6”7 ........ccccocevervinenicnceecreen 9,500 17,000
(3) Bent or buckled more than 274" in any 6" length ... 9,500 17,000
(c) Coupler carrier that is broken or missing ........c.ccccevueee. 9,500 17,000
(d) Car door not equipped with operative safety hangers ... 19,500 25,000
(e)(1) Center plate not properly secured ..........ccccovvreeneene 19,500 25,000
(2) Portion missing .... 9,500 17,000
(3) Broken ........cccceeuenen. 19,500 25,000
[ LYo X e g 01T (= o] - Lo 9,500 17,000
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(f) Broken sidesill, crossbearer, or body DOISLEN ..........cciiiiiiiiiiie e 9,500 17,000
Draft System
215.123 Defective couplers:
(a) Shank bent out of @lIGNMENT .......oouiiiiee et a e sare e 5,500 10,000
(b) Crack in highly stressed junction area .... 9,500 17,000
(c) Coupler knuckle broken or cracked ...... 9,500 17,000
(d) Coupler knuckle pin or thrower that is missing or inoperative . 9,500 17,000
(e) Coupler retainer pin lock that is miSSING OF BroKEN .........ccciiiiiiiiiiieie e 5,500 10,000
(f) Coupler with following conditions: Locklift inoperative; no anticreep protection; or coupler lock is
missing, inoperative, bent, cracked, or broken 9,500 17,000
215.125 Defective UNCOUPIING EVICE .....couuiiiiiiiie ettt e e e s ab e e s b e e e ane e e enneas 9,500 17,000
215.127 Defective draft arrangement:
(a) Draft gear that iS INOPEratiVe ........c.coiiiiiiiiiiiii e e 9,500 17,000
(b) Yoke that is broken ............... 9,500 17,000
(c) End of car cushioning unit is leaking or inoperative ............ccccceeueen. 9,500 17,000
(d) Vertical coupler pin retainer plate missing or has missing fastener . 19,500 25,000
(e) Draft key or draft key retainer that is inoperative or missing ............ 19,500 25,000
(f) Follower plate that is missing or broken ...........ccccoceviiiiennns 9,500 17,000
215.129 Defective CUShIONING GBVICE ....ccouiiiiiiiie et et e e s e et e 9,500 17,000
Subpart C—Restricted Equipment
215.203 RESHICIEA CAIS ..ot e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e s ataaeeeeeeeeananraeeeeeeeennrnaeeaas 9,500 17,000
Subpart D—Stenciling
215,307 GENEIAI ...ttt h et h et h bbbttt ean et ene e b ene e nesae e 5,500 10,000
215.303 Stenciling Of reSIHCIEA CAIS .......oocuiiiiiiiii ettt sae e enns 5,500 10,000
215.305 Stenciling of MaiNtENANCE-0f-WAY .......ccciiiiiiiieiiee et e e sneeees 5,500 10,000

1A penalty may be assessed against an individual only for a willful violation. Generally, when two or more violations of these regulations are

discovered with respect to a single freight car that is placed or continued in service by a railroad, the appropriate penalties set forth above are
aggregated up to a maximum of $25,000 per day. A failure to perform, with respect to a particular freight car, the predeparture inspection re-
quired by §215.13 of this part will be treated as a violation separate and distinct from, and in addition to, any substantive violative conditions
found on the car. The Administrator reserves the right to assess a penalty of up to $100,000 for any violation where circumstances warrant. See
49 CFR part 209, appendix A. Failure to observe any condition for movement set forth in paragraphs (a) and (c) of §215.9 will deprive the rail-
road of the benefit of the movement-for-repair provision and make the railroad and any responsible individuals liable for penalty under the par-
ticular regulatory section(s) concerning the substantive defect(s) present on the freight car at the time of movement. Maintenance-of-way equip-
ment not stenciled in accordance with §215.305 is subject to all requirements of this part. See §215.3(c)(3).

2The penalty schedule uses section numbers from 49 CFR part 215. If more than one item is listed as a type of violation of a given section,
each item is also designated by a “penalty code,” which is used to facilitate assessment of civil penalties, and which may or may not correspond
to any subsection designation(s). For convenience, penalty citations will cite the CFR section and the penalty code, if any. FRA reserves the
right, should litigation become necessary, to substitute in its complaint the CFR citation in place of the combined CFR and penalty code citation,

should they differ.

Authority: 49 U.S.C. 20103, 20107; 28
U.S.C. 2461, note; and 49 CFR 1.49.

10. Appendix A to part 217 is revised
to read as follows:

PART 217—[AMENDED]

9. The authority citation for part 217
continues to read as follows:

Appendix A to Part 217—Schedule Of
Civil Penalties 1

. o Willful
Section? Violation Violation
Subpart A—General
217.7 Operating Rules:
$5,500 $10,000
5,500 10,000
5,500 10,000
217.9 Operational tests and inspections:
(a) Failure to impIEemMENt @ PrOGIaM ........cciiiiiieiertiee ettt ettt e et enenre e e nnesnnens 9,500— 17,000-
19,500 25,000
(b) Railroad and railroad testing officer responsibilities:
(1) Failure to provide instruction, examination, or field training, or failure to conduct tests in ac-
cordance With PrOGram .........cccoiiiiiiiiii e 13,000 20,500
(2) RECOrdS ...ceeeeiieieiiiieeiecieeeeeeiee 9,500 17,000
(c) Record of program; program iNCOMPIELE .........cceriiiiiiiiiiiieecee e e 9,500— 17,000-
19,500 25,000
(d) Records of individual tests and INSPECLIONS ........c.cccuiiiiiiiiiiiiieie e 9,500 17,000
(e) Failure to retain copy of or conduct:.
(1)(1) QUAMEITY FEVIBW ...ttt sr e e nr e s e s n e n e 13,000 20,500
(1)(ii) and (2) Six month review 13,000 20,500
[ ) T 1o o S 9,500 17,000
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Section 2 Violation oyl
(F) ANNUAL SUMMEATY ..ottt h et e et e bt e bt e e et e e sheesab e e b eeenbeesaeeeabeesmeeeabeeaaeeanbeesaseeseaans 9,500 17,000
(h) Failure to timely or appropriately amend program after disapproval ........cc.ccccerviinieiicinienieeneens 13,000— 20,500
19,500 25,000
217.11 Program of instruction on operating rules:
6 PP P PPN PRSPPI 5,500- 10,000—
13,000 20,500
(o) PP PTURTPR PRSPPI 5,500- 10,000—
13,000 20,500

1A penalty may be assessed against an individual only for a willful violation. The Administrator reserves the right to assess a penalty of up to
$100,000 for any violation where circumstances warrant. See 49 CFR part 209, appendix A.

2The penalty schedule uses section numbers from 49 CFR part 217. If more than one item is listed as a type of violation of a given section,
each item is also designated by a “penalty code,” which is used to facilitate assessment of civil penalties, and which may or may not correspond
to any subsection designation(s). For convenience, penalty citations will cite the CFR section and the penalty code, if any. FRA reserves the
right, should litigation become necessary, to substitute in its complaint the CFR citation in place of the combined CFR and penalty code citation,
should they differ.

PART 218—[AMENDED] Authority: 49 U.S.C. 20103, 20107; 28 12. Appendix A to part 218 is revised
U.S.C. 2461, note; and 49 CFR 1.49. to I‘ead as follows:
11. The authority citation for part 218

continues to read as follows:

APPENDIX A TO PART 218—SCHEDULE OF CIVIL PENALTIES !

Section2 Violation vivc\)/II!aIIiuoln
Subpart B—Blue Signal Protection of Workmen
218.22 Utility employees:
() Employee qQUAlIfICAtiONS .......ccueiiiiiiieitiee ettt $5,500 $10,000
(D) CONCUITENT SEIVICE ....ueiiiiiieieeitee ettt ettt b et e e he e st e et e e e ab e e she e et e e sabeebeesaeeenbeenaneeeeeaas 9,500 17,000
(c) Assignment conditions:
(1) No controlling I0COMOTIVE .........oiiuiiiiiecee et s 9,500 17,000
(2) Empty cab ......cccoeeviiiiie 9,500 17,000
(3)(4) Improper communication ........ 9,500 17,000
(5) Performing functions not listed ... 5,500 10,000
(d) Improper release .........ccoeceeieeeneeniieeie e 5,500 10,000
(f) More than three utility employees with one crew .. 5,500 10,000
218.23  BIUE SIGNAI AISPIAY ....couriiiieiiii it e e 9,500 17,000
218.24 One-person crew:
(a)(1) Equipment not coupled or insufficiently separated .............ccociriieiiiiieiic e 5,500 10,000
(a)(2) Unoccupied locomotive cab NOt SECUIEA ...........cceiiiiiiiiiiiieii et 9,500 17,000
(b) Helper Service ........ccooieiiiiieeiieiee e 5,500 10,000
218.25 Workmen on a main track 9,500 17,000
218.27 Workmen on track other than main track:
(a) Protection provided except that signal not displayed at switch .. 5,500 10,000
(L) IR taL e T8 e o T (=Y SO PSPV P OPRTPPRPRRPPPT 9,500 17,000
218.29 Alternate methods of protection:
(a)(1) Protection provided except that signal not displayed at SWItCh ...........ccoceviiiiiiiiiiiiiiie e 5,500 10,000
(2)(2) TNIOUGN (B)(8) --veeveeeureeieeeie ettt sttt a e ra et et e bt e eh e et nae e bt ae e n e nanenre e 9,500 17,000
(b)(1) Protection provided except that signal not displayed at SWitCh ............ccoceiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiie 5,500 10,000
(b)(2) through (b)(4) 9,500 17,000
(c) Use of derails ........... 9,500 17,000
(d) EMEIGENCY FEPAIIS ...ttt sttt st e et e e e bt e s be e st e e s he e e b e e s ae e s beesaneeneeaas 9,500 17,000
218.30 Remotely controlled switches:
6= )= LT I (o) TSP PSPPSRI 9,500 17,000
(o) ISP P PRSPPSO 2,500 5,000
Subpart C—Protection of Trains and Locomotives
218.35 Yard limits:
9,500 17,000
2,500 5,000
9,500 17,000
9,500 17,000
P TS I o 1843 o I o) 0= = o] o1 SRR 9,500 17,000
218.41 Noncompliance with hump Operations rUle ............ccccooiiiiiiiiiiiii e 9,500 17,000
Subpart D—Prohibition against Tampering with Safety Devices
218.55  TAMPEIING ..eiitiiiiiiiie ettt ettt ettt b e et e e bt et e e st e e e bt sae e e bt e ea bt e be e s et e nbeenneenbeeereennes | heesreesseesneenreeanes 17,000
218.57
(i) Knowingly operating or permitting operation of disabled equipment ..........c.ccccccieriiniiiinie e 5,500 | .eooreeieieiieeeeieene
(i) Willfully operating or permitting operation of disabled equipment e | e 10,000
218.59 Operation of disabled qQUIPMENT .........cueii i e e e e e snee e e sneeeennneas 5,500 10,000
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APPENDIX A TO PART 218—SCHEDULE OF CIVIL PENALTIES '—Continued
Section 2 Violation vmg{ﬂn
Subpart E—Protection of Occupied Camp Cars
218.71 Warning Signal Display:
() WAINING SIGNAIS .....eeiiiiiiie ettt et st sb e st be e bt be e s be e sanesreeaa 5,500 10,000
(1) Cars may not be moved 9,500 17,000
(2) Rolling equipment may not be on same track reducing view of warning signal ............c.cce..... 5,500 10,000
(3) Rolling equipment may not pass a warning Signal .........ccooceereeriienieneeree e 9,500 17,000
(4) Signal will be displayed immediately and only removed prior to departure .........cccccccevceevereenne. 5,500 10,000
218.75 Methods of protection for camp cars on main track:
(a) Warning signals near each switch With aCCESS ..........cociiiiiiiiiiiii e 5,500 10,000
(b) Immediate notification Of OCCUPALION .......coiiiiiiiiiiieie e e 9,500 17,000
(c) Alerting affected personnel of cars 5,500 10,000
(d) Manual switched lined and locked 9,500 17,000
(e) Remote SWiItChes ProteCted ..o e 9,500 17,000
218.77 Remotely controlled switches:
(a) Remote switch lined and [0CKEA ..........oouiiiiii e et 9,500 17,000
(b) Operator may not remove locking device without permission . 9,500 17,000
(C) RECOIAKEEPING ...ttt ettt sttt et e e bt st e et e e s bt e s b e e s b e e s be e e bt e s beeesbeenanesnee e 2,500 5,000
(d) Derail and signal when located on Main traCk ...........coceiiiiiiiiiiiiieee e 9,500 17,000
218.79 Alternative methods for protection:
(a) Other than main track:
(1) Warning signal at each switch providing aCCESS ........ccccieiiiiiiiiiiiiii e 9,500 17,000
(2) Switches lINed and I0CKEA .........couiiiiiiiieie ettt reeseee s 9,500 17,000
(3) Derails 50 feet away when speed is SMPH .........cocoiiiiiiiiiii e 9,500 17,000
(b) Except as provided in (a) on other than main track:
(1) Derails 150 feet away from €qUIPMENT .........cooiiiiiiiiii e 9,500 17,000
(2) Derails must be locked in derailing position with signal ...........ccociiiiiiinieen 9,500 17,000

Subpart F—Handling Equipment, Switches and Derails
218.95 Instruction, Training and Examination:
(G I (o [ =T 4 U PR PP
(b) Records ...
(c) Failure to timely or appropriately amend program after disapproval ..........ccccoiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeiiieeenes
218.97 Good Faith Challenge Procedures:
(a) Employee Responsibility FAIIUIE ..........coouiiiiiiie e

9,500-13,000
9,500
9,500-13,000

(b) through (d) Failure to adopt or implement procedures 9,500
218.99 Shoving or Pushing Movements:

(a) Failure to implement required Operating rUlE .........cceoiiiiiiiiiiei e e 13,000

(b) Failure to conduct job briefing, use a qualified employee, or establish proper protection ... 9,500-13,000

(c) Failure to observe equipment dir€CHON ........coiiiiiiiiiiiiiee e 9,500

(d) Failure to properly establish point protection within a remote control zone .. 9,500

(e) Failure to abide by operational exception reqUIrEMENTS ..........coceerieeriiiiiierie e 9,500
218.101 Leaving Equipment in the Clear:

(a) Failure to implement required Operating rUlE .........cceoiiiiiiiiiiei e e 9,500

(b) Equipment left improperly fouling .........coevieiiiiiiicieeeeee, 9,500

(c) Failure to implement procedures for identifying clearance points ...........cccovevrieeniinieneeenee e 9,500
218.103 Hand-operated switches, including crossover switches:

(a) Failure to implement required operating rule 9,500

(b) through (d) Railroad employee failures ............coociiiiiiiiiiiiei e e 9,500
218.105 Additional operational requirements for hand-operated main track switches:

(a) Failure to implement required operating rUle ...........c.cociiiiiiiiiiiii e e 13,000

(b) and (c) Railroad and employee failures ............ 9,500

(d) Failure to properly release authority IMitS ..........cccooiiiiiiiiiii e 13,000
218.107 Additional operational requirements for hand-operated crossover switches:

(a) Failure to implement required operating rule 9,500

(b) and (c) Railroad and employee failures 9,500
218.109 Hand-operated fixed derails:

(a) Failure to implement required Operating rUlE ..........c.coiiiiiieiiiee e e 9,500

(b) and (c) Railroad and employee failUreS ...........coociiiiiiiiiiiieiii e 9,500

17,000-20,500
17,000
17,000-20,500

5,000
17,000

20,500
17,000-20,500
17,000
17,000
17,000

17,000
17,000
17,000

17,000
17,000

20,500
17,000
20,500

17,000
17,000

17,000
17,000

1Except as provided for in §218.57, a penalty may be assessed against an individual only for a willful violation. In addition, there are certain
sections of the penalty schedule for which no penalty is listed in the ordinary violation column. These sections may only be cited as willful viola-
tions. The Administrator reserves the right to assess a penalty of up to $100,000 for any violation where the circumstances warrant. See 49 CFR

part 209, appendix A.

2The penalty schedule uses section numbers from 49 CFR part 218. If more than one item is listed as a type of violation of a given section,
each item is also designated by a “penalty code,” which is used to facilitate assessment of civil penalties, and which may or may not correspond
to any subsection designation(s). For convenience, penalty citations will cite the CFR section and the penalty code, if any. FRA reserves the
right, should litigation become necessary, to substitute in its complaint the CFR citation in place of the combined CFR and penalty code citation,

should they differ.
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PART 219—[AMENDED] Authority: 49 U.S.C. 20103, 20107, 20140, 14. Appendix A to part 219 is revised
21301, 21304, 21311; 28 U.S.C. 2461, note; to read as follows:
13. The authority citation for part 219  and 49 CFR 1.49(m).

continues to read as follows:

APPENDIX A TO PART 219—SCHEDULE OF CIVIL PENALTIES !

: — Willful
Section? Violation violation
Subpart A—General
219.3 Application: Railroad does not have required program $13,000 $20,500
219.11 General conditions for chemical tests:
(b)(1) Employee unlawfully refuses to participate in tesSting .........cccceveieriiiiiiiine s 5,500 10,000
(b)(2) Employer fails to give priority to medical treatment ............ccccooiiiriiriniine e 13,000 20,500
(b)(3) Employee fails to remain available ..............ccociiiiiiiiiii e 5,500 10,000
(b)(4) Employee tampers with specimen ...........cccccevviiiieinenne 5,500 10,000
(d) Employee unlawfully required to execute a waiver of rights 5,500 10,000
(e) Railroad used or authorized the use of coercion to obtain SPECIMENS ...........cccceiiiiiiiiiiiiiiniii | e 10,000
(g) Failure to meet supervisory training requirements or program of instruction not available or pro-
gram NOt COMPIETE ... e e 9,500 17,000
(h) Urine or blood specimens provided for Federal testing were used for nonauthorized testing .......... 5,500 10,000
219.23 Railroad policies:
(a) Failure to provide written notice of FRA test ................. 5,500 10,000
(b) Failure to provide written notice of basis for FRA test ... 2,500 5,000
(c) Use of Subpart C form for other test ..........cccccoevniviiene 2,500 5,000
(d) Failure to provide educational Materials ............cccoriiiiiiiiiii e 2,500 5,000
(e) Educational materials fail to explain requirements of this part and/or include required content ....... 2,500 5,000
(f) Non-Federal provisions are not clearly described as independent authority ...........ccccovoeiiinieninens 5,500 10,000
Subpart B—Prohibitions
219.101 Alcohol and drug use prohibited:
Employee violates prohibitionN(8) ........c.eeeuieriieiiieiie ettt sttt st e e e nae e ene e aa 19,500 25,000
219.103 Prescribed and over-the-counter drugs:
(a) Failure to train employee properly 0N reqUIrEMENES ........ccceririeriiienesieieseere et 5,500 10,000
219.104 Responsive action:
(a) Failure to remove employee from covered service immediately ..........ccccovveiiiiiniiniieiccee e 19,500 25,000
(b) Failure to provide Notice fOr reMOVAL ..........c.coiiiiiiiiiii e 5,500 10,000
(c) Failure to provide Prompt NEAMNG ........oociiiiiiiiiiii ettt 5,500 10,000
(d) Employee improperly returned 10 SEIVICE .........ccociiiiiiiiiiiieiieeie ettt 13,000 20,500
219.105 Railroad’s duty to prevent violations:
(a) Employee improperly permitted to remain in COVered SEIVICE .........coooviiiiriiiieeniieiienee e 19,500 25,000
(b) Failure to exercise due diligence to assure compliance with prohibition ...........cccccoiiiiiiniininnns 9,500 17,000
219.107 Consequences of unlawful refusal:
(a) Failure to disqualify an employee for nine months following a refusal ..........ccccoooiiiiiiiininnicennene 13,000 20,500
(e) Employee unlawfully returned t0 SEIVICE .........ccciiiieiirieiiiieiesee et 13,000 20,500
Subpart C—Post-Accident Toxicological Testing
219.201 Events for which testing is required:
(a) Failure to test after qualifying event (each employee not tested is a violation) .........cccccoeviniiiinens 13,000 20,500
(c)(1)(i) Failure to make good faith determination ...........c.ccccoviiiiiiiiiiiniiceee, 5,500 10,000
(c)(1)(ii) Failure to provide requested decision report to FRA .........ccoooiiiiiiiiiiiiceeee e 2,500 5,000
(c)(2) Testing performed after nonNQUAlIfyiNg EVENT ..........oooiiiiiiiiiii e 9,500 17,000
219.203 Responsibilities of railroads and employees:
(a)(1)(i) and (a)(2)(i) Failure to properly test/exclude from testing ........cccceveeriiiiieniiniee e 5,500 10,000
(a)(1)(ii) and (a)(2)(ii) Noncovered service employee tested .........cccovveerveenieinenneeene. 5,500 10,000
(b)(1) Delay in obtaining specimens due to failure to make every reasonable effort ... 5,500 10,000
(c) Independent medical facility not Utilized ...........ccoceiiiiiiiiien 5,500 10,000
(d) Failure to report event or contact FRA when intervention required ...........cccoceeinieiinceicnesieenesens 2,500 5,000
219.205 Specimen collection and handling:
(a) Failure to observe requirements with respect to specimen collection, marking and handling 5,500 10,000
(b) Failure to provide properly prepared forms with SPECIMENS ......c.cooviiiiiiiiiiiiiieeee e 2,500 5,000
(d) Failure to promptly or properly forward SPECIMENS ..........cceeiiiiiiiiiiiiie e 5,500 10,000
219.207 Fatality:
[ =V LT (= (eI (=] U PPR 13,000 20,500
(a)(1) Failure to ensure timely collection and shipment of required specimens .. 2,500 5,000
(b) Failure to request assistance When NECESSANY ..........ccoiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiecee e 5,500 10,000
219.209 Reports of tests and refusals:
(a)(1) Failure to provide telephoniC rePOrt .........cociiiiiiiii e e 2,500 5,000
(b) Failure to provide written report of refusal to test .......ccccecvveeiceiiicie e 2,500 5,000
(c) Failure to maintain report explaining why test not conducted within four hours ... 2,500 5,000
219.211 Analysis and follow-up:
(c) Failure of MRO to report review of positive results to FRA .......cccooiiiiiiiieee e 5,500 10,000
Subpart D—Testing for Cause
219.300 Mandatory reasonable suspicion testing:
(a)(1) Failure to test when reasonable suspicion criteria Met .........cccccceeiiiieicie s 19,500 25,000
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APPENDIX A TO PART 219—SCHEDULE OF CIVIL PENALTIES '—Continued

] _— Willful
Section 2 Violation violation
(a)(2) Tested when reasonable suspicion criteria NOt MEt ..........ccoviiiiiiiiiii e 9,500 17,000
219.301 Testing for reasonable cause:
(a) Event did not occur during daily tour .................... 5,500 10,000
(b)(2) Tested when accident/incident criteria not met ............. 9,500 17,000
(b)(3) Tested when operating rules violation criteria NOt MEt ...........cocieiiiiiiiiiiieee e 9,500 17,000
219.302 Prompt specimen collection:
(a) Specimen collection not conducted PromMPLIY .........ccccooeeiiiieiiieesee e 5,500 10,000
Subpart E—Ildentification of Troubled Employees
219.401 Requirement for policies:
(b) Failure to publish and/or implement required POlICY ........ccccoriiiiriiiiiirieee e 5,500 10,000
219.407 Alternate policies:
(c) Failure to file agreement or other document or provide timely notice or revocation ............cccceeueene 5,500 10,000
Subpart F—Pre-Employment Tests
219.501 Pre-employment tests:
(a) Failure to perform pre-employment drug test before first time employee performs covered service 13,000 20,500

Subpart G—Random Testing Programs
219.601 Railroad random drug programs:
(a)(1) Failure to file @ randOm PrOGrAM .........cooiiiiiiiii ettt ettt b e be e nare e e 13,000 20,500

(a)(2) Failure to file amendment to program . 5,500 10,000
(b) Failure to meet random testing criteria ................. 9,500 17,000
(b)(1)(i) Failure to use a neutral selection process .... 9,500 17,000
(b)(2)(i)(B) Testing not spread throughout the year ... 5,500 10,000
(b)(3) Testing not distributed throughout the day ...... 5,500 10,000
(b)(4) Advance notice provided to employee .......... 9,500 17,000
(b)(6) Testing when employee not on duty ...........cccecveienee. 5,500 10,000
219.601 A Failure to include covered service employee in POOI ........ccccceiriiiiiiiniiiiiesie e 9,500 17,000
219.602 Administrator's determination of drug testing rate:
(f) Total number of tests below minimum random drug testing rate ............cccccoooiiiiiiiiiiiniis 13,000 20,500
219.603 Participation in drug testing:
Failure to document reason for not testing selected employee ...........ccooviiiiiiiiiiiciiieee e 5,500 10,000
219.607 Railroad random alcohol programs:
(a)(1) Failure to file a random alcohol Program ..........coccoiiiiiieiieenee e 13,000 20,500
(a)(2) Failure to file amendment to program ........ 5,500 10,000
(b) Failure to meet random testing criteria .............. 9,500 17,000
(b)(1) Failure to use a neutral selection process .... 9,500 17,000
(b)(5) Testing when employee not on duty ... 5,500 10,000
(b)(8) Advance notice provided to employee .............ccoeueenee. 9,500 17,000
219.607 A Failure to include covered service employee in POOI ........ccccceiiiiriiiiniiiniesie e 9,500 17,000
219.608 Administrator's determination of random alcohol testing rate:
(e) Total number of tests below minimum random alcohol testing rate .........cc.cccocveervinieniiinicnieees 13,000 20,500
219.609 Participation in alcohol testing: Failure to document reason for not testing selected employee 5,500 10,000
Subpart H—Drug and Alcohol Testing Procedures
219.701 Standards for drug and alcohol testing:
(a) Failure to comply with part 40 procedures in Subpart B, D, F, or G testing 5,500 10,000
(b) Testing not performed in @ tiMely MAaNNET ........ooiiiiiiii e e 5,500 10,000
Subpart I—Annual Report
219.800 Reporting alcohol and drug misuse prevention program results in a management information
system:
(a) Failure to submit MIS report on time 5,500 10,000

(c) Failure to submit accurate MIS report 5,500 10,000
(d) Failure to include requIred data ...........ccceeiiiiiiiiie ettt ne e st eee e 5,500 10,000

Subpart J—Recordkeeping Requirements

219.901 Retention of Alcohol Testing Records:
(a) Failure to maintain records required to be kept by part 40 ........ccccocoeiiiiriinin s 5,500 10,000
(b) Failure to maintain records required to be kept for five years .... 5,500 10,000
(c) Failure to maintain records required to be kept for two years 5,500 10,000
219.903 Retention of Drug Testing Records:
(a) Failure to maintain records required to be kept by part 40 ..........cccooiiiiiiiiiiiii e 5,500 10,000

(b) Failure to maintain records required to be kept for five years .... 5,500 10,000

(c) Failure to maintain records required to be kept for two years 5,500 10,000
219.905 Access to facilities and records:

(a) Failure to release records in this subpart in accordance with part 40 ..........cccccevviiiiiiiiiiicnieeiees 9,500 17,000

(b) Failure to permit access to facCilities .........cccvviiiiiiiiiei e 9,500 17,000

(c) Failure to provide access to results of railroad alcohol and drug testing programs ............ccocceeeeeeee 9,500 17,000

1A penalty may be assessed against an individual only for a willful violation. The FRA Administrator reserves the right to assess a penalty of
up to $100,000 for any violation, including ones not listed in this penalty schedule, where circumstances warrant. See 49 CFR part 209, appendix
A
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2The penalty schedule uses section numbers from 49 CFR part 219. If more than one item is listed as a type of violation of a given section,
each item is also designated by a “penalty code,” which is used to facilitate assessment of civil penalties, and which may or may not correspond
to any subsection designation(s). For convenience, penalty citations will cite the CFR section and the penalty code, if any. FRA reserves the
right, should litigation become necessary, to substitute in its complaint the CFR citation in place of the combined CFR and penalty code citation,
should they differ.

Authority: 49 U.S.C. 20102-20103, 20107,
21301-21302, 21304, 21311; 28 U.S.C. 2461,

16. Appendix C to part 220 is revised
to read as follows:

PART 220—[AMENDED]

15. The authority citation for part 220
continues to read as follows:

note; and 49 CFR 1.49.

APPENDIX C TO PART 220—SCHEDULE OF CIVIL PENALTIES 1

: o Willful
Section2 Violation violation
Subpart A—General
220.9 ReqUIremMeNts fOr traiNS ......ccoiveieriiierieiere e se e e st et e s e et esee e esteeneesteeneeseeeneeseeeneensenneens $13,000 $20,500
220.11 Requirements for r0a0Way WOTKEIS ........ciiiiuiiiiiiieeiiiee et ee ettt et e et e be e e sabe e e s abe e e snre e e saneeeenneas 13,000 20,500
Subpart B—Radio and Wireless Communication Procedures

220.21 Railroad operating rules; radio communications:

62 PRSPPSO TUPRPRRPPPT 9,500 17,000

(D) e 9,500 17,000
220.23 Publication of radio information 9,500 17,000
220.25 INStrUCiON Of EMPIOYEES .....ooiieiiiiiiiie ettt ettt et e s b e e e s abe e e sanre e e e nneeeenneas 9,500 17,000
P2 OB A [o [=Y o1 ) o= o] o ISR 9,500 17,000
220.29 Statement of letters and numbers ... 9,500 17,000
220.31 Initiating a transmission ................... 5,500 10,000
220.33 ReCEIVING @ TraNSMUSSION ....coiiiuiiiiiiiie ittt ettt et e et e e e ab e e e s be e e s aabe e e ssbe e e sanreeeenneeeeanneas 9,500 17,000
220.35 ENAING @ traNSMISSION ...ccuviiiiiiiieiiiiee ettt et e e e e e e e s e e e snr e e e annreesennneennneas 9,500 17,000
220.37 Voice test .......ccccu.ee. 13,000 20,500
220.38 Failed equipment 2,500 5,000
P2l ORe 1< I 07T o1 1T ToT0 3N 4 g Lo a1 (o1 [ o SRR 9,500 17,000
220.41 [Reserved].
220.43 Communication consistent with the rUlES .............coociiiiiiii e 13,000 20,500
220.45 Complete communications 13,000 20,500
P2 Oy = 4 T=T o =T o Lo L= PSRRI 19,500 25,000
220.49 Switching, backing Or PUShING .....cc.oiiiiiii e 19,500 25,000
220.51 Signal indications ..........ccccceevieeieeiiieenie e, 13,000 20,500
220.61 Radio transmission of mandatory directives 19,500 25,000

1A penalty may be assessed against and only for a willful violation. The Administrator reserves the right to assess a penalty of up to $100,000

for any violation where circumstances warrant. See 49 CFR part 209, appendix A.

2The penalty schedule uses section numbers from 49 CFR part 220. If more than one item is listed as a type of violation of a given section,

each item is also designated by a “penalty code,” which is used to facilitate assessment of civil penalties, and which may or may not correspond
to any subsection designation(s). For convenience, penalty citations will cite the CFR section and the penalty code, if any. FRA reserves the
right, should litigation become necessary, to substitute in its complaint the CFR citation in place of the combined CFR and penalty code citation,

should they differ.

Authority: 49 U.S.C. 20103, 20107; 28

PART 221—[AMENDED]
U.S.C. 2461, note; and 49 CFR 1.49.

17. The authority citation for part 221
continues to read as follows:

APPENDIX C TO PART 221—SCHEDULE OF CIVIL PENALTIES

18. Appendix C to part 221 is revised
to read as follows:

. o Willful
Section2 Violation violation
Subpart B—Marking Devices
221.13 Marking device display:
(a) Device not present, not displayed, or not properly illuminated ............ccceoiririiniininncieneeeneens $9,500 $17,000
(d) Device t00 CloSe 10 rail ......c.oeeiiuiiiiiiiieeie e 2,500 5,000
221.14 Marking devices: Use of unapproved or noncomplying device 5,500 10,000
221.15 Marking device inspection:
(a) Failure to inspect at CreW ChanNgE .........c.cociiiiiiiiiii e e 5,500 10,000
(D), (C) IMProPEr INSPECION .....couiiiiiieiie ittt sttt e b e sbe et e e sae e et e e saeeenbeesateeeee e 5,500 10,000
221.16 Inspection procedure:
(a) Failure to 0obtain ProtECHON .........oiiiiiiieie ettt n e e e e 9,500 17,000
(b) Improper protection ........cccccceveevcierenns 5,500 10,000
221.17 Movement of defective EQUIPIMENT ........c..ciiiiiiiiiieee et 1) 1)

1A penalty may be assessed against an individual only for a willful violation. The Administrator reserves the right to assess a penalty of up to
$100,000 for any violation where circumstances warrant. See 49 CFR part 209, appendix A. Where the conditions for movement of defective
equipment set forth in §221.17 of this part are not met, the movement constitutes a violation of §221.13 of this part.
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2The penalty schedule uses section numbers from 49 CFR part 221. If more than one item is listed as a type of violation of a given section,
each item is also designated by a “penalty code,” which is used to facilitate assessment of civil penalties, and which may or may not correspond
to any subsection designation(s). For convenience, penalty citations will cite the CFR section and the penalty code, if any. FRA reserves the
right, should litigation become necessary, to substitute in its complaint the CFR citation in place of the combined CFR and penalty code citation,
should they differ.

Authority: 49 U.S.C. 20103, 20107, 20153,
21301, 21304; 28 U.S.C. 2461, note; and 49

20. Appendix H to part 222 is revised
to read as follows:

PART 222—[AMENDED]

19. The authority citation for part 222  FR 1.49.

continues to read as follows:

APPENDIX H TO PART 222—SCHEDULE OF CIVIL PENALTIES 1

. o Willful
Section 2 Violation violation
Subpart B—Use of Locomotive Horns
222.21 Use of locomotive horn:
(a) Failure to sound horn at grade CrOSSING .....cccvereriirierieriini ettt ettt e e sre e e $9,500 $17,000
Failure to sound horn in proper pattern ... 5,500 10,000
(b) Failure to sound horn at least 15 seconds and less than /4 mile before crossing .... 9,500 17,000
Sounding the horn more than 25 seconds before the crossing .......c..ccccceevcieieennen. 5,500 10,000
Sounding the horn more than V4 mile in advance of CrosSSiNg ........cccccceviieiieiieeiie e 5,500 10,000
Subpart C—Exceptions to the Use of the Locomotive Horn

Silenced Horns at Individual Crossings

222.33 Failure to sound horn when conditions of §222.33 are Nnot met .........cccceeceeeiee e, 9,500 17,000
Silenced Horns at Groups of Crossings—Quiet Zones

222.45 Routine sounding of the locomotive horn at a quiet Zone CrosSSiNgG .......cccceveveiieeniinieesie e 5,500 10,000
222.49(b) Failure to provide Grade Crossing Inventory Form information ...........cccceveriiniieencnenniene. 2,500 5,000
222.59(d) Routine sounding of the locomotive horn at a grade crossing equipped with wayside horn ...... 2,500 5,000

1A penalty may be assessed against an individual only for a willful violation. The Administrator reserves the right to assess a penalty of up to

$100,000 for any violation where circumstances warrant. See 49 CFR part 209, appendix A.

2The penalty schedule uses section numbers from 49 CFR part 222. If more than one item is listed as a type of violation of a given section,

each item is also designated by a “penalty code,” which is used to facilitate assessment of civil penalties, and which may or may not correspond
to any subsection designation(s). For convenience, penalty citations will cite the CFR section and the penalty code, if any. FRA reserves the
right, should litigation become necessary, to substitute in its complaint the CFR citation in place of the combined CFR and penalty code citation,

should they differ.

Authority: 49 U.S.C. 20102-03, 20133,
20701-20702, 21301-02, 21304; 28 U.S.C.
2461, note; and 49 CFR 1.49.

PART 223—[AMENDED]

21. The authority citation for part 223
continues to read as follows:

APPENDIX B TO PART 223—SCHEDULE OF CIVIL PENALTIES !

22. Appendix B to part 223 is revised
to read as follows:

Section 2 Violation vi\gllllal;ciuoln
Subpart B—Specific Requirements
223.9 New or rebuilt equipment:
(2) LOCOMOLIVES ...eiiiieiieiieestie et ettt ettt et e st e et e e st e e teesabe e beessseeeseeeaseesaeesbeesseeanseessseenbeesseeanseesnneenseens $5,500 $10,000
(b) Cabooses 5,500 10,000
(C) P@SSENQET CAIS ...couveiiuiiiiiieiteeit ettt ettt ettt et e bt ab e e he e st e et et e bt e eb e e e abeeeae e eab e e abeeanneenarentee e 5,500 10,000
223.11(C) EXIStiNG IOCOMOLIVES .....coiiiiiiiiiiieiieieesie ettt ettt sr e nr e e nresnnens 5,500 10,000
(d) Repair of window ......... 2,500 5,000
223.13(c) Existing cabooses . 5,500 10,000
() REPAIF Of WINAOW ...ttt ettt ae ettt e et esae e s abeesae e e bt e saneenneenaneeteeaas 2,500 5,000
223.15(C) EXIStiNG PASSENGET CAIS ....ccueiiviiiieririieitisiieite sttt sttt r e n e e nneeae e sresaeesresneennesneennesneens 5,500 10,000
(d) Repair of window ................. 2,500 5,000
223.17 Identification of units 2,500 5,000

1A penalty may be assessed against an individual only for a willful violation. The Administrator reserves the right to assess a penalty of up to
$100,000 for any violation where circumstances warrant. See 49 U.S.C. 21301, 21304, and 49 CFR part 209, appendix A.
2The penalty schedule uses section numbers from 49 CFR part 223. If more than one item is listed as a type of violation of a given section,

each item is also designated by a “penalty code,” which is used to facilitate assessment of civil penalties, and which may or may not correspond
to any subsection designation(s). For convenience, penalty citations will cite the CFR section and the penalty code, if any. FRA reserves the
right, should litigation become necessary, to substitute in its complaint the CFR citation in place of the combined CFR and penalty code citation,
should they differ.
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PART 224—[AMENDED] Authority: 49 U.S.C. 20103, 20107, 20148 24. Appendix A to part 224 is revised
and 21301; 28 U.S.C. 2461; and 49 CFR 1.49. {0 read as follows:
23. The authority citation for part 224

continues to read as follows:

APPENDIX A TO PART 224—SCHEDULE OF CIVIL PENALTIES !

. - Willful
Section2 Violation violation
Subpart B—Application, Inspection, and Maintenance of Retroreflective Material

224.103 Characteristics of retroreflective sheeting:

(a)—(d) Retroreflective sheeting applied does not meet the requirements of §224.103 ..........cccceeeeene $5,500 $10,000
224.105 Sheeting dimensions and quantity:

(a) Failure to apply minimum amount of retroreflective sheeting in accordance with Table 2 5,500 10,000

(b) Applying retroreflective sheeting of wrong dimensions ..........cccceoeiiriiiiniineee e 5,500 10,000
224.106 Location of retroreflective sheeting:

(a), (b) Applying retroreflective sheeting in nonconforming pattern ...........cccoceviriiniiiiieceneceeseens 5,500 10,000
224.107 Implementation schedule:

(a)(1), (b)(1) Failure to apply retroreflective sheeting to new freight car or locomotive before equip-

00T o F=Tot=Y o T Y=Y Vot S 5,500 10,000
(2)(2), (b)(2), (b)(4) Failure to apply retroreflective sheeting to existing freight car or locomotive in ac-
cordance with minimum schedule of paragraphs (a)(2), (b)(2), or (D)(4) ..ceceerieeiieiiiieeeeeeeeee 5,500 10,000

224.109 Inspection, repair, and replacement:

(1) Failure to perform INSPECHION .........ei ittt eb e b sareneee e 5,500 10,000

(2) Failure to properly notify car owner of defect ...........c.cce.e 5,500 10,000

(3) Failure to retain written notification of defect for two years 2,500 5,000

(4) Failure to repair defect after NOLIfICAtION ........c.cciriiiiiiiee e 5,500 10,000

1A penalty may be assessed against an individual only for a willful violation. The Administrator reserves the right to assess a penalty of up to
$100,000 for any violation where circumstances warrant. See 49 CFR part 209, appendix A.

2The penalty schedule uses section numbers from 49 CFR part 224. If more than one item is listed as a type of violation of a given section,
each item is also designated by a “penalty code,” which is used to facilitate assessment of civil penalties, and which may or may not correspond
to any subsection designation(s). For convenience, penalty citations will cite the CFR section and the penalty code, if any. FRA reserves the
right, should Ii#gation become necessary, to substitute in its complaint the CFR citation in place of the combined CFR and penalty code citation,
should they differ.

PART 225—[AMENDED] Authority: 49 U.S.C. 103, 322(a), 20103, 26. Appendix A to part 225 is revised
20107, 2090102, 21301, 21302, 21311; 28 to read as follows:
25. The authority citation for part 225  (J.S.C. 2461, note; and 49 CFR 1.49.

continues to read as follows:

APPENDIX A TO PART 225—SCHEDULE OF CIVIL PENALTIES

Section2 Violation vivc\>/II!aIIiuoln

225.9 Telephonic reports of certain accidents/INCIAENES ...........ccooiiiiiiiiiiiirc e $9,500 $17,000
225.11 Reports of acCidentS/INCIAENES .........ccuiiiiiiiieiiii ettt 5,500 10,000
225.12(a): Failure to file Railroad Employee Human Factor Attachment properly:

(1) EMPIOYEE IdENEIHIEA .....eeiiiiiieiiie ettt sa et e bt e e e b saneeeee e 2,500 5,000

(2) NO emPplOyEe IdENtIfIEd .......c.eiiiiiiii ettt ettt 2,500 5,000
225.12(b):

(1) Failure to notify employee Properly .........ccceioiiiiiiiiiiiiieiie e e 5,500 10,000

(2) Notification of employee not involved in aCCIAENt ...........ccceiiiiiiiiiee e 2,500 5,000
225.12(c): Failure of employing railroad to provide requested information properly ..........ccccoeveiieiiinninene. 2,500 5,000
225.12(d):

(1) Failure to revise report when identity becomes KnoOwn ...........cccooiiiiiiiiniiiece e 2,500 5,000

(2) Failure to notify after late identification ............ccoceeiiiriiiiiii 5,500 10,000
225.12(f)(1): Submission of notice if employee dies as result of the reported accident ... 2,500 5,000
225.12(g): Willfully false accident statement by @mMpPIOYEe ..........ccoiiiiiiiiiiiiii e sesrenee | eesreerenre e 20,500
225,13  Late reports ......ooocceeeiiieieniiee e 2,500 5,000
225.17(d) Alcohol or drug iNVOIVEMENT .......eiiiiiiiiiieeie ettt sttt et e e saeeennes 9,500 17,000
P2 SN2 N [ o) o] o 1= T =V o] o PSPPSR UPPPPN (1) (1)
225.25 Recordkeeping 5,500 10,000
225.27 Retention Of FECOIUS ......oiiuiiiiiiiiieiee et s bbb 2,500 5,000
225.33:

(1) Failure to adopt the Internal Control Plan ............cooeiiiiiiiiiiiee e s 9,500 17,000

(2) Inaccurate reporting due to failure to comply with the Internal Control Plan ... 9,500 17,000

(3) Failure to comply with the intimidation/harassment policy in the Internal Control Plan .................... 9,500 17,000
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APPENDIX A TO PART 225—SCHEDULE OF CIVIL PENALTIES '—Continued

. L Willful
Section 2 Violation violation
225.35 ACCESS 10 reCOrds and FEPOIS .....ceieiiieiiiiiieeeeeiett e e e e e ee st e e e e e s st reeeseaseeeeeeeeeseannnseeeeeeeeennsneeeeens 5,500 10,000

1A penalty may be assessed against an individual only for a willful violation. The Administrator reserves the right to assess a penalty of up to
$100,000 for any violation where circumstances warrant. See 49 CFR part 209, appendix A. A failure to comply with § 225.23 constitutes a viola-
tion of §225.11. For purposes of §§225.25 and 225.27 of this part, each of the following constitutes a single act of noncompliance: (1) A missing
or incomplete log entry for a particular employee’s injury or iliness; or (2) a missing or incomplete log record for a particular rail equipment acci-
dent or incident. Each day a violation continues is a separate offense.

2The penalty schedule uses section numbers from 49 CFR part 225. If more than one item is listed as a type of violation of a given section,
each item is also designated by a “penalty code,” which is used to facilitate assessment of civil penalties, and which may or may not correspond
to any subsection designation(s). For convenience, penalty citations will cite the CFR section and the penalty code, if any. FRA reserves the
right, should litigation become necessary, to substitute in its complaint the CFR citation in place of the combined CFR and penalty code citation,
should they differ.

PART 227—[AMENDED] Authority: 49 U.S.C. 20103, 20103 (note), 28. Appendix G to part 227 is revised
20701-20702; and 49 CFR 1.49. to read as follows:
27. The authority citation for part 227

continues to read as follows:

APPENDIX G TO PART 227—SCHEDULE OF CIVIL PENALTIES !

Section? Violation vivt\allglziuoln
Subpart A—General
227.3 Application:
(b)(4) Failure to meet the required conditions for foreign railroad operations ..........c.cccccvvrvireiienennens $5,500 $10,000
Subpart B—Occupational Noise Exposure for Railroad Operating Employees
227.103 Noise monitoring program:
(a) Failure to develop and/or implement a noise MoNItoriNg Program ...........ccocevecieerirereeseeeneeseeeneeenes 19,500 25,000
(b) Failure to use sampling as reqUIred ...........ccoooeerieeieenieeee e e 5,500 10,000
(c) Failure to integrate sound levels and/or make noise measurements as required ... 5,500 10,000
(d) Failure to repeat noise monitoring where required ............ccooceeieeniinnee i 5,500 10,000
(e) Failure to consider work environments where hearing protectors may be omitted .... 5,500 10,000
(f) Failure to provide opportunity to 0bServe MONIOIING ........ccceevviiieriiiieesieee e 2,500 5,000
(9) Reporting of monitoring results:
(1) Failure to notify monitored employee ...........ocoiiiiiiiiiiiii e 5,500 10,000
(2) Failure to post results as reqUIred ..........coceiiciiiiiiiiii e 5,500 10,000
227.105 Protection of employees:
(a) Failure to provide appropriate protection to exposed emplOYEEe ...........ccccereiiiiieriiiiienreenee e 19,500 25,000
(b) Failure to observe and document sources Of NOISE EXPOSUIE .........ccceeeieireiriieeniiereenee e 5,500 10,000
(c)—(d) Failure to protect employee from impermissible continuOUs NOISE ..........ccceviiiiiiiiiiiiinieee 13,000 20,500
227.107 Hearing conservation program:
(a) Failure to administer @ HCOP .........oo ittt et be e st eee e 19,500 25,000
(b) Failure to compute NoiSe EXPOSUIE aS FEQUITET ........coiuieiieiiieiiie et riie et siee et e e e b saee e e 9,500 17,000
227.109 Audiometric testing program:
(a) Failure to establish and/or maintain an audiometric testing program ..........cccceceeerieneeiecneeieneeeens 19,500 25,000
(b) Failure to provide audiometric test at no cost to employee .............. 5,500 10,000
(c) Failure to have qualified person perform audiometric test ... 5,500 10,000
() [RESEIVEA] ..ttt ettt b e e bt st e st e e sttt e bt e saneeaeesaneeebeesbeesrnesteesnnens | eesreesneesineeseenireaae | eeereesseessreennennreenane
(e) Failure to establish baseline audiogram as required .................. 9,500 17,000
(f) Failure to offer and/or require periodic audiogram as required ... 5,500 10,000
(g) Failure to evaluate audiogram as required ...........ccccceerevreneennenne 5,500 10,000
(h) Failure to comply with follow-up procedures as required ............... 5,500 10,000
(i) Failure to use required method for revising baseline audiograms ............ccoveeieieenienieeniee e 5,500 10,000
227.111 Audiometric test requirements:
(a) Failure to conduCt teSt @S FEQUIIEA ........c.coiiiiiuiiiiieie ettt beesaeeeeee e 5,500 10,000
(b) Failure to use required EQUIPIMENT ........ccciiiirieiii ettt sr e e sresneens 5,500 10,000
(c) Failure to administer test in room that meets requirements . 5,500 10,000
(d) Complete failure to calibrate ..........ccccocoeriiiiniiniienee 13,000 20,500
(1) Failure to perform daily calibration as required ............ccccceriiiiiiiiiiiii e 2,500 5,000
(2) Failure to perform annual calibration as required ...........ccccociriiiiiiiiiiiie e 2,500 5,000
(3) Failure to perform exhaustive calibration as required ............cccceeciieiiiriiiiieeee e 2,500 5,000
227.115 Hearing protectors (HP):
(a) Failure to comply with general reQUIrEMENTS ........ccciiiiiiiieiiieie e e 9,500 17,000
(b) Failure to make HP available as required ...... 5,500 10,000
(c) Failure to require use of HP at action level .......... 13,000 20,500
(d) Failure to require use of HP at TWA Of 90 AB(A) ..eccccueeeiiiieeeieeeecieeesseeeeseeeeseeeessee e e sneeeesnneeeennneas 13,000 20,500
227.117 Hearing protector attenuation:
(a) Failure to evaluate attenuation as required .... 2,500 5,000
(b)—(c) Failure to attenuate to required level .... 2,500 5,000
(d) Failure to reevaluate attenUAtIoON ...........cccceiiiiiei i e e e e e e e e e nnneas 2,500 5,000
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APPENDIX G TO PART 227—SCHEDULE OF CIVIL PENALTIES '—Continued

: — Willful
Section? Violation violation
227.119 Training program:
(a) Failure to institute a training program as requIred ..........cccoecuieiiiriieiieee e 9,500 17,000
(b) Failure to provide training within required time frame ........cccccoiiiiiiiii e 2,500 5,000
(c) Failure of program and/or training materials to include required information .............cccccoiiniiiinens 2,500 5,000
227.121 Recordkeeping:
(a) General Requirements:
(1) Failure to make record available as requIred ...........cocoeiieiiiiiiiiie e 2,500 5,000
(3) Failure to transfer or retain records as requIred ...........cccoeuiiiiiiiieniinie e 2,500 5,000
(b)—(f) Records:
(1) Failure to maintain record or failure to maintain record with required information ..................... 2,500 5,000
(2) Failure to retain records for required time Period ..........ccoeiiiiiiiiiienie e 2,500 5,000

1A penalty may be assessed against an individual only for a willful violation. The Administrator reserves the right to assess a penalty of up to

$100,000 for any violation where circumstances warrant. See 49 CFR part 209, appendix A.

2The penalty schedule uses section numbers from 49 CFR part 227. If more than one item is listed as a type of violation of a given section,
each item is also designated by a “penalty code,” which is used to facilitate assessment of civil penalties, and which may or may not correspond
to any subsection designation(s). For convenience, penalty citations will cite the CFR section and the penalty code, if any. FRA reserves the
right, should litigation become necessary, to substitute in its complaint the CFR citation in place of the combined CFR and penalty code citation,

should they differ.

Appendix A to Part 228—Requirements
of the Hours of Service Act: Statement

29. The authority citation for part 228 of Agency Policy and Interpretation
continues to read as follows: * * * * *

PART 228—[AMENDED]

$16,000 to $25,000 and the aggravated
maximum was increased from $27,000 to
$100,000 in accordance with the authority
provided under the Rail Safety Improvement
Act of 2008. FRA’s guideline civil penalty
amounts for violations of the substantive

Authority: 49 U.S.C. 20103, 20107, 21101—
21109; Sec. 108, Div. A, Pub. L. 110-432, 122
Stat. 4860—4866; 49 U.S.C. 21301, 21303,
21304, 21311; 28 U.S.C. 2461, note; and 49
CFR 1.49; and 49 U.S.C. 103.

30. In appendix A to part 228, the
ninth paragraph below the heading
“General Provisions”, entitled “Penalty”

General Provisions
* * * * *

Penalty. * * * Effective October 9, 2007,
the ordinary maximum penalty of $11,000
was raised to $16,000 as required under law.
Effective March 2, 2009, the minimum
penalty, ordinary maximum penalty and
aggravated maximum penalty were raised
again. The minimum penalty was increased

hours of service statute are $9,500 for an
ordinary violation of the hours of service
statute and $17,000 for a willful violation of
the hours of service statute. The
Administrator reserves the right to assess a
penalty of up to $100,000 for a violation
where circumstances warrant. See 49 CFR
part 209, appendix A.

*

* * * *

is revised to read as follows: from $550 to $650 pursuant to the law’s

requirement. Meanwhile, the ordinary
maximum penalty was increased from

APPENDIX B TO PART 228—SCHEDULE OF CIVIL PENALTIES !

31. Appendix B to part 228 is revised
to read as follows:

. N Willful
Section? Violation violation
Subpart B—Records and Reporting
228.9  RAINOAA FECOMS ....viueeueiirtirtiitit ettt ettt sttt eh e bbbt h e bt e b e e e e st eh e eh e b et e b e st bt et e ne e st e s eneeneene s $5,500 $10,000
228.11 Hours of duty records 2,500 5,000
Error on record reflect pattern of inaccurate recordk@eping .........cooeerceerieiiiieiieiiie et 13,000 20,500
P2t T B D 11 o Y- (o] =Y o =TT o] (o SRR 2,500 5,000
228.19 Monthly reports Of EXCESS SEIVICE ....c.eiiiiiiiiiiiieitie ettt st s be et e sae e e beesaeeesbeesaeeenees 9,500 17,000
Subpart D—Electronic Recordkeeping
228.203 Program COMPONENTS ........coiiuiieiiiieesitieaerieteeateeeastee e e abeeeaabe e e s aaeeeeaseeeaaaneeesanbeeesanseeeannreeeannreesanneas 9,500 17,000
228.205 Access to electronic records ... 9,500 17.000
228.207  TIINING eeeriirieeeitieee st et e sttt e sttt e et e e e e s bt e e e she e e e e re e s e e eR e e se e e R e e s s e er e e ae e e e eaneneeenneneeeneenreereenrenreen 5,500 10,000

1A penalty may be assessed against an individual only for a willful violation. The Administrator reserves the right to assess a penalty of up to

$100,000 for any violation where circumstances warrant. See 49 CFR part 209, appendix A.

2The penalty schedule uses section numbers from 49 CFR part 228. If more than one item is listed as a type of violation of a given section,
each item is also designated by a “penalty code,” which is used to facilitate assessment of civil penalties, and which may or may not correspond
to any subsection designation(s). For convenience, penalty citations will cite the CFR section and the penalty code, if any. FRA reserves the
right, should litigation become necessary, to substitute in its complaint the CFR citation in place of the combined CFR and penalty code citation,

should they differ.

Authority: 49 U.S.C. 20102-20103, 20107,
20133, 20137-20138, 20143, 20701-20703,
21301-21302, 21304; 28 U.S.C. 2461, note;
and 49 CFR 1.49(c), (m).

PART 229—[AMENDED]

32. The authority citation for part 229
continues to read as follows:

33. Appendix B to part 229 is revised
to read as follows:
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APPENDIX B TO PART 229—SCHEDULE OF CIVIL PENALTIES

Section 2 Violation Willful violation
Subpart A—General
229.7 Prohibited acts: Safety deficiencies not governed by specific regulations: To be assessed on rel-

(o= La L0 =T USSP PR TP PPRP PP $2,500-13,000 $5,000—20,500
229.9 Movement of noncomplying locomotives . ©) U
229.11 Locomotive identifiCation ... 2,500 5,000
229.13  CoNtrol Of I0COMOLIVES ......coiuiiiiiiriiieiieiieie ettt sr e sr e s e sre e nnesee e 9,500 17,000
229.17 Accident reports 15,500 10,000
P2 T T o (o) g 11V =Y £ PSPPSR M M

Subpart B—Inspection and Tests
229.21 Daily inspection:
(a)(b):
(1) INSPECHION OVEIAUE ..ottt nre e sr e ne e n e n e 5,500 10,000
(2) Inspection report not made, improperly executed, or not retained ... 2,500 5,000
(c) Inspection not performed by a qualified PErSON ..........cooiiiiiiiieiecee e 2,500 5,000
229.23 Periodic inspection General
(a)(b):
(1) INSPECHION OVEIAUE ...ttt ettt sae e sttt sar e et e e e e e b e aane s 5,500 10,000
(2) Inspection performed improperly or at a location where the underneath portion cannot be
SAfElY INSPECIEA ...t 5,500 10,000
(c)(d):
(1) FOIM MISSING ..ttt ettt h et b e bt e bt e sae e et e e et e be e e aneenaneeneenene s 2,500 5,000
(2) Form not properly displayed 2,500 5,000
(3) Form improperly executed ............cccceeeee 2,500 5,000
(e) Replace Form FRA F 6180—49A by April 2 ......coocveiiiiiieeeceee e 2,500 5,000
(f) Secondary record of the information reported on Form FRA F 6180.49A .......cccooiiiiiiiiinicneeieee 2,500 5,000
229.25:
(a) through (e)(4) Tests: Every periodiC iNSPECLION ........coiiuiiiieiiieiii et 5,500 10,000
(e)(5) Ineffective maintenance ..........ccccceeveerieeneeennen. 13,000 20,500
229.27 Annual tests ................. 5,500 10,000
229.29  BIENNIAI TESES ..o e e 5,500 10,000
229.31:
(a) Biennial hydrostatic tests of Main reSEIVOIrS ..........cccevviiiiieriiee e 5,500 10,000
(b) Biennial hammer tests of main reservoirs ............ 5,500 10,000
(c) Drilled telltale holes in welded main reservoirs .... 5,500 10,000
(d) Biennial tests of aluminum main reservoirs .......... 5,500 10,000
229.33  OUE-Of-USE CIEAIL ....viiueiriiieeiiiiest sttt r e et e e e neeae e resme e e e sneennesneennesneeas 2,500 5,000
Subpart C—Safety Requirements
General Requirements
229.41 Protection against PErsonal iNJUIY ..........cooiiiieoiiiie et e e e 9,500 17,000
229.43 Exhaust and battery gases 9,500 17,000
229.45 General condition: To be assessed based on relevant facts ..........cccccooeviviiiinennec s 2,500-13,000 5,000-20,500
Brake System
229.46  Brakes: GENEIAl .......ccoiiiiiiiiiieii ettt 9,500 17,000
229.47 EMErgency Brake VAIVE ..........cociiiiiiiiiiiiiiee ettt e 9,500 17,000
229.49 Main reservoir system:
(@)(1) Main reservoir SAfely VAIVE .........ooiiiiiiiii e 9,500 17,000
(2) Pneumatically actuated CONtrol rESEIVOIr .........cccuiiiiiiiiiriie ittt 9,500 17,000
(b)(c) Main reservoir governors 9,500 17,000
229.51 Aluminum main reservoirs .. 9,500 17,000
229.53  BraKe JAUJES ...coutiiiiiitieiie ettt ettt ettt b et ettt ettt b e sae b e h e e b e e nr e et e b aeeens 9,500 17,000
229.55  PiSION traVEI .....ooeiiiiiiie e s 9,500 17,000
229.57 Foundation brake gear . 9,500 17,000
p2ae R T =T 12 Vo O P PSR P ORI 9,500 17,000
229.61  DIraft SYSTEM ..o ettt ettt et a b b e e e ehe et e e be e e naeeennes 5,500 10,000
P I TS B - =Y =Y I 44T (T TSP UUP PP 5,500 10,000
229.64 Plain bearing .... 5,500 10,000
229.65 Spring rigging ... 5,500 10,000
229.67 Trucks ............... 9,500 17,000
229.69 Side bearings ..........ccceeuene 9,500 17,000
229.71 Clearance above top of rail .... 2,500 5,000
229.73  WRNEEI SEES ...ttt ettt a et a et h et h e bt ettt ean et eae e b e re e 9,500 17,000
229.75 Wheel and tire defects:
(a), (d) Slid flat or shelled spot(s):
(1) One spot 2'2” or more but less than 3” in length ... 9,500 17,000
(2) One spot 3”7 or MOre iN IENGN ..o e 13,000 20,500
(8) Two adjoining spots each of which is 2” or more in length but less than 212" in length ........... 9,500 17,000
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Section? Violation Willful violation
(4) Two adjoining spots each of which are at least 2” in length, if either spot is 21%” or more in
=T g T 4o TSP 13,000 20,500
(b) Gouge or chip in flange of:
(1) More than 112" but less than 94" in length; and more than '2” but less than %" in width ...... 9,500 17,000
(2) 158" or more in length and 5&” or more in width 13,000 20,500
(C) BroKeN MM .o s 19,500 25,000
() IS LT o TR (=Y Lo USSP RRPRRPRON 9,500 17,000
(f) Flange thickness of:.
(1) 78”7 Or 1€SS but MOre than 13/16” ......eiiiieie ettt aa e eeeee s 9,500 17,000
(2) 1%16” or less 13,000 20,500
(G) Tread WOIN NOOW ...ttt ettt sa ettt s et e e bt e saneeneenaneetee e 9,500 17,000
(h) Flange height of:
(1) 172" or greater but 1€SS than 158”7 ..o 9,500 17,000
(2) 54" or more 13,000 20,500
(1) THFE TICKNESS ...ttt et b et e e ae e et e et e e e bt e she e et e e saeeeabeesaeeebeesateetee e 9,500 17,000
(j) Rim thickness:
(1) Less than 17 in road service and 3/4” in yard SEIVICE .......cccceeieriiieenieriieenie e saee s 9,500 17,000
(2) %46” or less in road service and 11/16” iN yard SEIVICE ........cccceevireeirirerieneeee e 13,000 20,500
(k):
(1) Crack of 18SS thaN 17 ...ttt ettt e et e e bt e sab e e te e e beasaeeenseesnneeneaaneens 9,500 17,000
(2) Crack of 1”7 or more .... 13,000 20,500
(3) Break .....ccocceeennenen. 19,500 25,000
(I) Loose wheel or tire .. 19,500 25,000
(m) Welded wheel or tire ...... 9,500 17,000
Electrical System
229.77  CUITENE COIIBCIOIS ..ooiniiiiecieie ettt e et e e et e e et e e e et e e e e aeeeeebeeeeanbeeeeasseeeensreeeanseeeeansens 5,500 10,000
229.79 Third rail shoes and beams ...... 5,500 10,000
229.81 Emergency pole; shoe insulation 9,500 17,000
229.83 Insulation or grounding .......cccccoeerineeennnen. 13,000 20,500
229.85 Door and cover plates marked “Danger” .. 5,500 10,000
229.87 Hand operated SWItCNES ......oouueiiiiiei e e e et e e e e et e e e e e et n e e e e e e e nnreeees 5,500 10,000
229.89 Jumpers; cable connections:
(a) Jumpers and cable connections; locked and guarded ... 9,500 17,000
(b) Condition of jumpers and cable connections ................. 9,500 17,000
Perzie e B I Y/ To) (o] = 3R= T o [ o =T g T=T = o] £ TSP UPRRY 9,500 17,000
229.93  Safety CUL-Off dEVICE .....ooiiiiiiiiiieie ettt et sae e e 9,500 17,000
2209.95  VENEING .eitiiutiitteit ettt ettt h et ettt h et sh et e e h e e s e e eh e s e e R e e e s e b e an bt e e bt eae et ene e h e ae e resieen 9,500 17,000
229.97 Grounding fuel tanks . 9,500 17,000
229.99  SAfEY NANGEIS ...eeiiiiiiiie et ettt ae e et e e bt e e b e e eae e et e e eabe e beeenbeeeaeeeteeanee e beeeneeennes 9,500 17,000
229.101 Engines:
(a) Temperature and pressure alarms, controls, and SWItCheS ..........ccceiiiiiiiiiiiieniee e 5,500 10,000
(b) Warning NOLICE ......cccuveiueiiiieieeeiee et 9,500 17,000
(c) Wheel slip/slide protection 5,500 10,000
Steam Generators
229.103 Safe working pressure; factor of safety 9,500 17,000
229.105 Steam generator NUMDET ..........ooiiiiiiiiiiiie ettt sttt et et et sae et e st e bt et e e nbe e et e saeeennes 2,500 5,000
229.107 Pressure gauge ................. 9,500 17,000
229.109 Safety valves ........... 9,500 17,000
229.111  Water-flow indicator ... 9,500 17,000
229.113  WAAINING NOICE ...oeiiiiiiiiiiie ettt et e e e e e e e e e ss e e e snr e e e snnn e e e nnneennnnas 9,500 17,000
P2 T I TS 1 oY= e L= = =Ty TS 9,500 17,000
P2 T B Yo TY=Yo T To o= (o USSR 9,500 17,000
229.119 Cabs, floors, and passageways:
(a)(1) Cab set not securely mounted OF Braced ...........cccoeiiiiiieniiiieeceee e 5,500 10,000
(2) Insecure or improper latching device ...... 5,500 10,000
(b) Cab windows of lead locomotive ................. 5,500 10,000
(c) Floors, passageways, and compartments ... 5,500 10,000
(d) Ventilation and heating arrangement ....... 9,500 17,000
(e) Continuous barrier ........ccccocccveevceeernen. 9,500 17,000
(f) Containers for fuses and tOMPEAOES ..........ccuiriiriiriiiie ettt 9,500 17,000
229.121 Locomotive cab noise:
(a) Performance Standards
(1) Failure 10 Meet SOUNA IEVEI .......ooeeieeeeie ettt et e e e e e e e s e e e enneeeas 13,000 20,500
(2) Improper maintenance alterations ................. 5,500 10,000
(8) Failure to comply with static test protocols 5,500 10,000
(b) Maintenance of Locomotives:
(1) Failure to maintain excessive noise report record or respond to report as required ................. 5,500 10,000
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Section? Violation Willful violation
(3) Failure to make good faith effort as required ...........ccccoociiiiiiiiiiii e, 5,500 10,000
(4) Failure to maintain record as required 2,500 5,000
229.123 Pilots, SNOWPIOWS, ENA PlAIES .......eiiiiiiiii ittt et e e s e e ne e e enneas 5,500 10,000
229.125:
(E=) I 5= Te [T | ) U PSPV P OPRTUPPRPRTPPPT 9,500 17,000
(d) Auxiliary lights 9,500 17,000
229.127 €A lIGIES ..o e 5,500 10,000
229.129 Locomotive horn:
(2) Prescribed SOUNA IEVEIS .........eiiuiiiiieiie ettt ettt sb ettt e sae e e b eesaneetee e 9,500 17,000
Arrangement of horn ........ccccoeeenee. 9,500 17,000
(b) Failure to perform sound level test .......... 9,500 17,000
(c) Sound level test improperly performed ...........ccccocvrevennenne. 9,500 17,000
Record of sound level test improperly executed, or not retained .. 5,500 10,000
p2ae I K B IS T 13 To LY £ TR U PP PP PP URORUROR 2,500 5,000
229.135 Event Recorders:
(a) Lead locomotive without in-service event recorder .. 9,500 17,000
(b) Failure to meet equipment requirements ............c.ccceeveenee. 9,500 17,000
(c) Unauthorized removal or failure to remove from service .. 9,500 17,000
(d) Improper response to out of service event recorder ............ 9,500 17,000
(e) Failure to preserve data or unauthorized extraction of data 9,500 17,000
(g) Tampering With deVIiCe OF DAtA ........couiiiiiiiiiiiee ettt san e 9,500 17,000
229.137 Sanitation, general:
(a) Sanitation compartment in lead unit, complete failure to provide required items ..........cccceevcvreenneen. 9,500 17,000
(1) Venlation ...ttt e e e as 5,500 10,000
(2) Door missing ........... 5,500 10,000
(2)(i) Door doesn’t close 5,500 10,000
(2)(ii) No modesty lock ........ccccocevruennee 2,500 5,000
(3) Not equipped with toilet in lead ..... 9,500 17,000
(4) Not equipped with washing system .. 5,500 10,000
(5) Lack of paper .......ccocevecieiiiiiiieee 5,500 10,000
[(S) = Vo (oY 1= ] T =Yo7 =T o) - Lo = 5,500 10,000
(b) Exceptions:
(1)(i) Commuter service, failure to meet conditions of exception ..........ccccceevviieiice e, 2,500 5,000
(1)(ii) Switching service, failure to meet conditions of exception . 2,500 5,000
(1)(iii) Transfer service, failure to meet conditions of exception ... 2,500 5,000
(1)(iv) Class lll, failure to meet conditions of exception ............ 2,500 5,000
(1)(v) Tourist, failure to meet conditions of exception ..........cccceevcvveeicrennne 2,500 5,000
(1)(vi) Control cab locomotive, failure to meet conditions of exception .... 2,500 5,000
(2) Noncompliant toilet ..........cceeeiciieeiiee e 5,500 10,000
(c) Defective/unsanitary toilet in lead unit ..... 5,500 10,000
(1)—(5) Failure to meet conditions of exception .........cccccccevvcereiiceneeecienenns 5,500 10,000
(d) Defective/unsanitary unit; failure to meet conditions for trailing position ................. 5,500 10,000
(e) Defective/sanitary unit; failure to meet conditions for switching/transfer service ..... 5,500 10,000
(f) Paper, washing, trash holder; failure to equip prior to departure ............cccoceeeceens 5,500 10,000
(g) Inadequate ventilation; failure to repair or move prior to departure 5,500 10,000
(h) Door closure/modesty lock; failure to repair or move .........c.c.c..... 2,500 5,000
(i) Failure to retain/maintain of equipped units ................. 5,500 10,000
(j) Failure to equip new units/in-cab facility ....... 5,500 10,000
(k) Failure to provide potable WALEK ...........ccciiiiiieiiiie e cser e e et e e s e e e e e s enae e e sneeeesnneeeennneas 5,500 10,000
229.139 Servicing requirements:
(a) Lead occupied UNit NOt SANITANY .......ooiiiiiiiiieiiee ettt b e st et nes 5,500 10,000
(b) Components not present/operating ... 2,500 5,000
(c) Occupied unit in switching, transfer service, in trailing position not sanitary . 2,500 5,000
(d) Defective unit used more than ten days ..........cccccoriiiiieiiiiiciceeeeee 5,500 10,000
(e) Failure to repair defective MOdEStY I0CK ........cceiiiiiiiiiiiiiiee e e 2,500 5,000
Subpart D—Locomotive Crashworthiness Design Requirements
229.141 Body structure, MU IOCOMOLIVES ........cuiiiiiiieiiiiie et 9,500 17,000
229.205 General requirements:
(a)(1) Wide-nose locomotive not designed in compliance with AAR S—580-2005 ..........cccceereeriiernnene 19,500 25,000
(2) Wide-nose locomotive not designed in compliance with new approved design standard ......... 19,500 25,000
(8) Wide-nose locomotive not designed in compliance with alternate approved design standard .. 19,500 25,000
(b) Monocoque or semi-monocoque locomotive not in compliance with design requirements ............... 19,500 25,000
(c) Narrow-nose not in compliance with design requUIremMENts ...........cocceeiiiiiiinieiiiees e 19,500 25,000
229.206 Design requirements:
Locomotive fails to meet—
(1) Emergency egress reqUIrEMENTS .......ccccuiiiiiiiiiiie ettt st s 19,500 25,000
(2) Emergency interior lighting requirements ... 19,500 25,000
(3) Interior configuration reqUIrEMENES ..........ccoiiiiiiiiiiie e 19,500 25,000
229.213 Locomotive manufacturing information:
(a) Failure to retain required infOrmMation ...........occoiiiiiii i 9,500 17,000
(b) Failure to produce required iNfOrMAatioN ..........cooiiiieiiiiie e e e e e 9,500 17,000
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229.215 Retention and inspection of designs:

(a) Failure to retain required deSigN FECOIAS ........cciriiriirieiiiee ettt 9,500 17,000

(b) Failure to retain required repair or modification records ... 9,500 17,000

(c) Failure to make records available When requeSed ............ccooiiiiiiiiiiiiieeseee e 9,500 17,000
229.217 Fuel tank:

(a) External fuel tank 19,500 25,000

(b) Internal fuel tank ... 19,500 25,000

1A penalty may be assessed against an individual only for a willful violation. Generally, when two or more violations of these regulations are
discovered with respect to a single locomotive that is used by a railroad, the appropriate penalties set forth above are aggregated up to a max-
imum of $25,000 per day. However, a failure to perform, with respect to a particular locomotive, any of the inspections and tests required under
subpart B of this part will be treated as a violation separate and distinct from, and in addition to, any substantive violative conditions found on
that locomotive. Moreover, the Administrator reserves the right to assess a penalty of up to $100,000 for any violation where circumstances war-
rant. See 49 CFR part 209, appendix A. Failure to observe any condition for movement set forth in §229.9 will deprive the railroad of the benefit
of the movement-for-repair provision and make the railroad and any responsible individuals liable for penalty under the particular regulatory sec-
tion(s) concerning the substantive defect(s) present on the locomotive at the time of movement. Failure to comply with §229.19 will result in the
lapse of any affected waiver.

2The penalty schedule uses section numbers from 49 CFR part 229. If more than one item is listed as a type of violation of a given section,
each item is also designated by a “penalty code,” which is used to facilitate assessment of civil penalties, and which may or may not correspond
to any subsection designation(s). For convenience, penalty citations will cite the CFR section and the penalty code, if any. FRA reserves the
right, should litigation become necessary, to substitute in its complaint the CFR citation in place of the combined CFR and penalty code citation,

should they differ.

Authority: 49 U.S.C. 20103, 20107, 20702;

PART 230—[AMENDED]
28 U.S.C. 2461, note; and 49 CFR 1.49.

34. The authority citation for part 230
continues to read as follows:

APPENDIX D TO PART 230—SCHEDULE OF CIVIL PENALTIES

35. Appendix D to part 230 is revised
to read as follows:

. o Willful
Section? Violation violation
Subpart A—General
General Inspection Requirements
230.11 Repair of non-complying conditions:
(a) Failure to repair noncomplying steam locomotive prior to US€ iN SEIVIiCe ........ccccovirieeieiinieenieeieene $5,500 $10,000
(b) Failure of owner and/or operator to approve repairs made prior to use of steam locomotive .......... 5,500 10,000
230.12 Movement of noncomplying steam I0COMOLIVE .........c.coiuiiiiiiiiiiiiie s (1) 1)
230.13 Daily inspection:
(a)(b):
(1) INSPECHION OVEIAUE .....oeviiiiieeieete ettt r e nr e e r e n e 9,500 17,000
(2) Inspection not performed by qualified person ..........ccccceceenes 5,500 10,000
(c) Inspection report not made, improperly executed or not retained ............ccoceeiiiniiiiiiiicci s 5,500 10,000
230.14 Thirty-one service day inspection:
(a):
(1) INSPECHION OVEIAUE ...ttt ettt e et sae e et e e s e e b e e eane s 9,500 17,000
(2) Inspection not performed by qualified person 5,500 10,000
(b) Failure to Notify FRA ... 5,500 10,000
(c) Inspection report not made, improperly executed, not properly filed ..........ccocoiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiees 5,500 10,000
230.15 Ninety-two service day inspection:
(a):
(1) INSPECLION OVEIAUE ...ttt ettt ettt ettt e s e e e beeeane s 9,500 17,000
(2) Inspection not performed by qualified person 5,500 10,000
(b) Inspection report not made, improperly executed, not properly filed ...........cccooeeriiiiiiniiiniiieeee 5,500 10,000
230.16 Annual inspection:
(a):
[ I LTS o J=Ted o oV =Y o 1SS 9,500 17,000
(2) Inspection not performed by qualified person 5,500 10,000
(b) Failure to Notify FRA .....oooiieiceeeees e 5,500 10,000
(c) Inspection report not made, improperly executed, not properly filed .........cccoiieriiiiiiiiiniinee 5,500 10,000
230.17 One thousand four hundred seventy-two service day inspection:
(a):
[ I LTS o J=Ted o oV =Y o 1SS 9,500 17,000
(2) Inspection not performed by qualified PErsON ..........cociiiiiiiiiiiiii e 5,500 10,000
(b) Inspection report not made, improperly executed, not properly maintained, not properly filed ......... 5,500 10,000
Recordkeeping Requirements
230.18 Service days:
(a) Service day record not available for INSPECHION ..........cceciiiiiiiieece e 5,500 10,000
(b) Failure to file service day report with FRA Regional Administrator 5,500 10,000
(c) Failure to complete all 1,472 service day inspection items prior to returning retired steam loco-
MOLIVE 10 SEIVICE ...ttt et e et e e e e e e e e s e e e s s e e e snr e e e eanneeeennneennneas 9,500 17,000
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Section2 Violation violation
230.19 Posting of forms:
(a) FRA Form No. 1:
(1) FRA Form No. 1 not properly filled OUt ..........oooiiiiiiii e 5,500 10,000
(2) FRA Form No. 1 not properly diSplayed ...........ccccoriiieiiiieniiniee e 5,500 10,000
(b) FRA Form No. 3:
(1) FRA Form No. 3 not properly filled OUL .........cooiiiiiiiiiiiie e e 5,500 10,000
(2) FRA Form No. 3 not properly diSplayed .........ccccueoiiiiiiiniieiieieeeiee et 5,500 10,000
230.20 Alteration and repair reports:
(a) Alterations:
(1) Failure to properly file FRA Form No. 19 with FRA Regional Administrator 5,500 10,000
(2) FRA Form No. 19 not properly filled Out .........cccooeiiiiiiiiiiiie e 5,500 10,000
(3) FRA Form No. 19 not properly maintained ..........cccccoreiriiiiiiiinieiieesee e 5,500 10,000
(b) Repairs to unstayed portions of the boiler:
(1) FRA Form No. 19 not properly filled out ....... 5,500 10,000
(2) FRA Form No. 19 not properly maintained 5,500 10,000
(c) Repairs to stayed portions of the boiler:
(1) FRA Form No. 19 not properly filled OUt ...........coeiiiiiririee s 5,500 10,000
(2) FRA Form No. 19 not properly Maintained ............cccoiiiiiiriiiiiiieieenee e 5,500 10,000
230.21 Failure to properly document steam locomotive number change ..........ccccoceeiiieeiiiiecnriee e 5,500 10,000
230.22 Failure to properly report accident resulting from failure of steam locomotive boiler or part or ap-
[o10Lg C=T g P= T g VTR (g T=T = To ) PSPPI 9,500 17,000
Subpart B—Boilers and Appurtenances
230.23 Responsibility for general construction and safe working pressure:
(a) Failure to properly establish safe working pressure for steam locomotive boiler .............ccccceeeeienne 19,500 25,000
(b) Placing steam locomotive in service before safe working pressure for boiler has been established 19,500 25,000
Allowable Stress
230.24 Maximum allowable stress values on boiler components:
(a) Use of materials not of sufficient tensile Strength ... 5,500 10,000
(b) Use of a safety factor value of less than four when using the code of original construction in boil-
€F CAICUIALIONS ... e s 13,000 20,500
230.25 Maximum allowable stresses on stays and braces:
(a) Exceeding allowable stress values on fire box and/or combustion chamber ............cccocceiiiiiieniene 5,500 10,000
(b) Exceeding allowable stress values on round, rectangular or gusset braces ..........ccccceeeeviirieennene 5,500 10,000
Inspection and Repair
230.29 Inspection and repair:
(a):
(1) Failure of owner and/or operator to inspect and repair any steam locomotive boiler and/or ap-
purtenance under control thereof ... 9,500 17,000
(2) Failure to remove steam locomotive from service when considered necessary to do so .......... 13,000 20,500
(b):
(1) Failure of perform repairs in accordance with accepted industry standards ............cccocceeieenen. 13,000 20,500
(2) Owner and/or operator returning steam locomotive boiler and/or appurtenances to service
before they are in good condition and safe and suitable for service ...........ccccocoviiiiiiniiiiiennen. 13,000 20,500
230.30 Lap-joint seam boilers, failure to properly iNSPECt ..........ccociiiiiiiiiiiiic 13,000 20,500
230.31 Flues to be removed:
(a):
(1) Failure to remove all flues when inspecting boiler ............coociiiiiiiiiiiii e 9,500 17,000
(2) Failure to enter boiler and clean and iNSPECt ..........cccoveveiieenierieenieene 9,500 17,000
(b) Failure to remove superheater flues when deemed necessary to do so 5,500 10,000
230.32 Time and method of inspection:
(a) Failure to perform 1,472 service day inspection when required t0 dO SO ........ccceeviriiiiiiiiiecniieiieene 9,500 17,000
(b) Failure to properly inspect boiler during 1,472 service day iNSPECHION .........cccceereiiriieiiriinierieeieens 9,500 17,000
230.33 Welded repairs and alterations:
(a) Failure to obtain permission before welding on unstayed portions of boiler containing alloy or car-
bon steel with carbon content over .25 percent Carbon ... 9,500 17,000
(b) Failure to perform welding on unstayed portions of boiler containing carbon steel not exceeding
.25 percent carbon in accordance with a nationally accepted standard for boiler repairs .................. 9,500 17,000
(c):
(1) Failure to submit written request for approval before performing weld buildup on wasted
areas of unstayed boiler surfaces that exceed 100 square inches or the smaller of 25 percent
of minimum required wall thickness or 'z inch 9,500 17,000
(2) Repairing Wasted ShEELS .......oc.iiiiiiii s 9,500 17,000
230.34 Riveted repairs and alterations:
(a) Failure to obtain approval before making riveted alterations on unstayed portions of the boiler;
failure to do riveting in accordance with established railroad practices or accepted national stand-
F= X0 Lo (o gl oY1 L= =Y oY= 11 SRS 9,500 17,000
(b) Failure to perform riveted repairs on unstayed boiler portions in accordance with established rail-
road practices or accepted national standards for boiler repairs ........ccccccevvvieeiiciee e 9,500 17,000
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(c) Failure to perform riveted repairs on stayed boiler portions in accordance with established railroad
practices or accepted national standards for boiler repairs ..........c.cocoeiiiiiiirieerie e 5,500 10,000
Pressure Testing of Boilers
230.35 Failure to raise temperature of steam locomotive boiler to 70 degrees F. before applying hydro-
static Pressure t0 the DOIIET ...t s e e be e e ane e e e aneas 5,500 10,000
230.36 Hydrostatic testing of boilers:
(a) Failure to perform hydrostatic test of boiler as required ...........cccooeeeeiirieriinere s 9,500 17,000
(b) Failure to properly perform hydrostatic test ..........ccocceriiriiiiiiiie e 9,500 17,000
(c) Failure to properly inspect boiler after conducting hydrostatic test above MAWP ..........cccccovieeiinne 9,500 17,000
230.37 Failure to perform proper steam test or inspection of boiler after completion of repair or alter-
F= L[ 0 I (o TN oo 11T OSSP PUPPROOt 5,500 10,000
Staybolts
230.38 Telltale holes:
(a) Failure to have telltale holes as required in StAYDOIS ........cccceieriiiiiiiiie e 5,500 10,000
(b) Failure to have proper telltale holes in reduced body staybolts ...........cccccoviiiiiiiiiiieniiee e 5,500 10,000
(c) Failure to keep telltale holes When SO reqUIred ..........cocueiieeiiiiiii i e 5,500 10,000
230.39 Broken staybolts:
(a) Boiler in service with excess number of broken staybolts ...........ccccceiiiiiiiiiiiiiii e 9,500 17,000
(b) Failure to replace staybolts when required to do so; to properly replace staybolts when so re-
quired; to inspect adjacent staybolts when replacing broken staybolts ............ccccccoiiiiiiiiiiiinnce, 9,500 17,000
(c) Failure to count leaking, plugged, or missing telltale holes as broken staybolts 9,500 17,000
(d) Closing telltale holes by prohibited MEANS ..........cooiiiiiiiiiie e 9,500 17,000
230.40 Time and method of staybolt testing:
(a) Failure to hammer test staybolts When SO requIred ...........cooceoiiiriiiiiiie e 5,500 10,000
(b) Failure to properly hammer test StaybOoItS .........cociiiiiiiiiiii e 5,500 10,000
230.41 Flexible staybolts with caps:
(a) Failure to inspect flexible staybolts as required ...........cccooeeiiiiiiiiiiii e 5,500 10,000
(b) Failure to replace broken flexible staybolts; failure to close inner ends of telltale holes as required 5,500 10,000
(c) Failure to report removal of flexible staybolts caps and other tests on FRA Form No. 3 when so
=10 0T =T PRSP RRP PR 5,500 10,000
(d) Failure to remove staybolt caps or otherwise test when FRA inspector or steam locomotive owner
and/or operator consider it NECESSArY 10 O SO ......eciiiiiiiiiiiiieee e 5,500 10,000
Steam Gauges
230.42 Failure to have accurate boiler steam gauge where engine crew can conveniently read ............... 13,000 20,500
230.43 Failure to have gauge siphon of proper capacity on steam gauge supply pipe; failure to properly
clean, maintain the steam gauge SUPPIY PIPE ....eiiiiiiiiiiieiii et 5,500 10,000
230.44 Failure to test steam gauge when so required ... 5,500 10,000
230.45 Failure to properly test and/or set steam gauge 5,500 10,000
230.46 Failure to attach to boiler backhead metal badge plate showing allowable steam pressure .......... 5,500 10,000
230.47 Boiler Number:
(a) (b) (c) Failure to stamp builder's number on boiler when number is Known ...........cccoceeciniiienennns 5,500 10,000
Safety Relief Valves
230.48 Number and capacity of safety relief valves:
(a) Failure to equip steam locomotive boiler with proper safety relief valves ..........ccccooveiiiiiiiiiinnens 13,000 20,500
(b) Failure to provide additional safety relief valve capacity when so required ...........cccceveiiiiriiennnnne 13,000 20,500
230.49 Setting of safety relief valves:
(a) Safety relief valve(s) set and/or adjusted by person not competent to do SO ........cccceevvieniiriieeninene 13,000 20,500
(b) Safety relief valve(s) not set to open at prescribed pressure(s) .......cc.cccceee. 13,000 20,500
(c) Safety relief valve(s) not properly set .......cccccceiiiiiiniiniieneeeen, 13,000 20,500
(d) Set pressure of lowest safety relief valve not properly indicated ................ 5,500 10,000
230.50 Failure to test and adjust safety relief valves when required t0 do0 SO ......cccceeecviiiiiiiieiiiciee e, 9,500 17,000
Water Glasses and Gauge Cocks
230.51 Failure to equip steam locomotive boiler with at least two properly installed water glasses .......... 5,500 10,000
230.52 Failure to properly equip water glasses 13,000 20,500
230.53 Failure to properly clean water glass valves and/or gauge cocks when required to do so ............. 5,500 10,000
230.54 Testing and maintenance:
(a) Failure to properly test water glasses and/or gauge COCKS .........coceeriiiiiiiriieiienie e 5,500 10,000
(b) Failure to properly maintain gauge cocks, water column drain valves, and/or water glass valves ... 9,500 17,000
230.55 Tubular type water and lubricator glasses and shields:
(a) Failure to renew tubular type water glasses as required ............cooceerieeiieenieesieenee e 5,500 10,000
(b) Failure to properly shield tubular water glasses and/or lubricator glasses ................. 5,500 10,000
(c) Failure to properly locate and/or maintain water glasses and/or water glass shields 5,500 10,000
230.56 Failure to equip water glass with suitable lamp ... 5,500 10,000
Injectors, Feedwater Pumps, and Flue Plugs
230.57 Injectors and feedwater pumps:
(a) Failure to equip steam locomotive with proper means for delivering water to the boiler .................. 13,000 20,500
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(b) Failure to properly test and/or maintain injectors, feedwater pumps, boiler checks, delivery pipes,
feed water pipes, tank hoSe, tank VAIVES ..........cociiiiiiiiiiiee e 13,000 20,500
(c) Failure to properly brace injectors, feedwater pumps, and/or associated piping ........ccccceereerierneene 5,500 10,000
230.58 Flue plugs:
(a) Plugging flue plugs when not otherwise permitted .............ccooiiiiiiiiii e 5,500 10,000
(b) Improperly plugging flue plugs, when otherwise permitted ............cccooiiiiiiiiiiiiine e 5,500 10,000
Fusible Plugs
230.59 Failure to remove and properly clean fusible boiler plugs when required to do so; failure to prop-
€Y NOTE FEMOVAI ...t e e e e e e e e e e s e e e e s e e e esr e e e sanr e e e e nnneeeannneennneas 9,500 17,000
Washing Boilers
230.60 Time of washing:
(a) Failure to thoroughly wash boiler when required t0 dO SO .......ccceiriiiiiiiiiiiic e 5,500 10,000
(b) Failure to remove washout plugs, arch tube plugs, thermic siphon plugs, circulator plugs, water
bar plugs when washing 10Comotive DOIIEr .............coiiiiiiiiiii 9,500 17,000
(c) Failure to examine and/or properly maintain washout plugs washout plug sleeves, threaded open-
g T PSSP 9,500 17,000
(d) Failure to clean fusible plugs when required t0 A0 SO ......ccccciiiiiiiiiiiiiii e 9,500 17,000
230.61 Arch tubes, water bar tubes, circulators and thermic siphons:
(a) Failure to clean, wash, inspect arch tubes, water bar tubes, circulators and thermic siphons as re-
Lo 18 =T o SRR 5,500 10,000
(b) Failure to renew arch tubes, water bar tubes; failure to repair or renew circulators, thermic si-
PhONS WHEN FEQUIFEA .......iiiiiiiiii e et 9,500 17,000
(c) Failure to properly inspect and/or replace as necessary arch tubes, water bar tubes, circulators ... 9,500 17,000
Steam Pipes
230.62 Failure to properly inspect and/or repair or replace as necessary dry pipes subject to pressure ... 13,000 20,500
230.63 Failure to properly inspect smoke box, steam pipes, pressure parts when required to do so ........ 9,500 17,000
Steam Leaks
230.64 Failure to remove from service steam locomotive boiler leaking under lagging from condition
which may reduce safety and/or repair the boiler before returning to service ..........cccccervirieinininneene 9,500 17,000
230.65 Failure to keep steam locomotive boiler, piping, appurtenances in repair so steam does not ob-
L1101 = I T o PSPPI 5,500 10,000
Subpart C—Steam Locomotives and Tenders
230.66 Failure to properly oversee general design, construction, maintenance of steam locomotive(s)
F=a Lo I (=T g Lo [T ¢ (= SRR 5,500 10,000
230.67 Failure to ensure all steam locomotives and tenders are properly inspected and repaired and/or
all defects are properly repaired and steam locomotive and/or tender are in good condition, safe and
suitable for service before being returned t0 SEIVICE ........cociiiiiiiiiiiiie e 13,000 20,500
Speed Indicators
230.68 Failure to equip steam locomotive that operates in excess of 20 miles per hour over the general
system with speed indicator maintained to ensure accurate functioning ............cccocceiiiiiiiiiiiiicienee, 5,500 10,000
Ash Pans
230.69 Failure to equip steam locomotive with properly supported ash pan with operating mechanism
that may be safely operated and SeCUrely CIOSEA ..........ccoiiuiiiiiiiiiiiieieee s 5,500 10,000
Brake and Signal Equipment
230.70 Safe condition:
(a) Failure to perform proper pre-departure inspection when so required ............cccoociiiiiiiiiiicniieeieene 5,500 10,000
(b) Failure to properly equip steam locomotive with brake pipe valve clearly identified as “Emergency
BraKe VAIVE” ...ttt et e ettt e e et e e e et e e e e bt e e e e ae e e e eabe e e eaateeeeareeeaneeeeaaneeeenreas 5,500 10,000
230.71 Orifice testing of air compressors:
(a)(b):
Failure to properly test and/or maintain air compressor(s) Capacity .......c...ccocceerveerieerieeeneerieeeneenns 5,500 10,000
230.72 Testing main reservoirs:
(a) Failure to properly test main reservoir(s) When required ............cooceevieiiiiniciieese e 5,500 10,000
(b) Impermissibly or improperly drilling main resServoir ...........ccccccevviriieiieniieniee s 5,500 10,000
(c) Impermissibly using NDE method to measure wall thickness of main reservoir 5,500 10,000
(d) Failure to use appropriate method of NDE testing of wall thickness of welded or riveted longitu-
dinal lap seam main reservoir(s); failure to withdraw main reservoir(s) from service when testing
reveals insufficient Wall thICKNESS ........oooiiiiiiie e e e as 9,500 17,000
230.73 Air gauges:
(a) Failure to equip steam locomotive with properly located air gauge(s) that are no more than three
LTI =Y o S 5,500 10,000
(b) Failure to test air gauge(s) when so required ... 5,500 10,000
(c) Failure to properly teSt @ir AUGE(S) ...veerveerueiriieriieitie ettt ettt ettt st ne e sare e e e 5,500 10,000
230.74 Failure to properly clean and/or test all air brake valves, related dirt collectors, filters when re-
[0 1811 (=T I (o o [0 1o SRR 5,500 10,000
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230.75 Failure to properly stencil or display date of testing and cleaning and initials of shop or station
PEITOIMING WOTK ... e b e s ae e s e s e e b e e s e e s sae e s n e sbee s 5,500 10,000
230.76 Piston travel:
(a) Insufficient miniMumM PIStON TraVel ..o 5,500 10,000
(b) Excessive piston travel when steam locomotive is stationary ...........cccccoiiiiiiiniinenii s 5,500 10,000
230.77 Foundation brake gear:
(a) Failure to properly maintain foundation brake gear ....... 5,500 10,000
(b) Foundation brake gear less than 2.5 inches above rail 5,500 10,000
230.78 Leakage:
(a):
(1) Failure to test for leakage from main reservoir or related piping as required ............ccccceeueeee. 5,500 10,000
(2) Failure to repair excessive leakage from main reservoir or related piping leakage ... 5,500 10,000
(b) Failure to test for brake cylinder as required ............ccociiiiiiiiiii i 5,500 10,000
(c):
(1) Failure to test for leakage from steam locomotive brake pipe as required 5,500 10,000
(2) Failure to repair excessive brake pipe 1€aKage ..........cccooeiriiiiiiiiiiiiiieieee e 5,500 10,000
230.79 Train signal system:
(1) Failure to test the train signal system or other form of on-board communication as required .......... 5,500 10,000
(2) Failure to repair train signal system or other on-board communication when not safe or suitable
Lo =TT Yo PRSP S U PPPP 5,500 10,000
Cabs, Warning Signals, Sanders and Lights
230.80 Cabs:
(a) Steam locomotive cab not safe and suitable for SErVICe ..........ccooiiiiiiiiiiiiiii e 5,500 10,000
(b) Steam pipes: Construction, attachment ............. 5,500 10,000
(c) Oil-burning steam locomotive, Cab-eNCIOSEA ..........cceiiiiiiiiiie e 5,500 10,000
230.81 Cab aprons:
(a) Cab apron, general provisions 5,500 10,000
(b) Cab apron, iNSUFfICIENt WIEN .......eoiiieeee e e e e e e e e e e e e nnneas 5,500 10,000
230.82 Fire doors:
(a) Safe and suitable for service, general ProViSIONS ..........cccceiiiiiiiiriieeiie et 5,500 10,000
(b) Construction and maintenance of mechanically operated fire doors 5,500 10,000
(c) Construction and maintenance of hand-operated fire dOOrS .........ccccevevciiieeiiiieeiee e 5,500 10,000
230.83 Cylinder cocks:
(1) Failure to properly equip With CYliNAEr COCKS ........oiiiiiiiiiiiiiiie et 5,500 10,000
(2) Failure to properly maintain Cylinder COCKS ..o 5,500 10,000
230.84 Sanders:
(1) INOPErabIE SANAEIS .......ooiiiiiiiiie ettt et e et e s ae s bt e be e s b e saneseeeaas 5,500 10,000
(2 = V1 LT (o I (=TS Q=T U o =T SR 5,500 10,000
230.85 Audible warning devices:
(a) General ProviSioNS ........ccccevcieeeiiieeesieeeseee e eree e eeeee e 5,500 10,000
(b) Sound level measurements, Failure to properly take 5,500 10,000
230.86 Required illumination:
(B) GENEIAI PrOVISIONS ....ecueitieuieiteeiteat ettt ettt st sae et e st et e sa e e b e e b e s e bt eas et e eas e et e eaneneeeanenaeesnenneennen 5,500 10,000
(b) Dimming device, failure to properly equip with ..........ccceeiiiniiiieens 5,500 10,000
(c) Multiple locomotives, failure of lead locomotive to display headlight 5,500 10,000
230.87 Cab lights: Failure to properly @quip With ..........cooiiiiiiiiiiii s 5,500 10,000
Throttles and Reversing Gear
230.88 Throttles: Failure to properly maintain, @QUIP .......coooueeiiiiieireee e e 5,500 10,000
230.89 Reverse gear:
[ I CT=T 0 T=T = T o o1V 7o g T SR 5,500 10,000
(b) Air-operated power reverse gear 5,500 10,000
(C) POWET FEBVEISE QAN TESEIVOIIS ...ceueiiiiietieieeeteeeueeetee st e e bt e st e e st e rabeeabe e e bt e saeeeabeesaeeeabeesaeeenneenanesneenas 5,500 10,000
Draw Gear and Draft Systems
230.90 Draw gear and draft systems:
(a) Maintenance and tESHNG ........cociiiiiii e e e 5,500 10,000
(b) Safety bars and chains, general .............. 5,500 10,000
(c) Safety bars and chains, minimum length .... 5,500 10,000
(d) Lost motion between steam locomotive and tender . 5,500 10,000
(e) Spring buffers: Improper application, compression ..... 5,500 10,000
230.91 Chafing irons: Improper application, maintenance ............. 5,500 10,000
230.92 Draw gear, draft systems: Improperly maintained, fastened .. 5,500 10,000
Driving Gear
230.93 Pistons and piston rods:
(a) Failure to properly inspect, Maintain, rENEW ..........ccoiiiiiiiiiiiee e 5,500 10,000
(b) Fasteners: Failure to keep tight, properly equip ................ 5,500 10,000
230.94 Crossheads: Improperly maintained, excess clearance .. 5,500 10,000
230.95 Guides: Failure to securely fasten, properly Maintain ..........ccccooiiiiiinininn e 5,500 10,000
230.96 Main, side, valve motion rods: 5,500 10,000
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(=) B T=T 0 7= - PRSP 5,500 10,000
(o) R =T = UL =SSR 5,500 10,000
(1) Failure to make in accordance with accepted national standard ... 5,500 10,000
(2) Failure to submit written request for approval prior to welding .. 5,500 10,000
(c) Bearings and bUShINGS ......ccceiiiiiiiiiiieieee e 5,500 10,000
(d) Rod side motion: Excessive motion .........cc.ccceceevieeieeneeenne 5,500 10,000
(e) Oil, grease cups: Failure to securely fasten, properly @quip ......cc.ccceervererrineniesinee e 5,500 10,000
(f) Main rod bearings:
(1) EXCESSIVE DOIE ...ttt ettt et e et e e e st e e sttt e e e abe e e e aabe e e e beeeeanbeeeenneeaan 5,500 10,000
(2) Excessive lost motion 5,500 10,000
(g) Side rod bearings, EXCESSIVE DOIE ........c.ccciiiiiiiiieiieeie ettt e ae e 5,500 10,000
230.97 Crank pins:
(8) GENEIAI PrOVISIONS ....c.ueiiuiiiiiteeitie ettt ettt ettt et b et h et st e et e e e bt e eae e eabeesae e eb e e sareeneenaneenee e 5,500 10,000
(b) Maintenance: Failure to maintain in safe, suitable conNdition ...........cccccooiiiiiiin e 5,500 10,000
Running Gear
230.98 Diriving, trailing, engine truck axles:
() CoNdEMNING AEFECES .....eiiiiiiiiie ettt ettt sb e bt e s it e et e e s aeeebeesaneeeee e 5,500 10,000
(b) Journal diameter: Failure to stamp on end of axle .. 2,500 5,000
230.99 Tender truck axle: Insufficient diameter .........coooieii i 5,500 10,000
230.100 Defects in tender truck axles and journals:
(a) Tender truck axle condemning defectS ..........ccoiiiiiiiiiiii e 5,500 10,000
(b) Tender truck journal condemning AefECtS .........cociiiiiiiiiiiiiii e 5,500 10,000
230.101 Steam locomotive driving journal boxes:
(a) Driving journal boxes: Failure to properly Maintain ...........ccoociiiiiiiiiiieeeceeee e 5,500 10,000
(b) Broken bearings: Failure 10 TENEW ..........cooiiiiiiiiiiie e 5,500 10,000
(c) Loose bearings: Failure to repair or renew ............cccee.... 5,500 10,000
230.102 Tender plain bearing journal boxes: Failure to repair ................... 5,500 10,000
230.103 Tender roller bearing journal boxes: Failure to properly maintain 5,500 10,000
230.104 Driving box shoes and wedges: Failure to properly maintain ...........ccccooieeiiiieeinie e 5,500 10,000
230.105 Lateral motion:
(a) Condemning limits: Total lateral Motion iN @XCESS Of ........ccoiiiiriiiie e 5,500 10,000
(b) Limits exceeded, failure to demonstrate conditions require additional lateral motion 5,500 10,000
(c) Interferes with other parts of steam locomotive ............cccccoiiiiiiiiiiiiiie 5,500 10,000
Trucks, Frames and Equalizing System
230.106 Steam locomotive frame:
(a) Failure to properly inspect and/or MaINTAIN .........ccoiiiiiiiiie e e 5,500 10,000
(b) Broken frames, not properly patched Or SECUIed ...........cocceeiiiiiiiiiiieiie e 13,000 20,500
230.107 Tender frame and body:
(a) Failure to properly MaINTAIN ........oocueiiiiiie ettt e e e e 5,500 10,000
(b) Height difference between tender deck and steam locomotive cab floor or deck excessive .. 5,500 10,000
(c) Gangway minimum Width @XCESSIVE .........eiiuiiiiiiiiiiiieiie ettt 5,500 10,000
(d) Tender frame condemning defects .... 9,500 17,000
230.108 Steam locomotive leading and trailing trucks:
(a) Failure to properly Maintain ..........c.ooiiiiiiiii e 5,500 10,000
(b) Safety chain, suitable safety chain not provided .. 5,500 10,000
(c) Insufficient truck clearance ...........ccccoceiiiieeninenn. 5,500 10,000
230.109 Tender trucks:
(a):
[ LI 10 [ R U Tt = 1= PR 5,500 10,000
(2) Tender truck center plate . 5,500 10,000
(b) Tender truck bolsters: Failure to properly maintain .. 9,500 17,000
(c) Condemning defects, springs and/or spring rigging ....... 5,500 10,000
(d) Truck securing arrangement: Not properly maintained .. 5,500 10,000
(e) Side bearings, truck centering devices ............ccccecuenune. 5,500 10,000
(f) Friction side bearings: RUN iN CONTACT .......ccuiiiiiiiiiiiie e 5,500 10,000
(9):
(1) Side bearings, failure to equip rear trucks with 5,500 10,000
(2) Insufficient clearance of ...........cccceeciiiiiicennn. 5,500 10,000
230.110 Pilots:
(B) GENEIAI PrOVISIONS ....eueieieuteiteeiteat ettt ettt ettt sae et st et e e ae e b e e b e e et e bt eas et e eas e et e eanenbeeanenneennenneeneen 5,500 10,000
(b) Clearance, iNSUFfICIENt OF EXCESSIVE .....ccuiiiiiiieeciiee e ree et e et e et e e e e e e e ente e e sneeeennnes 5,500 10,000
230.111  Spring rigging:
(a) Arrangement of SPrings and EQUAIIZEIS .........cceiiiiiiiiiiii it 5,500 10,000
(b) Spring or spring rigging condemning defECES .........ccccriiiiiiiriiiee e 5,500 10,000
Wheels and Tires
230.112 Wheels and tires:
(a) Improperly mounted, excess variance in axle diameter .... 9,500 17,000
(D) OUL Of GAGE ...veieiiiiiieee s 5,500 10,000
(c) Flange distance VarianCe, EXCESSIVE ........ccuiiiiiiiiiiiiiieesiee ettt ettt eb e sie e b e saeeeee e 5,500 10,000




57634 Federal Register/Vol. 75, No. 182/ Tuesday, September 21, 2010/Proposed Rules

APPENDIX D TO PART 230—SCHEDULE OF CIVIL PENALTIES—Continued

: — Willful
Section? Violation violation
(d) Tire thickness, INSUFFICIENT ......coiuiiiiieiie ettt e b e eebe e saneeeee e 5,500 10,000
(€) Tire width, INSUTFICIENT .....coiiiiieie et e et e e et e e st e e et e e e nnneas 5,500 10,000
230.113 Wheels and tire defects:
(1) FAIIUIE 0 FEPAIT ...ttt ettt a ettt b e sae e et e e s ae e et e e sareeneenaneetee e 5,500 10,000
(2) Welding on, except as otherwise provided for .. 9,500 17,000
[ IO =T S T T o] (=Y 1 o PSR 5,500 10,000
(1) 2= oo (=S PRUPTRPOP 5,500 10,000
(c) Chipped flange .. 5,500 10,000
(d) Broken rim ........... 5,500 10,000
(€) Shelled-0Ut SPOTS ....ciiuiiiiiiiiiete ettt sa ettt et sae e et sen e reeeene s 5,500 10,000
(LTS 1T L ORI 5,500 10,000
(9) Worn flanges, excessive wear .... 5,500 10,000
(h) Worn treads, excessive wear ............... 5,500 10,000
(i) Flange height, inSUffiCIENt OF EXCESSIVE .......oiiiiiiiiiiiiiiic s 5,500 10,000
(i) Rim thickness, INSUFfICIENT ........ooiiiiii et 5,500 10,000
(k) Wheel diameter, EXCESSIVE VANANCE ......cccccueiiiiiiieeiiiieeaiieeesieeeaaeeeeeaeeeseeeeesaseeeesseeeesseeeennseeeas 5,500 10,000
230.114 Wheel centers:
(@) Filling BIOCKS @Nd SHIMS ...ttt ettt eb e e s b e naneeree e 5,500 10,000
(b) Wheel center condemning limits, failure t0 repair .........ccooeeiiiiiii i 5,500 10,000
(c) Wheel center repairs .........ccccceeeveereeeneencreeseeenees 5,500 10,000
(d) Counterbalance maintenance 5,500 10,000
230.115 Feed water tanks:
(2) GENEIAI PrOVISIONS ....ueiiiiieitieitte ettt ettt ettt ettt h ettt ae e st e e bt e bt e sae e et e e see e eb e e saneeneenaneetee e 5,500 10,000
(b) Inspection frequency, failure to inspect as required .......... 5,500 10,000
(c) Top of tender: Improperly maintained and/or equipped 5,500 10,000
230.116 OQil tanks:
(1) Failure to properly MaiNtain .........ccooiiiiiii ettt ettt e s sree e 13,000 20,500
(2) Failure to equip with complying safety cut-off dEVICE ........cccciiiiiiiiiiiii e 19,500 25,000

1A penalty may be assessed against an individual only for a willful violation. The Administrator reserves the right to assess a penalty of up to

$100,000 for any violation where circumstances warrant. See 49 CFR part 209, appendix A. Failure to observe any condition for movement set
forth in §230.12 will deprive the railroad of the benefit of the movement-for-repair provision and make the railroad and any responsible individ-
uals liable for penalty under the particular regulatory section(s) concerning the substantive defect(s) present on the locomotive at the time of
movement. Failure to comply with §2230.12 will result in the lapse of any affected waiver. Generally, when two or more violations of these regula-
tions are discovered with respect to a single locomotive that is used by a railroad, the appropriate penalties set forth are aggregated up to a
maximum of $25,000 per day. However, a failure to perform, with respect to a particular locomotive, any of the inspections and tests required
under this part, will be treated as a violation separate and distinct from, and in addition to, any substantive violative conditions found on that loco-
motive.

2The penalty schedule uses section numbers from 49 CFR part 230. If more than one item is listed as a type of violation of a given section,
each item is also designated by a “penalty code,” which is used to facilitate assessment of civil penalties, and which may or may not correspond
to any subsection designation(s). For convenience, penalty citations will cite the CFR section and the penalty code, if any. FRA reserves the
right, should Iiggation become necessary, to substitute in its complaint the CFR citation in place of the combined CFR and penalty code citation,
should they differ.

PART 231—[AMENDED]

Authority: 49 U.S.C. 20103, 20107, 20702;
28 U.S.C. 2461, note; and 49 CFR 1.49.

36. The authority citation for part 231
continues to read as follows:

APPENDIX A TO PART 231—SCHEDULE OF CIVIL PENALTIES

37. Appendix A to part 231 is revised
to read as follows:

: I Willful
Section2 Violation violation
110.A1 Hand brake or hand brake part missing .... $13,000 $20,500
110.A2 Hand brake or hand brake part broken .............. 13,000 20,500
110.A3 Hand brake or hand brake part loose or worn ... 9,500 17,000
110.B1 Hand brake inoperative .........ccccccceeiiieiiiieeennnns 13,000 20,500
110.B2 Hand brake inefficient ... 9,500 17,000
110.B3 Hand brake improperly applied 9,500 17,000
110.B4 Hand brake incorrectly located ............ccccceeeenns 5,500 10,000
110.B5 Hand brake shaft welded or wrong dimension ............. 5,500 10,000
110.B6 Hand brake shaft not retained in operating posSition ...........ccccciiiiiiiiiii e 5,500 10,000
110.B8 Hand brake or hand brake parts Wrong design ...........cccoeiiiiiiiiiiiiiie e 5,500 10,000
114.B2 Hand brake wheel or lever has insufficient clearance around rim or handle 5,500 10,000
114.B3 Hand brake wheel/lever clearance insufficient to vertical plane through inside face of knuckle .... 5,500 10,000
120.A1 Brake step missing except DY deSIgN ........coouiiiiiiiiiiiii e e 13,000 20,500
120.A2 Brake step or brace broken Or deCAYEd ..........ccciiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieee e e 13,000 20,500
120.A3 Brake step or brace loose 9,500 17,000
120.B1 Brake step or brace bent 9,500 17,000
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120.B2 Brake step or brace Wrong diMENSIONS ..........ciiiiuiiiiiiiiee ittt ae e e raae e e saneeeaaes 5,500 10,000
120.C1 Brake step improperly applied ............... 5,500 10,000
120.C2 Brake step improperly 10Cated ...........cociiiiiiiiiiiiiii ettt 5,500 10,000
120.C3 Brake step with less than 4” clearance to vertical plane through inside face of knuckle .. 5,500 10,000
120.C4 Brake step obstructed or otherwise unsafe ............cocooiiiiiiiii i 9,500 17,000
124.A1 Running board missing or part missing except by design . 13,000 20,500
124.A2 Running board broken or decayed ...........ccccooveeriineeriineeenne 13,000 20,500
124.A3 Running board loose presents a tripping hazard or other unsafe condition 9,500 17,000
124.A4 Running board wrong material ...........cccocoeiiiiiiiiiiiieee e 5,500 10,000
124.B1 Running board bent to the extent that it is unsafe . 9,500 17,000
124.B2 Running board wrong diMeNSIONS ..........ccccoiiiiiiiiiiiiie e e 5,500 10,000
124.B3 Running board Wrong I0CALION ..........eoiiiiiiiiii ettt ettt e s ae e e e sane e e eaneeeaaes 5,500 10,000
124.C1 Running board improperly applied 5,500 10,000
124.C2 Running board obstructed .............cccoiiiiiins 9,500 17,000
126.A1 End platform missing or part except by desSign ........ocooiiiiiiiiiiii e 13,000 20,500
126.A2 End platform bBroken or dECaAYEM ...........oociiiiiiiiiiiii it 13,000 20,500
126.A3 End platform loose ..........cccceue 9,500 17,000
126.B1 End platform or brace bent ....... 5,500 10,000
126.B2 End platform wrong dimensions ... 5,500 10,000
126.C1 End platform improperly @applied ...........ooieiiiiiii et 5,500 10,000
126.C2 End platform with less than required clearance to vertical plane through inside knuckle .... 5,500 10,000
126.C3 End platform improperly [0Cated ...........ccooiiiieiirieiiriee e 5,500 10,000
126.C4 End platform obstructed ..................... 9,500 17,000
128.A1 Platform or switching step missing ..... 13,000 20,500
128.A2 Platform or switching step broken or decayed ... 13,000 20,500
128.A3 Platform or switching step loose ...........cc.ccce.. 9,500 17,000
128.B1 Platform or switching step bent ..o 9,500 17,000
128.B2 Platform or switching step does not meet the required location or dimensions ............cccccceceeneene 5,500 10,000
128.C1 Platform or switching step improperly applied or repaired ............ccceeieiiiiiiiinieeeee e 9,500 17,000
128.C2 Platform or switching step obstructed ...........ccccconiirieennn. 9,500 17,000
128.D1 Switching step back stop or kick plate missing . 5,500 10,000
128.D2 Switching step not illuminated When requIred ............coooiiiiiiiiiiie e 5,500 10,000
128.D3 Non-illuminated step not painted contrasting COIOr ..........ccuviiiiiiiiiiiee e 5,500 10,000
130.A1 Sill step or additional tread, missing ............ccccocu... 13,000 20,500
130.A2 Sill step or additional tread, broken .... 13,000 20,500
130.A3 Sill step or additional tread, loose ...... 9,500 17,000
130.B1 Sill step or additional tread, bent ..........cccceerviie e 9,500 17,000
130.B2 Sill step or additional tread, having wrong dimensions or improperly located ... 5,500 10,000
130.B3  Sill step improperly applied ........c.cooiiiiiiiiiee e 5,500 10,000
132.A1 Side door step missing step .. 13,000 20,500
132.A2 Side door step broken . 13,000 20,500
132.A3 Side door step loose .... 9,500 17,000
132.B1 Side door step bent .......ccccccvvevciieeicieenns 9,500 17,000
132.B2 Side door step having wrong dimensions . 5,500 10,000
134.A1 Ladder missing ... 13,000 20,500
134.A2 Ladder broken . 13,000 20,500
134.A3 Ladder loose .... 9,500 17,000
134.B1 Ladder bent ........cccoociiiiiniinins 9,500 17,000
134.B2 Ladder having wrong dimensions .... 5,500 10,000
134.C1 Ladder improperly applied .........ccceoereeiinenieneneneecene 5,500 10,000
134.C2 Ladder having insufficient clearance or improperly located 5,500 10,000
134.C3 Ladder Wrong deSign .......ccceeeereereenieneeieeneeeesieeeeseeeee e 5,500 10,000
134.C4 Ladder wrong material ........ 5,500 10,000
134.D1 End clearance insufficient ................. 5,500 10,000
136.A1 Ladder tread or handholds missing .... 13,000 20,500
136.A2 Ladder tread or handhold broken ............cccccceeeee 13,000 20,500
136.A3 Ladder tread or handhold loose except by design ........c...ccceveueennne 9,500 17,000
136.B1 Ladder tread or handhold bent to the extent that it may be unsafe 9,500 17,000
136.B2 Ladder tread or handhold wrong dimensions .........ccccccccevvceeenineenn. 5,500 10,000
136.C1 Ladder tread or handhold improperly applied ........... 5,500 10,000
136.C2 Ladder tread or handhold having wrong clearance ..... 5,500 10,000
136.C3 Ladder or handhold improperly located .................... 5,500 10,000
136.C4 Ladder tread or handhold obstructed .... 9,500 17,000
136.C5 Ladder tread without footguards ........... 9,500 17,000
138.A1 Hand or safety railing missing .. 13,000 20,500
138.A2 Hand or safety railing broken ..............cccocceeiie 13,000 20,500
138.A3 Hand or safety railing loose except by design ... 9,500 17,000
138.B1 Hand or safety railing bent ... 9,500 17,000
138.B2 Hand or safety railing wrong dimensions ..... 5,500 10,000
138.C1 Hand or safety railing improperly applied .........ccccoceririennnnene. 5,500 10,000
138.C2 Hand or safety railing having less than the required clearance ............ccccoviiiiiiiiiiiicenie s 5,500 10,000
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138.C3 Hand or safety railing improperly 10Cated ..........cociiiiiiiiiiiii e 5,500 10,000
140.A1 Uncoupling lever missing ........cccccccevevrcieeneen. 9,500 17,000
140.A2 Uncoupling lever broken or disconnected ...........cccccoviveeiiiieeiniine e 9,500 17,000
140.B1 Uncoupling lever bent will not safely and reasonably function as intended 9,500 17,000
140.C1  Uncoupling lever bracket bent lever will not function properly .................... 9,500 17,000
140.C2 Uncoupling lever bracket broken or missing .........ccccecveverveeene 9,500 17,000
140.D1 Uncoupling lever wrong dimension ...........ccc.ccceen. 5,500 10,000
140.D2 Uncoupling lever with improper handle clearance . 5,500 10,000
144.A1 Coupler MIiSSING ....ccccueeriiriieeiieeiee e 13,000 20,500
144.B1 Coupler height incorrect 5,500 10,000
144.C1  Coupler inoperative .. 9,500 17,000
145.A1 Kick plates missing ... 5,500 10,000
145.A2 Kick plates broken ................. 5,500 10,000
145.B1 Kick plates wrong dimensions .. 5,500 10,000
145.B2 Kick plates improper clearance ................. 5,500 10,000
145.B3 Kick plates insecure or improperly applied ...........ccccciiiiiiiiiiiininiceeen, 5,500 10,000
146.A Notice or stencil not posted on cabooses with running boards removed ... 2,500 5,000
146.B Safe means not provided to clean or maintain windows of caboose ......... 2,500 5,000
231.31 Drawbars, standard NeIght ..........cooiiiiiiiii e e 9,500 17,000

1A penalty may be assessed against an individual only for a willful violation. Generally, when two or more violations of these regulations are
discovered with respect to a single unit of equipment that is used by a railroad, the appropriate penalties set forth above are aggregated up to a
maximum of $25,000 per day. The Administrator reserves the right to assess a penalty of up to $100,000 for any violation where circumstances
warrant. See 49 CFR part 209, appendix A.

2This schedule uses section numbers from FRA’s Safety Appliance Defect Code, a restatement of the CFR text in a reorganized format. For
convenience, and as an exception to FRA’s general policy, penalty citations will cite the defect code rather than the CFR. FRA reserves the right,
should litigation become necessary, to substitute in its complaint the CFR and/or statutory citation in place of the defect code section cited in the
penalty demand letter.

PART 232—[AMENDED] Authority: 49 U.S.C. 20102-20103, 20107, 39. Appendix A to part 232 is revised
20133, 20141, 20301-20303, 20306, 21301— 0 read as follows:
38. The authority citation for part 232 21302, 21304; 28 U.S.C. 2461, note; and 49
continues to read as follows: CFR 1.49.

APPENDIX A TO PART 232—SCHEDULE OF CIVIL PENALTIES *

Section2 Violation vivc\)/II!aIIiuoln
Subpart A—General
232.15 Movement of power brake defects:
(a) Improper MOVEMENT, GENEIAI ......ccuiiiiiiiieie ettt eb e e b e sareneee e M M
(11) Failure to make determinations and provide notification of en route defect ...........c.cccvvveneeenn. $9,500 $17,000
(b) Complete failure 10 TaG .....veerreeriiiiee i 9,500 17,000
(1) Insufficient tag or record ...... 2,500 5,000
(2), (4) Improper removal of tag .... 9,500 17,000
(8) Failure to retain record of tag .. 9,500 17,000
(c) Improper loading or purging .......cccccceveeriueeneennne 9,500 17,000
(e) Improper placement of defective equipment ..... 9,500 17,000
232.19  Availability Of reCOIAS .....cc.eiiiiiiii e s Q) U
Subpart B—General Requirements
232.103 All train brake systems:
(a)—(c), (h)—(i) Failure to meet general design requUIreMENtS ...........ccoociiiiiiiiiiiii e 9,500 17,000
(d) Failure to have proper percentage of operative brakes from Class | brake test ..... 13,000 20,500
(e) Operating with less than 85 percent operative brakes ...........ccccoceviniininenicneenn. 13,000 20,500
(f) Improper use of car with inoperative or ineffective ...
Drakes ....c.ooieiiiiiie e 9,500 17,000
(g) Improper display of piston travel .........ccccocoviiiiniiineene 9,500 17,000
(m) Failure to stop train with excess air flow or gradient ... 9,500 17,000
(n) Securement of unattended equipment:
(1) Failure to apply sufficient number of hand brakes; failure to develop or implement procedure
to verify NUMDEr @pPlIEd .......oc.oiiiiie e s 13,000 20,500
(2) Failure to reduce to zero or vent brake pipe ..... 9,500 17,000
(3) Failure to apply hand brakes on [0COMOIVES ........ccovivrieiiiiiiieeiieeee e 9,500 17,000
(4) Failure to adopt or comply with procedures for securing unattended locomotive 13,000 20,500
(0) Improper adjustment of air regulating deviCeS ..........ccceceviiiiriiiiiineee e 9,500 17,000
(p) Failure to hold supervisors jointly responsible ............ccooiiiiiiiiiiii e 9,500 17,000
232.105 Locomotives:
(a) Air brakes not in safe and suitable CONAItION ..........coooiiiiiii e 13,000 20,500
(b) Not equipped with proper hand or parking Brake ...........cccceoiiiiiiiiiiie e 13,000 20,500
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(c)(1) Failure to inspect/repair hand or parking brake ..........cccociiiiiiiieiiii e 9,500 17,000
(2) Failure to properly stencil, tag, or record ...... 5,500 10,000
(d) Excess leakage from equalizing reservoir ............ 9,500 17,000
(e) Improper use of feed or regulating valve braking 9,500 17,000
(f) Improper use of passenger position ..........c........... 9,500 17,000
(g) Brakes in operative CONAItION ..........oiuiiiiiiiiiiie ettt b e sbe e st neeeeas 13,000 20,500
232.107 Air sources/cold weather operations:
(a)(1), (2) Failure to adopt or comply with monitoring program for yard air Sources ............ccceeevreeunns 13,000 20,500
(3) Failure 1o Maintain reCOradS .........cooiiiiiiiie et 9,500 17,000
(b) Failure to blow condensation ... 13,000 20,500
(c) Use of improper chemicals ...... 13,000 20,500
(d) Failure to equip or drain yard air reServoirs ..........ccccceeveeneencnens 13,000 20,500
(e) Failure to adopt or comply cold weather operating procedures ............ccoevevriieiiiiiiienee e 13,000 20,500
232.109 Dynamic brakes:
(a) Failure to provide INformation ............c.oociiiiiiiii e 9,500 17,000
(b) Failure to make repairs ............ 9,500 17,000
(c) Failure to properly tag ................. 5,500 10,000
(d) Failure to maintain record of repair 2,500 5,000
(e) Improper deactivation ..................... 9,500 17,000
(f) Improper use of locomotive as controlling unit ...... 9,500 17,000
(9) Locomotive not properly equipped with indicator . 9,500 17,000
(h) Rebuilt locomotive not properly equipped .........cccccoveerieeneennene 9,500 17,000
(j) Failure to adopt or comply with dynamic brake operating rules .. 13,000 20,500
(k) Failure to adopt or comply with training on operating proCedures ............coeverieeriirneereeenee e 13,000 20,500
232.111 Train handling information:
(a) Failure to adopt and comply With ProCEAUIES .........c.coiiiiiiiiiieiie e e 13,000 20,500
(b) Failure to provide specific information ............... 9,500 17,000

Subpart C—Inspection and Testing Requirements

232.203 Training requirements:
(a) Failure to develop Or adOPt PrOGIAM .......coiiiiiiiiie ettt ettt eb e e b saeeeeee e 19,500 25,000

(b)(1)—(9) Failure to address or comply with specific required item or provision of program .... 9,500 17,000
(c) Failure to adopt or comply with two-way EOT program ... 13,000 20,500
(d) Failure to adopt or comply with retaining valve program .. 13,000 20,500
(e) Failure to maintain adequate records .......c...cccceevvveeeceeeennns 13,000 20,500
(f) Failure to adopt and comply with periodic assessment plan ..........ccccccooiiiiiiiiiiniiicec e 19,500 25,000
232.205 Class | brake test—initial terminal inspection:
(a) Complete failure to Perform INSPECION ........ccviiiiriiiiie e (1) 19,500 25,000
(c)(1)—(4), (6)—(8) Partial failure to perform inspection .. 13,000 20,500
(c)(5) Failure to properly adjust piston travel (per car) .. 9,500 17,000
(d) Failure to use carman when required ... 5,500 10,000
(e) Failure to provide proper notification .... 9,500 17,000
(f) Failure to vOid COMPIESSEA @I .....cciicuiieiiiieeeitieeee e e ste e et e e et e e e steeeesaeeeeasaeeeasseaeennseeesnseeeanneeeensnns 9,500 17,000
232.207 Class IA brake tests—1,000-mile inspection:
(a) Complete failure to perform inspection ........ (1) 18,000 20,500
(b)(1)—(6) Partial failure to perform inspection .. 9,500 17,000
(c) Failure to properly designate location ............. 9,500 17,000
(c)(1) Failure to perform at designated location ... 9,500 17,000
(c)(2) Failure to provide NOtIfICAtION ........c.ceeiiiiiiiiee e e e e e e e e e e e e ernae e e eneeeennnes 9,500 17,000
232.209 Class Il brake tests—intermediate inspection:
(a) Complete failure to Perform INSPECHION .......cccuieiiiiie e e e snee e e sneeeennneas (1) 18,000 20,500
(b)(1)—(5), (c) Partial failure to perform inspection ..... 9,500 17,000
(c) Failure to conduct Class | after Class Il pick-up M M
232.211 Class Il brake tests—trainline continuity inspection:
(a) Complete failure to Perform INSPECHION .......cccuieiiiiie e e e snee e e sneeeennneas 13,000 20,500
(b)(1)—(4), (c) Partial failure to perform inspection .. 9,500 17,000
(d) Failure to restore air PreSSUre @t FEA ........cccceeevieeeiieeeseeeeseee e et e e e s e e s e e e s ree e e ssteeesnreeesnneeeensnes 9,500 17,000
232.213 Extended haul trains:
(a)(1) Failure to properly designate an extended haul train ..........c.ccociiiiiiiiiiiiciee e 13,000 20,500
(@)(2)=(3), (5)(i), (8) Failure to perform inspections ................ Q) ™
(a)(4) Failure to remove defective car (per car) ......... 5,500 10,000
(a)(5)(ii), (6) Failure to conduct inbound inspection ... 13,000 20,500
(a)(7) Failure to maintain record of defects (per car) .... 5,500 10,000
(b) Improper movement or use of extended haul train ... 13,000 20,500
232.215 Transfer train brake tests:
(a) Failure to perform iNSPECHON ........c.oo i e 13,000 20,500
(b) Failure to perform on €ars added ..........ccceiiiiieeiiiee et e e e e e e e nnaes 9,500 17,000
232.217 Train brake system tests conducted using yard air:
(a) Failure to use suitable device .................. 9,500 17,000
(b) Improper connection of air test device .... 13,000 20,500
(c) Failure to properly perform inspection M) M
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(d) Failure to calibrate teSt AEVICE .......cccueiiiiiiiicie et e s e nnneas 9,500 17,000
(€) Failure 10 USE ACCUIAtE GEVICE ......cccueiieiiiieiiieeeeee e ettt e e etee e et e e et e e e st eeeenee e e e nneeeesnseeeenseeesnneeeeannes 9,500 17,000
232.219 Double heading and helper service:
(a) Failure to perform inspection or inability to control brakes ..........ccccooiiiiiiiiiiin e 9,500 17,000
(b) Failure to make visual inspection 9,500 17,000
(c) Use of improper helper link device 9,500 17,000
Subpart D—Periodic Maintenance and Testing Requirements
232.303 General requirements:
(b)—(d) Failure to conduct inspection or test when car on repair track ..........ccoccoecieiiiiiiiiniciiic e 9,500 17,000
(e) Improper movement of equipment for testing .......c.ccccecvevieenieenen. 9,500 17,000
(e)(1) Failure to properly tag equipment for movement ...................... 5,500 10,000
(e)(2)—(4) Failure to retain record or improper removal of tag or card ... 5,500 10,000
(f) Failure to stencil or track test INfOrmation ... 9,500 17,000
232.305 Single car tests:
(a) Failure to test in accord with required procedure 9,500 17,000
() (& I = U= (o T o =Y o (o] g T =T USSR 9,500 17,000
232.309 Single car air brake test equipment and devices:
(a)—(f) Failure to properly test or Calibrate ............ccoooiiiiiiiiii e 9,500 17,000
Subpart E—End-of-Train Devices
232.403 Design standards for one-way devices:
(a)—(g) Failure to meet Standards ...........c.oociiiiiiii e e 9,500 17,000
232.405 Design standards for two-way devices:
(a)—(i) Failure to meet StaNAArdS ...........cociiiiiiiiii e e 9,500 17,000
232.407 Operating requirements for two-way devices:
(b) Failure to @qUIP @ TrAIN .......oiii e e 13,000 20,500
(c) Improper purchase ..........cccecceeeeeeeeesieeeesiiee s 9,500 17,000
(f)(1) Failure of device to be armed and operable .. 13,000 20,500
(f)(2) Insufficient Dattery Charge ... 9,500 17,000
(f)(3) Failure to activate the deVICE ... e 9,500 17,000
(g) Improper handling of en route failure, freight or other non-passenger . 13,000 20,500
(h) Improper handling of en route failure, PasSENGEr ..ot 13,000 20,500
232.409 Inspection and testing of devices:
(a) Failure to have UNIQUE COOE ........cc.oiiiiiiiiii ettt s 9,500 17,000
(b) Failure to compare quantitative values .... 9,500 17,000
(c) Failure to test emergency capability ........ 13,000 20,500
(d) Failure to properly CalIDrate ..........c.ooiiiiiiiiie e 9,500 17,000
Subpart F—Introduction of New Brake System Technology
232.503 Process to introduce new technology:
(b) Failure to obtain FRA @PPrOVal ..........ccoiiiiiiiiiiiiie et s 19,500 25,000
232.505 Pre-revenue service acceptance testing plan:
(a) Failure to obtain FRA @pProVal ..........c.oociiiiiiiiiiiie ettt e 13,000 20,500
(b) Failure to comply with plan ...................... 9,500 17,000
(f) Failure to test previously used teChNOIOGY .........ccceiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiie e 13,000 20,500
Subpart G—Electronically Controlled Pneumatic (ECP) Braking Systems
232.603 Design, interoperability, and configuration management requirements:
(a) Failure to meet minimum standards .................. 5,500 10,000
(b) Using ECP brake equipment without approval ............cccooeeeireienenieneneee. 9,500 17,000
(c) Failure to adopt and comply with a proper configuration management plan ..........c.cccooeiiiniennnene 13,000 20,500
232.605 Training Requirements:
(a) Failure to adopt and comply with a proper training, qualification, and designation program for em-
ployees that perform inspection, testing or maintenance W) M
(b) Failure to amend operating rUIES ..........cceiiiiiiiiiiii e 13,000 20,500
(c) Failure to adopt and comply with proper training criteria for locomotive engineers ...............ccc........ 13,000 20,500
232.607 Inspection and testing requirements:
(@)(1), (b), (c)(1) Complete or partial failure to perform INSPECION .........cccecerriiririinieie e Q) W)
(a)(2) Complete or partial failure to perform pre-departure inspection ................ 9,500 17,000
(c)(1)(iv), (c)(2) Failure to perform visual inspection on a car added en route ... 9,500 17,000
(d) Failure to perform inspection ...........cccceevvenene M M
(e)(1), (2) Failure to properly initialize the train .............cccoceeee 9,500 17,000
(e)(B) Failure to ensure identical consist and system information . 9,500 17,000
(f)(1) Failure to apply a proper brake pipe service reduction ........... M W)
(f)(2) Failure to properly adhere to the proper piston travel ranges .... M) M
(9)(1)—(4) Improperly located and guarded cable ..............c.ccceeeeeee 13,000 20,500
(9)(5) Condition of cable and CONNECHIONS .........coiuiiiiiiiiiiie et 9,500 17,000
232.609 Handling of defective equipment with ECP brake systems:
(a) Failure to have proper percentage of operative brakes from Class | brake test ........ccccccoovnivnnnens M) M
(b) Failure to prevent a car known to arrive with defective brakes to depart location where a Class |
o] 2= L (I (=YY A S (=Y [T =T S 9,500 17,000
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(c) Improper movement of a car equipped with conventional pneumatic brakes ............cccooeeiiiniennnnne 9,500 17,000
(d) Operating with less than 85 percent operative brakes ............ccocoicieiiiiiiiniiiiie e Q) W)
(f)(2)(i) Improper placement of defective conventional brake equipment ..........cccocceiiiiiiiiiine e Q) ©)
(f)(2)(ii) Improper placement of defective ECP brake equipment ...........cccccooiiiiiiiiniinnenccee e 9,500 17,000

(9) Improper movement of defective stand-alone ECP brake equipment in a train operating with con-
ventional PReUMALIC Drakes .........ooiiiiiiiiiiiiie et M M

(h) Improper movement from initial terminal of stand-alone ECP brake equipment in a conventional
Drake OPErated tralin ..........oceiiiiiiii et ettt et nene s M M
(i) Failure to tag EQUIPIMENT ..ottt s b e e et e e be e sneeeeeas Q) ©)
())(1) Failure to adopt and comply with procedures for the movement of defective equipment .............. 5,500 10,000
(j)(2) Failure to submit list of ECP brake system repair 10Cations .........c..cccooeiriiieiienieiniieie e 9,500 17,000

232.611 Periodic maintenance:
(a) Failure to ensure the proper and safe condition Of Car ...........ccociiiiiiiiiii i 9,500 17,000
(b)—(d) Failure 10 Perform ST ......ocii ittt 9,500 17,000
232.613 End-of-train devices:

(a) Failure to meet design standards for ECP—EOT deViCES .......ccceriiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiceeeteee e 9,500 17,000
(b) Moving with an improper or improperly connected ECP-EOQT deviCe ......c..ccoeveeriiniieiieiinie e 9,500 17,000

1 A penalty may be assessed against an individual only for a willful violation. Generally, when two or more violations of these regulations are
discovered with respect to a single unit of equipment that is placed or continued in service by a railroad, the appropriate penalties set forth above
are aggregated up to a maximum of $25,000 per day. Although the penalties listed for failure to perform the brake inspections and tests under
§232.205 through §232.209 may be assessed for each train that is not properly inspected, failure to perform any of the inspections and tests re-
quired under those sections will be treated as a violation separate and distinct from, and in addition to, any substantive violative conditions found
on the equipment contained in the train consist. Moreover, the Administrator reserves the right to assess a penalty of up to $100,000 for any vio-
lation where circumstances warrant. See 49 CFR part 209, appendix A.

Failure to observe any condition for movement of defective equipment set forth in §232.15(a) will deprive the railroad of the benefit of the
movement-for-repair provision and make the railroad and any responsible individuals liable for penalty under the particular regulatory section(s)
concerning the substantive defect(s) present on the equipment at the time of movement.

Failure to provide any of the records or plans required by this part pursuant to §232.19 will be considered a failure to maintain or develop the
record or plan and will make the railroad liable for penalty under the particular regulatory section(s) concerning the retention or creation of the
document involved.

Failure to properly perform any of the inspections specifically referenced in §§232.209, 232.213, and 232.217 may be assessed under each
section of this part or this chapter, or both, that contains the requirements for performing the referenced inspection.

2 The penalty schedule uses section numbers from 49 CFR part 232. If more than one item is listed as a type of violation of a given section,
each item is also designated by a “penalty code,” which is used to facilitate assessment of civil penalties, and which may or may not correspond
to any subsection designation(s). For convenience, penalty citations will cite the CFR section and the penalty code, if any. FRA reserves the
right, should Iiggation become necessary, to substitute in its complaint the CFR citation in place of the combined CFR and penalty code citation,
should they differ.

Authority: 49 U.S.C. 20103, 20107; 28
U.S.C. 2461, note; and 49 CFR 1.49.

41. Appendix A to part 233 is revised
to read as follows:

PART 233—[AMENDED]

40. The authority citation for part 233
continues to read as follows:

APPENDIX A TO PART 233—SCHEDULE OF CIVIL PENALTIES

. o Willful
Section? Violation violation
233.5 Accidents resulting from signal failure $9,500 $17,000
233.7 Signal failure reports ........cccoveveenenenns 5,500 10,000
P2aC S N T o 1T o o] o - PRSP 2,500 5,000

1 A penalty may be assessed against an individual only for a willful violation. The Administrator reserves the right to assess a penalty of up to

$100,000 for any violation where circumstances warrant. See 49 CFR part 209, appendix A.

2 The penalty schedule uses section numbers from 49 CFR part 233. If more than one item is listed as a type of violation of a given section,

each item is also designated by a “penalty code,” which is used to facilitate assessment of civil penalties, and which may or may not correspond
to any subsection designation(s). For convenience, penalty citations will cite the CFR section and the penalty code, if any. FRA reserves the
right, should litigation become necessary, to substitute in its complaint the CFR citation in place of the combined CFR and penalty code citation,
should they differ.

Authority: 49 U.S.C. 20103, 20107; 28

PART 234—[AMENDED]
U.S.C. 2461, note; and 49 CFR 1.49.

42. The authority citation for part 234
continues to read as follows:

43. Appendix A to part 234 is revised
to read as follows:
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Subpart B—Reports
234.7 Accidents involving grade crossing signal failure ... $9,500 $17,000
234.9 Grade crossing signal system failure reports .........ccoocieiiiiiieiiieie e e 5,500 10,000
Subpart C—Response to Reports of Warning System Malfunction
234.101 Employee NOLIfICAtION TUIES .......oocuiiiiiiiiiiiie ettt e 5,500 10,000
234.103 Timely response to report of malfunction 13,000 20,500
234.105 Activation failure:
(a) Failure to NOIfy—train CrEWS .......cuiiiiiiiieiie ettt r e saresnee e 19,500 25,000
(O] [T g = 11 oY= To LSOO SRRSO 19,500 25,000
(b) Failure to notify law enforcement agENCY .........ccocuiiiiiiiiiiiiiii e e 5,500 10,000
(c) Failure to comply with—flagging requirements .. 13,000 20,500
Speed restrictions .........ccceeiiiiiniie e 13,000 20,500
(d) Failure to activate horn or WHIStIE ...........coiiiiiiiiieie e e 5,500 10,000
234.106 Partial activation:
(a) Failure to NOIfy—train CrEWS .......ccuiiiiiiiieiee ettt ettt st e e ae e ebeesaeeeeee e 9,500 17,000
Other railroads 9,500 17,000
(b) Failure to notify law enforcemMent AQENCY .........coiuieiiiiiiiiiiie et 5,500 10,000
(c) Failure to comply with—flagging requirements speed restrictions ............ccocvevieriiiniienic i 9,500 17,000
(d) Failure to activate horn or WHIStIE ...........coiiiiiiiiii et 5,500 10,000
234.107 False activation:
(a) Failure to NOIfy—train CrEWS .......cuiiiiiiiieiee ettt ettt et b e ae e e beesateeeee e 13,000 20,500
(O] 1= g = 11 1= To LT PP P P PPPTN 13,000 20,500
(b) Failure to notify law enforcement agency .......... 5,500 10,000
(c) Failure to comply with—flagging requirements .. 9,500 17,000
SPEEA FESIHCHONS ...ttt ettt ettt b e e ab e e s bt e st e e be e e bt e sbeeenbeesneeenbeesnnean 9,500 17,000
(d) Failure to activate horn or WhiStle ...t 5,500 10,000
P o L0 B a=TeT o] o [ (=TT o o o PSP PSPPI 2,500 5,000
Subpart D—Maintenance, Inspection, and Testing
Maintenance Standards
P2 7 o2 O I o T Yo g o) o] - 5,500 10,000
234.203 CoNtrol CIrCUILS ......cccuveeeeiieeeeiie et 9,500 17,000
234.205 Operating characteristics of warning system apparatus 13,000 20,500
234.207 Adjustment, repair, or replacement of component ........ 13,000 20,500
234.209 Interference with normal functioning of system ....... 19,500 25,000
234.211 Locking of warning system apparatus .............. 5,500 10,000
234.213 Grounds .......ccccccervenereeneneeneneenennens 9,500 17,000
234.215 Standby power system ... 19,500 25,000
234.217 Flashing light units ................. 5,500 10,000
234.219 Gate arm lights and light cable 5,500 10,000
234.221 Lamp voltage ......ccccoecveeercneenne 9,500 17,000
234.223 Gate arm ........ 5,500 10,000
234.225 Activation of warning system 19,500 25,000
234.227 Train detection apparatus .... 19,500 25,000
234.229 Shunting sensitivity ........... 19,500 25,000
234.231 Fouling wires ........... 13,000 20,500
234.233 Rail joints .............. 13,000 20,500
234.235 Insulated rail joints 19,500 25,000
234.237 Switch equipped with circuit Controller ..........coccvveeiieiecee e 5,500 10,000
234.239 Tagging of wires and interference of wires or tags with signal apparatus . 5,500 10,000
234.241 Protection of insulated wire; splice in underground wire ..........c.cccceeveeenee. 9,500 17,000
234.243 Wire on pole line and aerial cable ............cccccoeiiiiiens 9,500 17,000
284,245 SIGNS ..eeiiiieeeeie et e e e R R et e Rt e Rt e e et e e e nre e e e nreereenreaneen 5,500 10,000
Inspections and Tests
234.247 Purpose of inspections and tests; removal from service of relay or device failing to meet test
[=To 0T =Y 14 =T 01 (TSRS UUPRROURRRN 13,000 20,500
234.249 Ground tests ... 13,000 20,500
234.251 Standby POWEN ......cccevveeveieiiieeieeieenne 9,500 17,000
234.253 Flashing light units and lamp voltage .. 5,500 10,000
234.255 Gate arm and gate mechanism ........... 5,500 10,000
234.257 Warning system operation ...... 13,000 20,500
234.259 Warning time ........ccccoeiiiiininiieeen, 9,500 17,000
234.261 Highway traffic signal pre-emption .... 9,500 17,000
234.263 Relays .....ccccocrveniiiiniieeeeeens 9,500 17,000
234.265 Timing relays and timing deviCes .........cccccccervvreeiieeennnns 9,500 17,000
234.267 Insulation resistance tests, wires in trunking and cables . 9,500 17,000
234.269 Cut-0ut CIFCUILS ...ccvvreeeeiceeieceeeseee e 19,500 25,000
234.271 Insulated rail joints, bond wires, and track connections 9,500 17,000
234.273  RESUIS Of TESES ....viieeiiiceeecee e e e e 2,500 5,000
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APPENDIX A TO PART 234—SCHEDULE OF CIVIL PENALTIES '—Continued
. o Willful
Section 2 Violation violation
Requirements for Processor-Based Systems
234.275 Processor-Based SYSIEIMS ........ooiiiiiiiiiiiiieiie et sttt 13,000 20,500

1 A penalty may be assessed against an individual only for a willful violation. The Administrator reserves the right to assess a penalty of up to
$100,000 for any violation where circumstances warrant. See 49 CFR part 209, appendix A.

2 The penalty schedule uses section numbers from 49 CFR part 234. If more than one item is listed as a type of violation of a given section,
each item is also designated by a “penalty code,” which is used to facilitate assessment of civil penalties, and which may or may not correspond
to any subsection designation(s). For convenience, penalty citations will cite the CFR section and the penalty code, if any. FRA reserves the
right, should litigation become necessary, to substitute in its complaint the CFR citation in place of the combined CFR and penalty code citation,
should they differ.

Authority: 49 U.S.C. 20103, 20107; 28
U.S.C. 2461, note; and 49 CFR 1.49.

PART 235—[AMENDED] 45. Appendix A to part 235 is revised

G e to read as follows:
44. The authority citation for part 235

continues to read as follows:

APPENDIX A TO PART 235—SCHEDULE OF CIVIL PENALTIES !

_ . Willful
Section 2 Violation violation
235.5 Changes requiring filing of application $5,500 $10,000

1 A penalty may be assessed against an individual only for a willful violation. The Administrator reserves the right to assess a penalty of up to
$100,000 for any violation where circumstances warrant. See 49 CFR part 209, appendix A.

2 The penalty schedule uses section numbers from 49 CFR part 235. If more than one item is listed as a type of violation of a given section,
each item is also designated by a “penalty code,” which is used to facilitate assessment of civil penalties, and which may or may not correspond
to any subsection designation(s). For convenience, penalty citations will cite the CFR section and the penalty code, if any. FRA reserves the
right, should Iiggation become necessary, to substitute in its complaint the CFR citation in place of the combined CFR and penalty code citation,
should they differ.

Authority: 49 U.S.C. 20103, 20107; 28
U.S.C. 2461, note and 49 CFR 1.49.

PART 236—[AMENDED]

46. The authority citation for part 236
continues to read as follows:

47. Appendix A to part 236 is revised
to read as follows:

APPENDIX A TO PART 236—SCHEDULE OF CIVIL PENALTIES

Section 2 Violation Willful violation
236.0 Applicability, minimum reqUIrEMENTS .........coeiiiririerieriet et ene s $9,500 $17,000
Subpart A—Rules and Instructions—All Systems
General

P20 TG T B o F= g F T 1= T = B =T o SRR 13,000 20,500
P2 (T2 €] (o101 o o PP P RSP UPPPPO 13,000 20,500
236.3 Locking of signal apparatus housings:

Power interlocking machine cabinet not secured against unauthorized entry ... 5,500 10,000

Other VIOIAtIONS .......ooiuiiiiieiiie e 5,500 10,000
236.4 Interference with normal functioning of device ........ 19,500 25,000
236.5 Design of control circuits on closed circuit principle ............. 19,500 25,000
236.6 Hand-operated switch equipped with switch circuit controller .. 13,000 20,500
236.7 Circuit controller operated by switch-and-lock Movement ............cccoooiiiiiiiiieeii e 13,000 20,500
236.8 Operating characteristics of electro-magnetic, electronic, or electrical apparatus ...........cccccceerereenne 9,500 17,000
236.9 Selection of circuits through indicating or annunciating instruments ...............cc......... 5,500 10,000
236.10 Electric locks, force drop type; where required ..........ccccevveeneneene 5,500 10,000
236.11 Adjustment, repair, or replacement of component . 13,000 20,500
236.12 Spring switch signal protection; where required ............cccocieviiiiininnieenen. 9,500 17,000
236.13 Spring switch; selection of signal control circuits through circuit controller . 9,500 17,000
236.14 Spring switch signal protection; reqUIrEMENES ...........cccciiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeer e 9,500 17,000
236.15 Timetable INSIIUCHIONS ....c..ciiiiiiiieiie ettt e e enns 5,500 10,000
236.16 Electric lock, main track releasing circuit:

Electric lock releasing circuit on main track extends into fouling circuit where turnout not equipped

with derail at clearance point either pipe-connected to switch or independently locked, electrically .. 13,000 20,500

OFNEI VIOIATIONS ...ttt ettt r e e r e s ae e s r e e s e e bt e n e e b e e s et e ean e nn e e e e nneennes 13,000 20,500
236.17 Pipe for operating connections, reqQUIrEMENTS .........cceoiiiriiiiiieniiie et 5,500 10,000
236.18 Software management control plan:

(a) Failure to develop and adopt a plan 9,500 17,000

(b) Failure to fully implement plan .............. 9,500 17,000

(o) LT To L= U E= 1 C= o] =T o TSR 9,500 17,000
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APPENDIX A TO PART 236—SCHEDULE OF CIVIL PENALTIES '—Continued

Section? Violation Willful violation
Roadway Signals and Cab Signals
236.21 Location of roadway SIGNAIS ........ccecoiiiiiiiiiieiiie e e 13,000 20,500
236.22 Semaphore signal arm; clearance to other ObJECES .........cociiiiiiiiiiiiiii e 5,500 10,000
236.23 Aspects and indications .........ccccceeieieeiiienieneeees 9,500 17,000
236.24 Spacing of roadway signals ... 13,000 20,500
236.26 Buffing device, maintenance 13,000 20,500
Track Circuits

236.51 Track circuit requirements:

(a) Shunt fouling circuit used where permissible speed through turnout greater than 45 m.p.h ............ 13,000 20,500

(b) Track relay not in de-energized position or device that functions as track relay not in its most re-

strictive state when train, locomotive, or car occupies any part of track circuit, except fouling sec-
tion of turnout of hand-operated main-track CrOSSOVET ........ccccuivieiiieiiiiie e 19,500 25,000

Other violations .......c..oeiiiiieiiiieecceeeeee e 13,000 20,500
236.52 Relayed cut-section ..........cccccoecvveernnnen. 13,000 20,500
236.53 Track circuit feed at grade crossing ... 13,000 20,500
236.54 Minimum length of track circuit ........... 13,000 20,500
236.55 Dead section; maximum length 13,000 20,500
236.56  ShUNtING SENSIIVILY ...eotiiiiiiiiiit ettt sttt b et e e sae e et e sbe e e bt e saneeees 13,000 20,500
236.57 Shunt and fouling wires:

(a) Shunt or fouling wires do not consist of at least two discrete conductors ...........cceeeeviiiniirieinnene 13,000 20,500

OhEr VIOIAtIONS ...ttt ettt et e bt e e et e st e eabe e bt e enbeeeaeeemseaseeenbeesneeanseesnseenseaaneaan 9,500 17,000
236.58 Turnout, fouling section:

Rail joint in shunt fouling section not bonded 13,000 20,500

Other violations ..........cccovveiieeniiieeneeeee 9,500 17,000
236.59 Insulated rail joints .......ccooceiiiiiiiiiniee 13,000 20,500
236.60 Switch shunting Circuit; USE reStrCIEd ........cooiiiiiiiiii e 13,000 20,500

Wires and Cables
236.71 Signal wires on pole line and aerial cable .............c........ 13,000 20,500
236.73 Open-wire transmission line; clearance to other circuits . 9,500 17,000
236.74 Protection of insulated wire; splice in underground wWire .........ccccccovvevrieeenen. 9,500 17,000
236.76 Tagging of wires and interference of wires or tags with signal apparatus ...........cccccceviiiiiniieennnn. 5,500 10,000
Inspections and Tests; All Systems

236.101 Purpose of inspection and tests; removal from service or relay or device failing to meet test re-

[0 181 (=T 00 1T €S PRER 9,500 17,000
236.102 Semaphore or search-light signal mechanism . 13,000 20,500
236.103 Switch circuit controller or poiNt ABTECION .......cceivi i 13,000 20,500
236.104  Shunt FOUING CIrCUIL .....ceiueiieii ettt ettt et e et e e eab e e beesnbeeeaeeeabeeaseeenbeeaneeannes 9,500 17,000
236.105 Electric lock 9,500 17,000
236.106 Relays ............ 9,500 17,000
236.107 Ground tests 9,500 17,000
236.108 Insulation resistance tests, wires in trunking and cables:

(c) Circuit permitted to function on a conductor having insulation resistance value less than 200,000
o] a1 0 0TSSR 13,000 20,500
(010 T=T Vi To] = o] o LSOO USPOP 9,500 17,000
236.109 Time releases, timing relays and timing deVICES ..........cc.eiiiiiiiiiiiiiiie e 9,500 17,000
236.110  RESUILS OF 1SS ..eoueiiiiiiiiii ittt ettt ettt e bt et et e et e saeeennes 2,500 5,000
Subpart B—Automatic Block Signal Systems
Standards
236.201 Track circuit control Of SIGNAIS .......ccooiiiiiiiii et 13,000 20,500
236.202 Signal governing movements over hand-operated switch .... 13,000 20,500
236.203 Hand-operated crossover between main tracks; protection ....... 13,000 20,500
236.204 Track signaled for movements in both directions, requirements 13,000 20,500
236.205 Signal control circuits; requireMents ..........ccoceeeevreerineeieneniens 19,500 25,000
236.206 Battery or power supply with respect to relay; l0Cation ..........ccooceiviiiiiiieei e 9,500 17,000
236.207 Electric lock on hand-operated switch; control:
Approach or time locking of electric lock on hand-operated switch can be defeated by unauthorized
use of emergency device which is not kept sealed in the non-release position 13,000 20,500
(010 T=T RV To] =i o] o LTSRS PRSPPI 9,500 17,000
Subpart C—Interlocking
Standards
236.301 Where signals shall be provided 9,500 17,000
236.302 Track circuits and route locking 13,000 17,000
236.303 Control circuits for signals, selection through circuit controller operated by switch points or by

SWItCh 10CKING MECNANISIM ...t e e e e e s e e e sn e e e s nn e e e ennneesnneas 13,000 20,500
236.304 Mechanical locking or same protection effected by circuits . 13,000 20,500
236.305 Approach or time 10CKing .......ccccevvvevreieeeennnenn. 13,000 20,500
236.306 Facing point lock or switch-and-lock movement 9,500 17,000
P2C TG RC 0 A [ o (o= o] o TN (o To] (] o o PR PRT 13,000 20,500
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APPENDIX A TO PART 236—SCHEDULE OF CIVIL PENALTIES '—Continued

Section? Violation Willful violation
236.308 Mechanical or electric locking or electric Circuits; requUISItES .........coooeeiriiieiiiiec e 13,000 20,500
236.309 Loss of shunt protection; where required:
Loss of shunt of five seconds or less permits release of route locking of power-operated switch,
movable pPoint frog, OF AETAII .........coicuiiriii et 13,000 20,500
Other violations .........ccccooiriiiinereececee e 9,500 17,000
236.310 Signal governing approach to home signal 9,500 17,000
236.311 Signal control circuits, selection through track relays or devices functioning as track relays and
through signal mechanism contacts and time releases at automatic interlocking ..., 13,000 20,500
236.312 Movable bridge, interlocking of signal appliances with bridge devices:
Emergency bypass switch or device not locked or sealed .............ccooeiiiiiiiiiiiiic s 13,000 20,500
(O[T AR/ 1] b= i o] o 1= SRR 13,000 20,500
236.314 Electric lock for hand-operated switch or derail:
Approach or time locking of electric lock at hand-operated switch or derail can be defeated by unau-
thorized use of emergency device which is not kept sealed in non-release position ..............cccceeeee. 13,000 20,500
Oher VIOIALIONS ...ttt ettt b et h e e st e et e s bt e s be e eneesar e e beeaaneas 13,000 20,500
Rules and Instructions
236.326 Mechanical locking removed or disarranged; requirement for permitting train movements
through INtErIOCKING .....ooueieie e e e 9,500 17,000
236.327 Switch, movable-point frog or split-point derail . 13,000 20,500
236.328 Plunger of facing-point ..........cccoeviiiiiiiiiiees 9,500 17,000
236.329 BOIt 10CK .....corviiiiiiiiiiece 13,000 20,500
236.330 Locking dog of switch and lock movement .... 9,500 17,000
236.334 Point detector ........ccccveeveeeiiiiiieeeee e 13,000 20,500
236.335 Dogs, stops and trunnions of mechanical locking ... 5,500 10,000
236.336 Locking bed ........cccceeiiiiiiiiiiieee s 5,500 10,000
236.337 Locking faces of mechanical 10cking; fit ........cccooiiiiiniiniie e 5,500 10,000
236.338 Mechanical locking required in accordance with locking sheet and dog chart .... 5,500 10,000
236.339 Mechanical locking; maintenance reqUIremMeENts ...........ccccooiiieeiiieenniiee e 5,500 10,000
236.340 Electromechanical interlocking machine; locking between electrical and mechanical levers ........ 5,500 10,000
236.341 Latch shoes, rocker links, and qUAAIANES ...........cooouiiiiiiiiiniiie e 5,500 10,000
236.342  SWItCh CIrCUIt CONIOIIET .....ooiieiii ettt e e e e e e e et e e e ear e e e enareeeenneeeennnas 13,000 20,500
Inspection and Tests
236.376  MeChaniCal IOCKING .....coiiuiiiiiiiie ettt ettt e et e e e s e e e s ab e e e sbb e e e saneeeeenneeeenneas 9,500 17,000
236.377  APPrOACH IOCKING ....oiiitiiiiiiiie ettt ettt s b et nan e san e 9,500 17,000
236.378  TiME IOCKING ..ueiiiiiitieit ettt ettt ettt ettt e bt e ea et et e e see e e bt e e ee e e b e e st e e nbe e et e naneeanes 9,500 17,000
236.379 Route locking ....... 9,500 17,000
236.380 Indication locking .. 9,500 17,000
236.381  Traffic IOCKING ...eiiviieeieeiee et s sr e nr e e ene e 9,500 17,000
236.382  SWitCh ODSIIUCLION tESE .....c.viiieiiiiieie e 13,000 20,500
236.383 Valve locks, valves, and valve magnets .. 9,500 17,000
236.384 Cross protection ..........ccoceeeieniiiieeneenne. 9,500 17,000
236.386 Restoring feature on power switches .. 9,500 17,000
236.387 Movable bridge [0CKING ......c.coioiiiiiiiii e s 13,000 20,500
Subpart D—Traffic Control Systems Standards
Standards
236.401 Automatic block signal system and interlocking standards applicable to traffic control systems:
236.402 Signals controlled by track circuits and control Operator ............ccocceeceeriiiieiie e 19,500 25,000
236.403 Signals at CONtrolled POINT .......uiiiiiiiiii ettt e 19,500 25,000
236.404 Signals at adjacent CoONtrol POINES .........cceiviiiiiiiiiiiiec e 19,500 25,000
236.405 Track signaled for movements in both directions, change of direction of traffic .. 19,500 25,000
236.407 Approach or time locking; where required ...........cccccooiiiiiiiiiiiieene e 19,500 25,000
236.408 ROULE IOCKING ...eeiiiieiieicie et n e s e e nr e e e e 19,500 25,000
236.410 Locking, hand-operated switch; requirements:
(a) Hand-operated switch on main track not electrically or mechanically locked in normal position
where signal not provided to govern movement to main track, movements made at speeds in ex-
cess of 20 m.p.h., or train and engine movements may clear main track ..........c.ccceevrieenienieeneeenne. 13,000 20,500
Hand-operated switch on signaled siding not electrically or mechanically locked in normal position
where maximum authorized speed on the siding exceeds 30 M.P.h ....c.oovoiiiiiiiiiii e 13,000 20,500
(b) Approach or time locking of electric lock at hand-operated switch can be defeated by use of
emergency release device of electric lock which is not kept sealed in non-release position ... 13,000 20,500
ONEI VIOIALONS ...ttt e e e e e et e e e et e e e e eaee e e e aeeeeasaeeessseessnseeesssseeesasseeeaasaeeeanes 9,500 17,000
Rules and Instructions
236.426 Interlocking rules and instructions applicable to traffic control systems ..........ccccociiiiiiiiiinnnn. 2,500 5,000
Inspection and Tests
236.476 Interlocking inspections and tests applicable to traffic control systems ..........cccccccoiiiiiiiinniennn 2,500 5,000
Subpart E—Automatic Train Stop, Train Control and Cab Signal Systems Standards
Standards
236.501 Forestalling device and Speed CONTIOI .........ccoiuiiiiiiiiiiiie et 9,500 17,000
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Section? Violation Willful violation
236.502 Automatic brake application, initiation by restrictive block conditions stopping distance in ad-

1122 0T PP 13,000 20,500
236.503 Automatic brake application; initiation when predetermined rate of speed exceeded ...... 13,000 20,500
236.504 Operations interconnected with automatic block-signal system ..........cccccceiiiiiniicens 9,500 17,000
236.505 Proper operative relation between parts along roadway and parts on locomotive . 5,500 10,000
236.506 Release of brakes after automatic application ............cccciiiiiiiiiiii i 13,000 20,500
236.507 Brake application; fUll SEIVICE ........coiiiiiiiiiiie ettt e e e e s e e ne e e e nneas 9,500 17,000
236.508 Interference with application of brakes by means of brake valve . 9,500 17,000
236.509 Two or more 10comotives COUPIEA ..........cociiiiiiiiiiiiic e 5,500 10,000
236.511 Cab signals controlled in accordance with block conditions stopping distance in advance .......... 9,500 17,000
236.512 Cab signal indication when locomotive enters bIOCKS ..........cccoiiiiiiiiiiiiiicece e 13,000 20,500
236.513  Audible INAICALOr .......cooviieiiiieeieseeeee e 9,500 17,000
236.514 Interconnection of cab signal system with roadway signal system 5,500 10,000
236.515 Visibility of cab signals ... 9,500 17,000
236.516  POWEE SUPPIY .o e 5,500 10,000

Rules and Instructions; Roadway
236.526 Roadway element not funNCtionNiNg PrOPEIIY .....cooviiiiiiiiiiiieie e 5,500 10,000
236.527 Roadway element insulation resistance ..o, 5,500 10,000
236.528 Restrictive condition resulting from open hand-operated switch; requirement .... 9,500 17,000
236.529 Roadway element inductor; height and distance from rail .........cccccoooiiiinnennen. 5,500 10,000
236.531 Trip arm; height and distance from rail ..........cccccceveenneene 5,500 10,000
236.532 Strap iron inductor; use restricted ..................... 5,500 10,000
236.534 Entrance to equipped territory; reqUuIremMeENtS .........ccooiiriiieiiiiiie et 9,500 17,000
Rules and Instructions; Locomotives

236.551 POWET SUPPIY VORAGE ..eueeiieiiiiiiiie et sttt 5,500 10,000
236.552  INSUIAtION FTESISTANCE ....oiiiiiiiiiieee et e e et e e e e e e e e e e e e e st e e e e e e e e nnraeeeas 5,500 10,000
236.553  Seal, WhEre reqUIFEA ........ooouiiiiiiiiieiie ettt ettt st e et e e s st e e ebeeeateesseeenbeesneeennes 5,500 10,000
236.554 Rate of pressure reduction; equalizing reservoir or brake pipe . 9,500 17,000
236.555 Repaired or rewound receiver COil ........cooveeeiieieeiiiieeniee e 2,500 5,000
236.556 Adjustment of relay ... 5,500 10,000
236.557 Receiver; location with respect to rail ..........cccocoeeiiiiiiii e 5,500 10,000
236.560 Contact element, mechanical trip type; location with respect to rail . 5,500 10,000
236.562 Minimum rail current requIired .........ccoccoeeriieeeniiee e 5,500 10,000
236.563 Delay time ............... 9,500 17,000
236.564 ACKNOWIEAGING TIME . ..iiiiiiiii ittt et b et e sae e et e et e e e e naeeennes 5,500 10,000
236.565 Provision made for preventing operation of pneumatic brake-applying apparatus by double-

heading ClOCK; reqUIrEMENT ..........oiiii e 5,500 10,000
236.566 Locomotive of each train operating in train stop, train control or cab signal territory; equipped ... 5,500 10,000
236.567 Restrictions imposed when device fails and/or is cut out en route:

Report not made to designated officer at next available point of communication after automatic train
stop, train control, or cab signal device fails and/or is cut €n route ............cccoeeiiiiiiiiiieniiee 9,500 17,000
Trains permitted to proceed at speed exceeding 79 m.p.h. where automatic train stop, train control,
or cab signal device fails and/or is cut out en route when absolute block established in advance of
train on Which deviCe iS INOPEIALIVE .........ooiiiiiiiiei et ae e 9,500 17,000
(@ T Y To] - 11 (o] =SSOSO UP PRSP 5,500 10,000
236.568 Difference between speeds authorized by roadway signal and cab signal; action ....................... 5,500 10,000
Inspection and Tests; Roadway
236.576 R0OAAWAY ElEMENT .....oiiiiiieiieie et e s e e s e e e e e annnes 5,500 10,000
236.577 Test, acknowledgement, and CUt-iN CIFCUITS ........oooieiiiiiiiieiriee e 5,500 10,000
Inspection and Tests; Locomotive
236.586 Daily Or @fter TP TESt ...cceiiiiiiiiei e 9,500 17,000
236.587 Departure test:
(b) Test of automatic train stop, train control, or cab signal apparatus on locomotive not made on de-
parture of locomotive from initial terminal if equipment on locomotive not cut out between initial ter-
minal and eqUIPPEA TEITIIOTY .....couiiiiiiii ettt st ettt b e e e sne e eneenene s 13,000 20,500
Test of automatic train stop, train control, or cab signal apparatus on locomotive not made imme-
diately on entering equipped territory, if equipment on locomotive cut out between initial terminal
EETaTo I=To (Ul o] o =T I (14 1 (o] VAT PO OO P RO P PR TP RPOPPRON 13,000 20,500
(c) Automatic train stop, train control, or cab signal apparatus on locomotive making more than one
trip within 24-hour period not given departure test within corresponding 24-hour period ................... 13,000 20,500
(d) Failure to certify, post, or retain test results as required ..........cccocceieiniiniienienieeeee 2,500 5,000
Other VIolations .........ceoiiiriiiiieee e 2,500 5,000
236.588 Periodic test 13,000 20,500
286.589  REIAYS ..eueeeueiieiieiti ettt a et h e b e a e bt et e £t e e e bt eae e et eneenaeeneenneaneens 9,500 17,000
236.590 Pneumatic apparatus:
Automatic train stop, train control, or cab signal apparatus not inspected and cleaned at least once
(V=T A A T e = TSRS 9,500 17,000
L@ (=T ] F= T g T PP 9,500 17,000
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APPENDIX A TO PART 236—SCHEDULE OF CIVIL PENALTIES '—Continued

Section? Violation Willful violation
Subpart F—Dragging Equipment and Slide Detectors and Other Similar Protective Devices;
Standards
Standards
236.601 Signals controlled by deviCes; I0CatION ..........c.oiiiiiiiiiiii s 13,000 20,500
Subpart H—Standards for Processor-Based Signal and Train Control Systems
236.905 Railroad Safety Program Plan (RSPP).
(a) Failure to develop and submit RSPP When required .........ccccoiiiiiieiiiiiie et 9,500 17,000
(d) Failure to obtain FRA approval for a modification to RSPP .........ccccoiiiiiiiiiieeee e 9,500 17,000
236.907 Product Safety Plan (PSP):
(a) Failure to address required PSP €leMENtS ........ccciiiriiiiiieiiiieesee et 9,500 17,000
(b) Failure to identify or implement product configuration/revision control measures ... 9,500 17,000
(d) Failure to communicate identified safety critical hazard ..............ccccoiviiiiiiiii e 19,500 25,000
236.909 Minimum Performance Standard:
(a) Failure to make analyses or documentation available ............cc.ccoociiiiiiiiiiie e 9,500 17,000
(b) Failure to determine or demonstrate that the minimum performance standard has been met ......... 13,000 20,500
236.913 Notification to FRA of PSPs:
(a) Failure to prepare a PSP or PSP amendment as required .........ccccceevcieeeiiieeeiieeeseee e seee e 9,500 17,000
(b) Failure to submit a PSP or PSP amendment as required ...........cccceieeeiieeiiiineenieeseesee e 9,500 17,000
(c) Failure to submit an informational filing .........c.cccoceeieenee. 9,500 17,000
(j) Field testing without authorization or approval 19,500 25,000
236.915 Implementation and operation:
(a) Operation of product without authorization or approval .... 19,500 25,000
(b) Failure to comply with PSP ........ccoiiiiiiiiiieeeee e 9,500 17,000
(c) Interference with normal functioning safety-critical product 19,500 25,000
(d) Failure to determine cause and adjust, repair or replace without undue delay or take appropriate
F=Tej ([ol g oT=T oo 1 Te B =T o= 1| (RSP PRPOPPTPPPRPI 9,500 17,000
236.917 Retention of records:
(a) Failure to maintain records as reQUITEA ...........ccceeoverireererieneseese sttt 9,500 17,000
(b)(1) Failure to report inconsistency ................... 13,000 20,500
(b)(2) Failure to take prompt countermeasures 5,500 10,000
(b)(3) Failure to provide final report ..................... 5,500 10,000
236.919 Operations and Maintenance Manual ............ 5,500 10,000
236.921 Training and qualification program, general 9,500 17,000
236.923 Task analysis and basic requirements:
(a) Failure to develop an acceptable training Program ...........ccoceeoiiiriieriieee e 9,500 17,000
(a)(6) Failure to train persons as required ...........ccccoceeeveereeeneeseeennn. 9,500 17,000
(a)(8) Failure to conduct evaluation of training program as required .. 5,500 10,000
(b) Failure to maintain records as required ............ccoceeveerieinennieeenen. 2,500 5,000
236.925 Training specific to control office personnel .........cccccceriiiviiiiiiniciceeeen. 9,500 17,000
236.927 Training specific to locomotive engineers and other operating personnel . 9,500 17,000
236.929 Training SPecific 10 roadWay WOTKEIS .......cccoiiiiiiiiiieiie ittt 9,500 17,000
Subpart I—Positive Train Control Systems
236.1005 Positive Train Control System Requirements:
Failure to complete PTC system installation on track segment where PTC is required prior to 12/31/

P20 TP PRSPPSOV PPP 5,500 10,000
Commencement of revenue service prior to obtaining PTC System Certification 13,000 20,500
Failure of the PTC system to perform a safety-critical function required by this section .............cc......... 19,500 25,000
Failure to provide notice, obtain approval, or follow a condition for temporary rerouting when required 13,000 20,500
Exceeding the allowed percentage of controlling locomotives operating out of an initial terminal after

receiving a failed iNtialiZatioN ...........cooii s 2,500 5,000

236.1006 Equipping locomotives operating in PTC territory:
Operating in PTC territory a controlling locomotive without a required and operative PTC onboard ap-

0221 =1 (U 1< PP PO PP PP PP PP P PP PPPPUPTPTPPN 19,500 25,000
Failure to report as prescribed by this section 2,500 5,000
Non-compliant operation of unequipped trains in PTC territory .........ccccooeveriiniriinieee e 13,000 20,500

236.1007 Additional requirements for high-speed service:
Operation of passenger trains at a speed equal to or greater than 60 m.p.h. on non-PTC-equipped

TErHtOry WhEre rEQUITEA ........oiiiiiieiiieie ettt e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e ne e e snneeeenneeeas 9,500 17,000
Operation of freight trains at a speed equal to or greater than 50 m.p.h. on non-PTC-equipped terri-

tory Where requIred .......oooocveeeiiiee i 9,500 17,000
Failure to fully implement incursion protection where required 9,500 17,000

236.1009 Procedural requirements:
Failure to file PTCIP WHhen reqUIIEA ..........oooiiiiiiie ittt ettt sttt e et e e seeebeesaeeeeeaans 2,500 5,000
Failure to amend PTCIP when required .............. 2,500 5,000
Failure to obtain Type Approval when required ... 2,500 5,000
Failure to update NPl .......ooooriiiiiieeeee e 2,500 5,000
Operation of PTC system prior to system certification ...........ccc.oorieiiiiniiieeeeeee e 13,000 20,500
236.1011 PTCIP content requirements:
Failure to install a PTC system in accordance with subpart | when so required ..........cccoccoceniiiennennns 2,500 5,000

236.1013 PTCDP content requirements and Type Approval:
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Section2 Violation Willful violation
Failure to maintain quality CONrol SYSTEIM ........c.coiiiiiiiiiii e e 2,500 5,000
Inappropriate USe Of TYPE APPIOVAI ......cc.uiiiiieiiiiiie ittt sttt sae e e bt e aeeebeesaneeeee e 2,500 5,000
236.1015 PTCSP content requirements and PTC System Certification:
Failure to implement PTC system in accordance with the associated PTCSP and resultant system
[T g 1)1z 1 (1o o S POURSPUPURRROOt 9,500 17,000
Failure to maintain PTC system in accordance with the associated PTCSP and resultant system cer-
(1 o%= 11T o I OSSO PPP 9,500 17,000
Failure to maintain required supporting documentation .............cooceeiiiiiieiiiee e 2,500 5,000
236.1017 Independent third party Verification and Validation:
Failure to conduct independent third party Verification and Validation when ordered ...........cccccoceeienne 13,000 20,500
236.1019 Main line track exceptions:
Revenue operations conducted in non-compliance with the passenger terminal exception ................... 5,500 10,000
Revenue operations conducted in non-compliance with the limited operations exception 5,500 10,000
Failure to request modification of the PTCIP or PTCSP when required ...........ccccocveeieenen. 5,500 10,000
Revenue operations conducted in violation of (C)(2) .....ccoociiiiiiiiiiiiiiiee e 9,500 17,000
Revenue operations conducted in violation Of (C)(3) ...coueriiiiiiiiieiie e 9,500 17,000
236.1021 Discontinuances, material modifications, and amendments:
Failure to update PTCDP When reQUIrEd ...........coiuiiiiiiiiiiiieeiee ettt st 2,500 5,000
Failure to update PTCSP When reqUIrd ..........ccuoiiiiiiiiiiiie ettt st e e s 2,500 5,000
Failure to immediately adopt and comply with approved RFA ........coo i 2,500 5,000
Discontinuance or modification of a PTC system without approval when required ...........cccccceniieiinens 2,500 5,000
236.1023 Errors and malfunctions:
Railroad failure to provide proper notification of PTC system error or malfunction ............ccccceniiinns 2,500 5,000
Failure 1o Maintain PTCOPVL ......ooiiiiiieeieeese ettt s ennesneen 2,500 5,000
Supplier failure to provide proper notification of previously identified PTC system error or malfunction 2,500 5,000
Failure to provide timely NOtIfICAtION ..........cociiiiii e e 2,500 5,000
Failure to provide appropriate protective measures in the event of PTC system failure .............c......... 5,500 10,000
236.1027 Exclusions:
Integration of primary train control system with locomotive electronic system without approval ............ 9,500 17,000
236.1029 PTC system use and en route failures:
Failure to determine cause of PTC system component failure without undue delay ............cccccoceeeeens 5,500 10,000
Failure to adjust, repair, or replace faulty PTC system component without undue delay ....................... 5,500 10,000
Failure to take appropriate action pending adjustment, repair, or replacement of faulty PTC system
[oZe]aq] o o] 1T o | ST PPPRPOPRRPN 5,500 10,000
Non-compliant train operation within PTC-equipped territory with inoperative PTC onboard apparatus 9,500 17,000
Interference with the normal functioning of safety-critical PTC SyStem ..........cccccoeiieiiiniiiiiiinee e 9,500 17,000
Improper arrangement of the PTC system onboard apparatus ...........cccccceeiiiiiiiiiiiniiniienec e 5,500 10,000
236.1033 Communications and security requirements:
Failure to provide cryptographic message integrity and authentication ..............cccccoiiiiiiiiiniiiienes 2,500 5,000
Improper use of revoked CryptographiC KEY ........cc.eiiiiiiiiiiieiie ittt eee e 2,500 5,000
Failure to protect cryptographic keys from unauthorized disclosure, modification, or substitution ... 2,500 5,000
Failure to establish prioritized service restoration and mitigation plan for communication services 2,500 5,000
236.1035 Field testing requirements:
Field testing without authorization or @apProval ... 5,500 10,000
236.1037 Records retention:
Failure to maintain records and databases as required ............cccccviriiiriiiieeiee e 2,500 5,000
Failure 10 report INCONSISIENCY ....coiueiiiiiiie ettt et e e bt e e st e e e s nte e e snneeeenneas 5,500 10,000
Failure to take prompt COUNTEIMEASUIES ........ccoiiiiiiiiie et 5,500 10,000
Failure to provide fiNal FEPOI ... ... ittt e et e e enbe e e st e e e st e e e anneas 2,500 5,000
236.1039 Operations and Maintenance Manual:
Failure to implement and maintain Operations and Maintenance Manual as required .............cc.cceeeueen. 2,500 5,000
236.1043 Task analysis and basic requirements:
Failure to develop and maintain an acceptable training Program .........ccccceeceerieiieenieieseesee e 5,500 10,000
Failure to train persons as required 2,500 5,000
Failure to conduct evaluation of training program as required ............c.cccceiiiiiiiniiiiiin i 2,500 5,000
Failure to maintain records as reqUIrEA ..........coooieiiiiie et 2,500 5,000
236.1045 Training specific to office control personnel:
Failure to conduct training unique to office control PErsoNNEl ............ccceeiiiiiiiiiiiiien e 2,500 5,000
236.1047 Training specific to locomotive engineers and other operations personnel:
Failure to conduct training unique to locomotive engineers and other operating personnel .................. 2,500 5,000
236.1049 Training specific to roadway workers:
Failure to conduct training unique to roadWay WOIKEIS .........cceeiiiiiiiiiiiee e 2,500 5,000

1A penalty may be assessed against an individual only for a willful violation. The Administrator reserves the right to assess a penalty of up to

$100,000 for any violation where circumstances warrant. See 49 CFR part 209, appendix A.

2The penalty schedule uses section numbers from 49 CFR part 236. If more than one item is listed as a type of violation of a given section,
each item is also designated by a “penalty code,” which is used to facilitate assessment of civil penalties, and which may or may not correspond
to any subsection designation(s). For convenience, penalty citations will cite the CFR section and the penalty code, if any. FRA reserves the
right, should litigation become necessary, to substitute in its complaint the CFR citation in place of the combined CFR and penalty code citation,

should they differ.
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PART 238—[AMENDED] Authority: 49 U.S.C. 20103, 20107, 20133, 49. Appendix A to part 238 is revised
20141, 20302-20303, 20306, 20701-20702,  to read as follows:

48. The authority citation for part 238 2130121302, 21304; 28 U.S.C. 2461, note; 49
continues to read as follows: CFR 1.49.

APPENDIX A TO PART 238—SCHEDULE OF CIVIL PENALTIES !

Section? Violation Willful violation
Subpart A—General
238.15 Movement of power brake defects:
(b) Improper movement from Class | or 1A brake teSt .........coceiiiiiiiiiiee e $13,000 $20,500
(c) Improper movement of en route defect 9,500 17,000
(2), (3) Insufficient tag or record .........cccoeveerneenen. 2,500 5,000
(4) Failure to determine percent operative brakes ...........ccooieiiiiiiiiiienii e 9,500 17,000
(d) Failure to follow operating reStriCtONS ..........coiiiiiiiriiiiii e 13,000 20,500
(e) Failure to follow restrictions for inoperative front or rear unit ...........cccoociiiiiiieniiii e 9,500 17,000
238.17 Movement of other than power brake defects: 1
(€)(4), (5) Insufficient tag OF FECOI .........uiiiiiiiieiee ettt b e sare e 2,500 5,000
(d) Failure to inspect or improper use of roller bearings 9,500 17,000
(e) Improper movement of defective safety appliances 9,500 17,000
238.19 Reporting and tracking defective equipment:
(a) Failure to have reporting or tracking SYSIEM .......c.coviiiiiiiiiii e 19,500 25,000
(D) Failure t0 retain FECOMAS .......ueiiuiiiiie ettt sttt e bt e sae e et e e s ae e et e e sneeanbeesaneenseeans 5,500 10,000
(c) Failure to make records available .............cooiiiiiie e 2,500 5,000
(d) Failure to list power brake repair POINS .........ccoiiiiiiiiiiiiie e e 5,500 10,000
Subpart B—Safety Planning and General Requirements
238.103 Fire protection plan/fire safety:
(a) Failure to use proper MAtErials ..........ccoociiiiiiiiiii e 13,000 20,500
(D) IMProper CEMICAtION .........iiiiiiie ettt e b e ettt e e s ae e e b e e s e e e beesaneeeeeans 5,500 10,000
(c) Failure to consider fire safety on new equipment 13,000 20,500
(d) Failure to perform fire safety analysis ..........c.cc........ 13,000 20,500
(e) Failure to develop, adopt or comply With procedures .............cocciriiiiiiiiiiiii e 13,000 20,500
238.105 Train electronic hardware and software safety:
(a), (b), (c) Failure to develop and maintain hardware and software safety ..........ccccooiiiiiiiiiiiiiies 13,000 20,500
(d) Failure to include required design features 13,000 20,500
(e) Failure to comply with hardware and software safety program 9,500 17,000
238.107 Inspection, testing, and maintenance plan:
(o) BRE= VLT (o T [=3V7=Y (o oI o] - T oSSR 13,000 20,500
(b)(1)—(5) Failure of plan to address specific item .. 9,500 17,000
(d) Failure to coONUCE aNNUAI FEVIEW ........oiiiiiiiiiiiieiie ettt ettt et e e be e saee et aes 9,500 17,000
238.109 Training, qualification, and designation program:
(a) Failure to develop Or adOPt PrOGIAM ........ccirieriirierieriere sttt ee e e e nre e e sresneens 13,000 20,500
(b)(1)—(4) Failure of plan to address Specific item .........cccccvieiiriiiinecceieeee 9,500 17,000
(b)(5)—(12) Failure to comply with specific required provisions of the program .. 9,500 17,000
(b)(13) Failure to maintain adequate reCOrAS ..........occiiiiiiiiiiieiii e e 5,500 10,000
238.111 Pre-revenue service acceptance testing plan:
(a) Failure to properly test previously used eqQUIPMENT .........cccoiiiiiiiiiiieiie e 13,000 20,500
(b)(1) Failure to develop plan .......cccccoevrveeniieneenncenen. 13,000 20,500
(b)(2) Failure to submit plan to FRA 9,500 17,000
(b)(8) Failure to comply with plan ................. 9,500 17,000
(b)(4) Failure to document results of testing .........cccoocevrieeiiieieniieene 5,500 10,000
(b)(5) Failure to correct safety deficiencies or impose operating limits 9,500 17,000
(b)(6) Failure to maintain records ..........c.ccoceeiieeiinniniiiene e 5,500 10,000
(b)(7) Failure to obtain FRA approval .. 9,500 17,000
238.113 Emergency window exits ........ 9,500 17,000
238.114 Rescue access windows ... 9,500 17,000
238.115 Emergency lighting .......cccccoeviriieeenen. 9,500 17,000
238.117 Protection against personal iNJUIY ...........coceoiiiiiiiie ettt 9,500 17,000
238.119 Rim-stamped straight-plate Wheels ...........cooiiiiiiiiiiii e 9,500 17,000
238.121 Emergency communication 9,500 17,000
238.123 EMEIGENCY FOOf ACCESS ...oiuuiiiiiiiuiiiiee ittt ettt ettt ettt ettt et e st b et e e san e et e e sae e e neenaneenes 9,500 17,000
Subpart C—Specific Requirements for Tier | Passenger Equipment
238.203  Static €N SIrENGIN ......eiiiiie e bbb nes 9,500 17,000
238.205 Anti-climbing mechanism .........cccccocceviiiiiiiieenines 9,500 17,000
238.207 Link between coupling mechanism and car body 9,500 17,000
238.209 Forward end structure of locomotives .................. 9,500 17,000
238.211  COllISION POSES ...eeiiieiitieiiii ettt ettt et e et e et e et e e bt e e abeesaeeeabeessbeenbeaambeeabeesmteeaseeanbeesaneennes 9,500 17,000
P 1 T2 B B 7o ¢ o 1= gl o o 1] £SO 9,500 17,000
238.215 Rollover strength .. 9,500 17,000
238.217 Side structure ........c.cccoeevvenen. 9,500 17,000
238.219 Truck-to-car-body attaChmENt ..........cooiiiiiiiii et s e e s 9,500 17,000
P2 S T2 B 1 =4 o o PSSRSO 9,500 17,000
238.223 Fuel tanks ............. 9,500 17,000
238.225 Electrical system 9,500 17,000
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Section? Violation Willful violation
238.227  SUSPENSION SYSEEIM ....eiiiiiiiiiiiiiitie ettt et e e et e eeae e et e e sae e e beesaeeeseeambeaseeanseesaeeenseaaseeanbeeeneeannes 9,500 17,000
238.229 Safety appliances—general:
(e) Failure to properly identify equipment (DEr CAr) .......coociiiiiiiiiii e e 9,500 17,000
(g) Failure to adopt or comply with iNSPection Plan ...........c.cooiiiiiiiiiiiie e 9,500 17,000
(h) Failure to use qualified person (Per Car) .........cccoveveerceerneenieeenen. 9,500 17,000
(i) Failure to properly conduct initial or periodic inspection (per car) . 9,500 17,000
(j) Failure to take proper remedial action (PEI CAI) ......cceiiiiiiiiiieiiie et 9,500 17,000
(k) Failure to maintain reCOrdS (PEIF CAI) .....cccoiiiiiiiiiieiie ettt b e ae e e sae e saneeneeeaas 5,500 10,000
238.230 Safety appliances—new equipment:
(b)(2) Failure to identify welded appliance (per car) 9,500 17,000
(b)(83) Failure to receive approval for use (per car) ... 9,500 17,000
(c)(2) Failure to make proper rePair (PEF CAI) .....c.ccereeriereerierierteaeeste e e st ste e sresnesreseesre e esnesseens 9,500 17,000
238.231 Brake System (a)—(g), (i)—(n) 9,500 17,000
(h)(1), (2) Hand or parking brake missing or iINOPErative ...........ccccoviriiieiiiiiiniic e 13,000 20,500
(h)(3) Hand or parking brake inspection or record (PEr Car) ........ccccorcieiieeiiinie et 5,500 10,000
(h)(4) Hand or parking brake not applied to hold equipment unattended on grade or prematurely re-
=T YT PP P ST PRT PR 13,000 20,500
238.233 Interior fittings and surfaces . 9,500 17,000
238.235 DOOIS .cooeeeveiiiieeeeeeeeeeeeen 9,500 17,000
238.237 Automated monitoring . 9,500 17,000
Subpart D—Inspection, Testing, and Maintenance Requirements for Tier | Passenger Equipment
238.303 Exterior mechanical inspection of passenger equipment:
(a)(1) Failure to perform mechanical INSPECHION .......c.eeeiiiiie i e e s 19,500 17,000
(a)(2) Failure to inspect secondary brake system ......... 9,500 17,000
(b) Failure to perform inspection on car added to train . 19,500 17,000
(c) Failure to utilize properly qualified personnel .............. 9,500 17,000
(e)(1) Products of combustion not released outside cab . 9,500 17,000
(e)(2) Battery not vented or gassing excessively ................. 9,500 17,000
(e)(3) Coupler not in proper condition ..........cccceeveveeerineenns 9,500 17,000
(e)(4) No device under drawbar pins or connection pins .................... 9,500 17,000
(e)(5) Suspension system and spring rigging not in proper condition . 9,500 17,000
(e)(6) Truck not in proper condition ............cccecveeiiiriiiiiesie e, 9,500 17,000
(e)(7) Side bearing Not iN Proper CONAItION ........coouiiriiiiiiiiie ettt eee e 9,500 17,000
(e)(8) Wheel not in proper condition:
(i), (iv) Flat spot(s) and shelled spot(s):
(A) One spot 22" or more but less than 3”7 in length ..o 9,500 17,000
(B) One spot 3”7 0r MOre iN I8NGEN ....o.eiiiiiiii e 13,000 20,500
(C) Two adjoining spots each of which is 2” or more in length but less than 212" in length ... 9,500 17,000
(D) Two adjoining spots each of which are at least 2” in length, if either spot is 272" or more
10T =T o (o TR RSP UPR 13,000 20,500
(ii) Gouge or chip in flange:
(A) More than 112" but less than 1%4&” in length; and more than 2" but less than %" in
Lo 1O 9,500 17,000
(B) 1%%&” or more in length and %s” or more in width 13,000 20,500
(iii) Broken rim ........ 13,000 20,500
(V) SEAM IN TrBAM ...ttt b et 9,500 17,000
(vi) Flange thickness of:
(A) 78" or less but MOre than ..........coeiiiiii e 9,500 17,000
(B) '%416” or less ... 13,000 20,500
(Vi) Tread WOIN NOHOW ......couiiiiii e e s 9,500 17,000
(viii) Flange height of:
(A) 112" or greater but less than 15&” 9,500 17,000
(0= I o T g .o =SS 13,000 20,500
(ix) Rim thickness:
[ I === (g T U OSSPSR 9,500 17,000
(B) 1516” OF €SS ..ueiitieiiiieeiee ettt ettt ettt et et eaee et e e e ae e e beeeaee e bt e eabe e teeenbeeeneeenteeenneebeaanneas 13,000 20,500
(x) Crack or break in flange, tread, rim, plate, or hub:
(A) Crack of 1SS than 17 ...ttt 9,500 17,000
(B) Crack of 1” or more .. 13,000 20,500
(C) Break .....ccecvevevreeicnne 13,000 20,500
(xi) Loose wheel ..... 13,000 20,500
(xii) Welded wheel .........c.ccocvvveiirnennne 13,000 20,500
(e)(10) Improper grounding or insulation ...........ccccceeveveneenne. 13,000 20,500
(e)(11) Jumpers or cable connections not in proper condition 9,500 17,000
(e)(12) Door or cover plate not properly marked .... 9,500 17,000
(e)(13) Bulffer plate not properly placed .................. 9,500 17,000
(e)(14) Diaphragm not properly placed or aligned ..........ccccoeieeiiiiiiiiieirieneeee e 9,500 17,000
(e)(15) Secondary braking system not in operating mode or contains known defect ............c.ccccenenneene 9,500 17,000
(e)(16) Roller bearings:
(1) OVEINEALEA ...ttt ettt e bt e e et e e bt e e ab e e eaeeease e seeenbeeeaeeanseeenneenneaannaas 13,000 20,500
(i) Cap SCrew l00SE OF MISSING ..eeuveerutiiteeiteeitt ettt ettt ettt sb e e sab e be e e bt e saeeeteesaeeebeeaanen 9,500 17,000
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Section? Violation Willful violation
(iii) Cap screw lock broken Or MISSING ......cccceiiiieiiiieie e 5,500 10,000
(iv) Seal loose, damaged, or leaks lubricant ... 9,500 17,000
(€)(17) Air cOmMPresSOr INOPEIALIVE ........cicviiiiiiiiieie ettt st eees 9,500 17,000
(g) Record of inspection:
(1), (4) Failure to maintain record of INSPECHION .......ccccviiiiiiiiiiiicceee e 5,500 10,000
(2) Record contains insufficient informMation .............cccoerir e 2,500 5,000
238.305 Interior mechanical inspection of passenger cars:
(a) Failure to perform INSPECHON .......oo.iiiiiiie et 15,500 10,000
(b) Failure to utilize properly qualified personnel .... 5,500 10,000
(c)(1) Failure to protect against personal injury ............. 9,500 17,000
(c)(2) Floors not free of condition that creates hazard .. 9,500 17,000
(c)(3) Access to manual door release not in place .... 5,500 10,000
(c)(4) Emergency equipment not in place ...................... 5,500 10,000
(c)(5) Emergency brake valve not stenciled or marked . 5,500 10,000
(c)(6) Door or cover plates not properly marked ........... 5,500 10,000
(c)(7) Safety signage not in place or legible ..... 5,500 10,000
(c)(8) Trap door unsafe or improperly secured . 9,500 17,000
(c)(9) Vestibule steps not illuminated ............cccoe... 5,500 10,000
(c)(10) Door does not safely operate as intended ..... 9,500 17,000
(c)(11) Seat broken, loose, or not properly attached . 9,500 17,000
(e) Record of inspection:
(1), (4) Failure to maintain record of INSPECHON .......ccccuiiiiiiiiiie e 5,500 10,000
(2) Record contains insufficient iNfOrmMation .............cccooiiiiiiiii e 2,500 5,000
(f) Record of inspection:
(1), (4) Failure to maintain record of INSPECiON .........cccoiiiiiiiiiii e 5,500 10,000
(2) Record contains insufficient information ... 2,500 5,000
238.307 Periodic mechanical inspection of passenger cars and unpowered vehicles:
(a) Failure to perform periodic mechanical INSPECHION .........ccccuiiiuiiiiiiiiieieee s 19,500 17,000
(b) Failure to utilize properly qualified Personnel .............coceeiiiiiiiiiie e 9,500 17,000
(c)(1) Seat or seat attachment broken or loose ...... 9,500 17,000
(c)(2) Luggage rack broken or l00se .........cccceeveeennne 9,500 17,000
(c)(3) Bed, bunks, or restraints broken or loose .................. 9,500 17,000
(c)(4) Emergency window exit does not properly operate ... 9,500 17,000
(c)(5) Emergency lighting not operational ..............ccocceueeee 9,500 17,000
(c)(6) Switches not in proper condition ...... 9,500 17,000
(c)(7) Coupler not in proper condition ............ccceeeenee. 9,500 17,000
(c)(8) Truck not equipped with securing arrangement ... 9,500 17,000
(c)(9) Truck center casting cracked or broken ...............cc...... 13,000 20,500
(c)(10) General conditions endangering crew, passengers .... 9,500 17,000
(c)(13) Hand or parking brake test not performed .................. 9,500 17,000
(d)(1) Manual door release does not operate as iNteNded ...........ccocueeriiriieniieiee e 9,500 17,000
(d)(2) Hand or parking brake inspection not performed ...........ccocvriieriiiiiene e 9,500 17,000
(e)(1) Failure to maintain record of inspection ............... 5,500 10,000
(i)—(iv) Record contains insufficient information 2,500 5,000
(f)(1) Record of inspection:
(i) Failure to maintain record of INSPECION .......c...iiiiiiiiiie e 5,500 10,000
(i) Record contains insufficient iNfOrMation ...........ccocoiiiiininer e 2,500 5,000
238.309 Periodic brake equipment maintenance:
(b) Failure to perform on MU I0COMOLIVE .........coiiiiiiiiiiiiieie s 9,500 17,000
(c) Failure to perform on conventional l0cCOMOtIVe .........ccccveevieeerciee e, 9,500 17,000
(d) Failure to perform on passenger coaches or other unpowered vehicle ..... 9,500 17,000
(e) Failure to perform 0N CaD CAr ........cociie i e e e et e e s e e s aeeeeennneeennes 9,500 17,000
(f) Record of periodic maintenance:
(1), (2) Failure to maintain record or StENCIl ........cccceiiiiie e 5,500 10,000
238.311 Single car tests:
(a) Failure to test in accord with required ProCEAUIE .........cceiiiiieeiiieieiiee e e e s 9,500 17,000
(b) Failure to utilize properly qualified personnel ....... 9,500 17,000
(c), (e) Failure to perform single car test . 9,500 17,000
(f) Improper movement of car for testing ..........cccccceeieienen. 5,500 10,000
(g) Failure to test after repair or replacement of COMPONENT .........occuiiiiiiriiiiiiiie e 5,500 10,000
238.313 Class | brake test:
(a) Failure to perform on commuter or short-distance intercity passenger train . 119,500 25,000
(b) Failure to perform on long-distance intercity passenger train ..............c......... 119,500 25,000
(c) Failure to perform on cars added to passenger train ........... 113,000 20,500
(d) Failure to utilized properly qualified personnel ............cccoooiiiiiiiiniiiiece e 13,000 20,500
(f) Passenger train used from Class | brake test with less than 100% operative brakes .... 13,000 20,500
(g) Partial failure to perform inspection on a passenger train ............cccccoeveeeieeniiinieennen. 13,000 20,500
(8) Failure to adjust piston travel (per car) ..........cccceenee. 9,500 17,000
(h) Failure to maintain record ............coccoeviiiiinniceeen. 5,500 10,000
(j) Failure to perform additional Class | brake test .... 13,000 20,500
(1)(3) Failure to Maintain reCOId ..........coiiiiiiiiiii e e 5,500 10,000

238.315 Class IA brake test:
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APPENDIX A TO PART 238—SCHEDULE OF CIVIL PENALTIES T—Continued

Section 2 Violation Willful violation
(a) Failure to perform INSPECHON .......ccuiiiiiiieiie ettt st be e sae e e e e 113,000 20,500
(d) Failure to utilize properly qualified Personnel ..........c.oceeiiiiiiiiiie s 9,500 17,000
(e) Passenger train used from Class IA brake test with improper percentage of operative brakes ....... 13,000 20,500
(f) Partial failure to perform inspection 0N PasSENGEr train ..........cccceereerieeriierie e 9,500 17,000
238.317 Class Il brake test:
(a) Failure to perform iNSPECHON .........ciciiiiiiti ittt 19,500 17,000
(b) Failure to utilize properly qualified personnel ............ccocceeveeineene 9,500 17,000
(c) Improper use of defective equipment from Class Il brake test 9,500 17,000
238.319 Running brake test:
(@), (b) Failure 10 perform teSt ..........oo i e 5,500 10,000
238.321 Out-of-service credit 5,500 10,000
Subpart E—Specific Requirements for Tier Il Passenger Equipment
238.403 Crash energy management 9,500 17,000
238.405 Longitudinal static compressive strength . 9,500 17,000
238.407 Anti-climbing MECHANISM .. ..ottt 9,500 17,000
238.409 Forward end structures of power car cabs:
(a) Center collision post 9,500 17,000
(b) Side collision posts 9,500 17,000
(c) Corner posts ............. 9,500 17,000
o) RS TP P PP URTPR PPN 9,500 17,000
238.411 Rear end structures of power car cabs:
(B) COMNEI POSES ...ttt ettt b et a et ettt e ettt e a e bt e ae e b e b e e st b e eas et e et e et e et e neeeanenneennenneennen 9,500 17,000
(b) Collision posts ........cccevvvvrcveenen. 9,500 17,000
238.413 End structures of trailer cars 9,500 17,000
238.415 ROIOVET STTENGEN ...ttt et ettt et nen e 9,500 17,000
P2 SRR S 1 o TN o= o [ PO RRORSRN 9,500 17,000
238.419 Truck-to-car-body and truck component attachment ... 9,500 17,000
238.421 Glazing:
(b) End-facing eXterior QIAzZiNg .........ccc.eoieieiierie ettt et n e e e e 9,500 17,000
(c) Alternate glazing requirements ... 9,500 17,000
(d) Glazing securement ................. 9,500 17,000
(©) SEENCHIING ..ttt e et e e e R e E et E et E e r e an e nn e nenne e neeneen 5,500 10,000
238.423 Fuel tanks:
(a) External fuel tanks 9,500 17,000
(b) Internal fuel tanks 9,500 17,000
238.425 Electrical system:
(E Y IO (eT ) o] (o] (=TT ] IO PSP PSP UPRTUPRRPRTPPPO 9,500 17,000
(D) MaiN DAtEry SYSIEM ...ttt ettt nar e re e 9,500 17,000
(C) Power disSIPatiON FESISTOIS .....cc.eiiiiiiiieiieiee ettt ettt b e b e s nee e 9,500 17,000
(d) Electromagnetic interference and compatibility ..........coccooieeiiiiiiiiiii e 9,500 17,000
238.427 Suspension system 9,500 17,000
238.429 Safety Appliances:
(E2 ) IO 10T o] [T SO URTURRPRPPT 13,000 20,500
(b) Hand/parking brakes ................ 13,000 20,500
(d) Handrail or handhold missing ........cccccceeeevenereenne. 9,500 17,000
(d)(1)—(8) Handrail or handhold improper design 9,500 17,000
(e) Sill step MISSING ....covvvreerieeieieieeieiene 13,000 20,500
(e)(1)—(11) Sill step improper design .. 9,500 17,000
(g) Optional safety appliances .........c.......... 9,500 17,000
238.431 Brake system ............. 9,500 17,000
238.433 Draft System .. 9,500 17,000
238.435 Interior fithnNgS @nd SUMACES .......cceiiiiiiiiiie ettt 9,500 17,000
238.437 [Reserved].
238.439 Doors:
(I = =T (o ] To [N [0 o] - RSP PRTUPRPRPPT 9,500 17,000
(b) Manual OVerride fEALUME .........eiciiiiiieeiee ettt seenn e neennesneens 9,500 17,000
(c) Notification to crew of door status 9,500 17,000
(d) Emergency back-up power ............cccoceeeen. 9,500 17,000
(f) End door kick-out panel or pop-0ut WINAOW .........c.ccciiiiiiiiiiiieiie ittt s 9,500 17,000
238.441 EMEIgENCY FOOf ACCESS ...couiiiiiiiiiiiiie ittt ettt ettt ettt sae e bt san e et esaneees 9,500 17,000
238.443 Headlights .........ccccooun.ee. 9,500 17,000
238.445 Automated monitoring 9,500 17,000
238.447 Train operator’s controls and power car €ab 1ayout ..........ccccooiiiiiiiiiiniiieee e 9,500 17,000
Subpart F—Inspection, Testing, and Maintenance Requirements for Tier Il Passenger Equipment
238.503 Inspection, testing, and maintenance requirements:
(a) Failure to develop inspection, testing, and maintenance program or obtain FRA approval .............. 19,500 25,000
(b) Failure to comply with provisions of the Program ..........ccccoeieiiiiieiie e 13,000 20,500
(c) Failure to ensure equipment free of conditions which endanger safety of crew, passengers, or
[=T0 0110 .0 =Y o | SO STRR 9,500 17,000
(d) Specific safety inspections:
(1)(i) Failure to perform Class | brake test or equivalent ...........ccccoeciieice e 19,500 25,000
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Section2 Violation Willful violation
(1)(ii) Partial failure to perform Class | brake test or equivalent ...........ccccoooiiiiiiiiiiiicieeee, 13,000 20,500
(2)(i) Failure to perform exterior mechanical inspection ............... 19,500 17,000
(2)(ii) Failure to perform interior mechanical inspection .. 15,500 10,000
(9) Failure to perform scheduled maintenance as required in program ..... 9,500 17,000
(h) Failure to comply with training, qualification and designation program ...........cccceceeiinieeneenieeneene 13,000 20,500
(i) Failure to develop or comply with standard procedures for performing inspection, tests, and main-
=] 0 = o= SN 9,500 17,000
(j) Failure to conduct annual review ...........cccccoeevererceennenne. 13,000 20,500
(k) Failure to establish or utilize quality CONrol Program .........cccccooiiiiiiiiiie e 13,000 20,500
Subpart G—Specific Safety Planning Requirements for Tier Il Passenger Equipment
238.603 Safety plan:
(a) Failure to develop safety operating plan . 13,000 20,500
(b) Failure to develop procurement plan ........... 13,000 20,500
(1)—(7) Failure to develop portion of plan .. 9,500 17,000
(c) Failure to maintain dOCUMENTAtION ........cccuiiiiiiie et e e e e e e e rnee e e snee e e snneeeennneas 5,500 10,000

1A penalty may be assessed against an individual only for a willful violation. Generally when two or more violations of these regulations are
discovered with respect to a single unit of passenger equipment that is placed or continued in service by a railroad, the appropriate penalties set
forth above are aggregated up to a maximum of $25,000 per day. However, failure to perform, with respect to a particular unit of passenger
equipment, any of the inspections and tests required under subparts D and F of this part will be treated as a violation separate and distinct from,
and in addition to, any substantive violative conditions found on that unit of passenger equipment. Moreover, the Administrator reserves the right
to assess a penalty of up to $100,000 for any violation where circumstances warrant. See 49 CFR part 209, appendix A. Failure to observe any
condition for movement of defective equipment set forth in §238.17 will deprive the railroad of the benefit of the movement-for-repair provision
and make the railroad and any responsible individuals liable for penalty under the particular regulatory section(s) concerning the substantive de-
fect(s) present on the unit of passenger equipment at the time of movement. Failure to observe any condition for the movement of passenger
equipment containing defective safety appliances, other than power brakes, set forth in §238.17(e) will deprive the railroad of the movement-for-
repair provision and make the railroad and any responsible individuals liable for penalty under the particular regulatory section(s) contained in
part 231 of this chapter or § 238.429 concerning the substantive defective condition. The penalties listed for failure to perform the exterior and in-
terior mechanical inspections and tests required under §238.303 and §238.305 may be assessed for each unit of passenger equipment con-
tained in a train that is not properly inspected. Whereas, the penalties listed for failure to perform the brake inspections and tests under
§238.313 through §238.319 may be assessed for each train that is not properly inspected.

2The penalty schedule uses section numbers from 49 CFR part 238. If more than one item is listed as a type of violation of a given section,
each item is also designated by a “penalty code,” which is used to facilitate assessment of civil penalties, and which may or may not correspond
to any subsection designation(s). For convenience, penalty citations will cite the CFR section and the penalty code, if any. FRA reserves the
right,lghﬁulddli#gation become necessary, to substitute in its complaint the CFR citation in place of the combined CFR and penalty code citation,
should they differ.

PART 239—[AMENDED] Authority: 49 U.S.C. 20102-20103, 20105— 51 Appendix A to Part 239 is advised
20114, 20133, 21301, 21304, and 21311, 28 to read as follows:
50. The authority citation for part 239  U.S.C. 2461, note; and 49 CFR 1.49(c), (g),
continues to read as follows: (m).

APPENDIX A TO PART 239—SCHEDULE OF CIVIL PENALITIES

Section 2 Violation Willful violation

Subpart B—Specific Requirements

239.101:
(a) Failure of a railroad to adopt® a written emergency preparedness plan ...........cccecvreeiereeienencnens $19,500 $25,000
(a)(1) Failure of the plan to provide for:
(i) Initial or on-board notifications by an on-board crewmember ............ccocieiiiniiinieiiie e 9,500 17,000
(i) Notification of outside emergency responders by control Center ..........cccoceeieeriiiieenieeneennen. 9,500 17,000
(a)(2) Failure of the plan to provide for:
(i) Initial or periodic training of on-board PersoNNEl ............cceiriiiiiiiiicee e 9,500 17,000
(i) Initial or periodic training of control center personnel 9,500 17,000
(iii) Completion of initial training of all on-board and control center personnel by the specified
(o= LT TP U PR P PR URPRURTRN 9,500 17,000
(iv) Completion of initial training of all newly hired on-board and control center personnel by the
L] o= =T I - 1 (= SRR 9,500 17,000
(v) Adequate procedures to evaluate and test on-board and control center personnel for quali-
fication under the emergency preparedness plan 9,500 17,000

(vi) Adequate on-board STAffiNG .......coceiiiiiii s 9,500 17,000
(a)(3) Failure of a host railroad involved in joint operations to coordinate applicable portions of the
emergency preparedness plan with the railroad or railroads providing or operating a passenger

LU= T IET=T VoY o o 1=T = o] o N PO UPRPRP 9,500 17,000
(a)(4) Failure of the plan to address:
(i) Readiness procedures for emergencies in tUNNEIS ..........cccocuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii e 9,500 17,000
(ii) Readiness procedures for emergencies on an elevated structure or in electrified territory ....... 9,500 17,000
(iii) Coordination efforts involving adjacent rail modes of transportation .............ccccooeieiienenninene 9,500 17,000
(a)(5) Failure of the plan to address relationships with on-line emergency responders by providing
for:

(i) The development and availability of training Programs ...........cccceiieeiiirieene e 9,500 17,000
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APPENDIX A TO PART 239—SCHEDULE OF CIVIL PENALITIES '—Continued

Section 2 Violation Willful violation
(ii) Invitations to emergency responders to participate in emergency simulations ...............c.cce.e.. 9,500 17,000
(iii) Distribution of applicable portions of the current emergency preparedness plan ..................... 9,500 17,000
(a)(6) Failure of the plan to provide for, or the railroad to include on board each train and maintain
and replace:
(i) EMErgENCY EQUIPIMENT .....eiiiiiiiieeiieet ettt ettt ettt e st e bt et e e beesabeebeeenbeesaeeanseesaeeenbeesnnean 9,500 17,000
(ii) First-aid kits 9,500 17,000
(ii)) EMErgenCy GITING ..o..eooueeiiiieiee et 9,500 17,000
(a)(7) Failure of the plan to provide for emergency instructions inside each passenger car or to in-
clude additional safety awareness iNfOrmation ..........ccccooiiiiiiiiiiiiie e 9,500 17,000
239.103 Failure to conduct a required full-scale simulation in accordance with the frequency schedule ... 9,500 17,000
239.105 Debriefing and critique:
(a) Failure to conduct a debriefing and critique session after an emergency or full-scale simulation ... 9,500 17,000
(d)(1) Failure to maintain a record 5,500 10,000
(i) Failure to include date or location of the emergency or simulation ................ 2,500 5,000
(i) Failure to include date or location of the debriefing and critique session ............ 2,500 5,000
(iii) Failure to include names of participants in the debriefing and critique session . 2,500 5,000
(d)(2) Failure to make record available ............c.cooiiiiiiiiiii e 2,500 5,000
239.107 Emergency exits:
(a)(1), (a)@):
(i) Door not marked or inStructions NOt POSTEA .......c..oiiuiiiiiiiiiii s 9,500 17,000
(ii) Door improperly marked or instructions improperly posted 9,500 17,000
(b)(1) Failure to provide for scheduled inspection, maintenance, and repair of emergency windows
F=La Lo o [oTo = S P S UPUPRRRIOt 9,500 17,000
(b)(2):
(i) Failure to test a representative sample of emergency WindOws ...........cccceevieeieenieceneeniieeneeeenn 9,500 17,000
(if) Emergency windows tested too infrequently .............coceeinee 5,500 10,000
(b)(3) Failure to repair an inoperative emergency window or door exit 9,500 17,000
(c):
(i) Failure to Maintain @ rECOIA ........ooiiiiiiiii ettt et san e b saee s 5,500 10,000
(i) Failure to make record available ..........c.cccccoviieiennne. 2,500 5,000
(d)(1) Insufficient limits or controls on accessibility to records 5,500 10,000
(d)(2) MisSING tEIMINAI .....c.eiiiiiieeiiceei et nre e 2,500 5,000
(d)(3) Inability of railroad to produce information in a usable format for immediate review .... 2,500 5,000
(d)(4) Failure by railroad to designate an authorized representative ..............ccccceeciiieenn. 2,500 5,000
(d)(5) Failure to make record available ............c.cooiiiiiiiiiii e 2,500 5,000
Subpart C—Review, Approval, and Retention of Emergency Preparedness Plans
239.201 Filing and approval:
(a):
(i) Failure of a railroad to file a written emergency preparedness plan .... 13,000 20,500
(i) Failure to designate a primary person to contact for plan review ........ 2,500 5,000
(iii) Failure of a railroad to file an amendment to itS plan .........cccooeiiiiiiiiiiiiee e 2,500 5,000
(b)(1), (b)(2):
(i) Failure of a railroad to correct a plan deficiency ............. 9,500 17,000
(ii) Failure to provide FRA with a corrected copy of the plan ..........cccceeiiiiiiiiinieeen 2,500 5,000
(b)@3):
(i) Failure of a railroad to correct an amendment defiCiEnCy .........cccocceiiiiiiiiiicniiee e 9,500 17,000
(ii) Failure to file a corrected plan amendment with FRA ........oooiiiiiiiieee e 2,500 5,000
239.203 Retention of emergency preparedness plan:
(1) Failure to retain a copy of the plan or an amendment to the plan ..........ccccoiiiiiiiinieneeen. 9,500 17,000
(2) Failure to make record available ............oooiiiiiii e e 2,500 5,000
Subpart D—Operational (Efficiency) Tests; Inspection of Records and Recordkeeping
239.301 Operational (efficiency) tests:
(a) Failure to periodically conduct operational (efficiency) tests of its on-board and control center em-
[S1102T7=T=T TP PO 9,500 17,000
(b)(1) Failure to maintain a record ... 5,500 10,000
(b)(2) Record improperly completed 2,500 5,000
(c)(1) Failure to retain a copy Of the reCOrd ..........coiiiiiiiiiiie e e 2,500 5,000
(c)(2) Failure to make record available .............ccooiiiiiiiieiceceee e 2,500 5,000
239.303 Electronic recordkeeping:
(a) Insufficient limits or controls on accessibility t0 rECOrAS .........ccceriieriiiiiriiree e 5,500 10,000
(D) MiISSING TEIMINAI ...ttt et e bt e sb e e et e e sae e eb e e saeeeneenaneetee e 2,500 5,000
(c) Inability of railroad to produce information in a usable format for immediate review . 2,500 5,000
(d) Failure by railroad to designate an authorized representative ..........ccccccecveniirieeninen. 2,500 5,000
(e) Failure to make record available ............cooiiiiiiiee e 2,500 5,000

1A penalty may be assessed against an individual only for a willful violation. The Administrator reserves the right to assess a penalty of up to
$100,000 for any violation where circumstances warrant. See 49 U.S.C. 21301, 21304, and 49 CFR part 209, appendix A.
2The penalty schedule uses section numbers from 49 CFR part 239. If more than one item is listed as a type of violation of a given section,
each item is also designated by a “penalty code,” which is used to facilitate assessment of civil penalties, and which may or may not correspond
to any subsection designation(s). For convenience, penalty citations will cite the CFR section and the penalty code, if any. FRA reserves the
right, should litigation become necessary, to substitute in its complaint the CFR citation in place of the combined CFR and penalty code citation,

should they differ.



Federal Register/Vol. 75, No. 182/ Tuesday, September 21, 2010/Proposed Rules 57653

3 This section also requires each railroad (subject to part 239) to comply with the adopted emergency preparedness plan. As the severity of a

violation for a railroad’s failure to comply with an emergency preparedness plan varies depending upon the provision with which the railroad
failed to comply, please see the guideline penalty for the particular section of the regulation requiring that provision.

Authority: 49 U.S.C. 20103, 20107, 20135,
21301, 21304, 21311; 28 U.S.C. 2461, note;
and 49 CFR 1.49.

PART 240—[AMENDED]

52. The authority citation for part 240
continues to read as follows:

APPENDIX A TO PART 240—SCHEDULE OF CIVIL PENALTIES !

53. Appendix A to part 240 is revised
to read as follows:

. o Willful
Section 2 Violation violation
Subpart B—Component Elements of the Certification Process
240.101 Program failures:
(@) Failure to NAVE PrOGram . ......oiiiiiieeeieit ettt ettt b ettt et ettt eaeesee e e nneeseennesneen $19,500 $25,000
(b) Program that fails to address @ SUDJECT ..........cooiiiiiiiii e 9,500 17,000
240.103 Failure to:
(2) FOHOW APPENAIX B ...ttt sttt b ettt n et e eae e nre e e nre e e nneeneen 2,500 5,000
(d) Resubmit, when directed by FRA ..ot 2,500 5,000
240.104 Allowing uncertified person to operate nontraditional locomotives ................... 13,000 20,500
240.105 Failure to have or execute adequate procedure for selection of supervisors ...... 9,500 17,000
240.107 Classes of service:
(a) Failure to designate ClassSes Of SEIVICE .......coiiiiiiiiiiiiiee e 9,500 17,000
240.109 Limitations on considering prior conduct records:
(a) Failure to have procedure for determining eligibility ... 9,500 17,000
(e) Considering excluded data ..........ccceeeeviiiieenncennen. 9,500 17,000
(f), (g) Failure to provide timely review OPPOITUNILY .........ccciiiiiiiiiiiiiiriesie e e 9,500 17,000
240.111  Furnishing motor vehicle records:
(a) Failure to action required to make information available .............cccceiiiiiiininin s 2,500 5,000
(b) Failure to request:.
() I o= U (=Y oT o (o [PPSR 2,500 5,000
(2) NDR FECOIA ...ttt ettt h ettt b e s ae e et e e sh e e e bt e ea b e e bt e sabeebeeea b e e naeeenbeesaneebeesanean 2,500 5,000
(f) Failure to request additional rECOIA ..........coiiiiiuiiiiieie et a e s eee e 2,500 5,000
(g) Failure to notify of absence of license ......... 2,500 5,000
(h) Failure to submit request in timely manner 2,500 5,000
(i) Failure to report within 48 hours or railroad taking certification action for not reporting earlier than
I LoV = PO 2,500 5,000
240.113 Furnishing prior employment information:
(a) Failure to take action required to make information available 2,500 5,000
(b) Failure to request record 2,500 5,000
240.115 Criteria for considering prior motor vehicle conduct:
(b) Considering eXCIUAEA AATA ........coiouiiiiieiie ettt 9,500 17,000
(c) Failure to:
(1) CONSIAET AALA ..eueereeiiete ettt r s r e s e r e ne e n e e nr s 19,500 25,000
(3)—(4) Properly act in response to data 5,500 10,000
240.117 Consideration of operational rules compliance records:
(a) Failure to have program and ProCEAUIES ..........ccciiriiiriiiiieiieeie ettt eeneesareeeee e 19,500 25,000
(b)—(j) Failure to have adequate program or procedure 9,500 17,000
240.119 Consideration of substance abuse/rules compliance records:
(a) Failure to have program and ProCEAUIES ..........cciceirieriererienteseese sttt sn e e e sre e e sresneens 19,500 25,000
(b)—(e) Failure to have adequate program or procedure ........... 9,500 17,000
240.121 Failure to have adequate procedure for determining acuity .... 9,500 17,000
(f) Failure of engineer t0 NOLIfY ........ciiiiiiiiiie ettt ne e 9,500 17,000
240.123 Failure to have:
(b) Adequate procedures for continUINg €AUCATION ..........cocuiiiieiiiiiii it 9,500 17,000
(c) Adequate procedures for training new engineers 9,500 17,000
240.125 Failure to have:
(a) Adequate procedures for testing KNOWIEAGE ........ccooiriiiiiiieiiiieeseees e 9,500 17,000
(d) Adequate procedures for documenting teSHING ......cccuviriiiiieiiie e 9,500 17,000
240.127 Failure to have:
(a) Adequate procedures for evaluating skill performance ...........ccoccoevieiiiiiiiiiiese e 9,500 17,000
(c) Adequate procedures for documenting sKills t€StiNG ........ccceiiiieiiiiriir e 9,500 17,000
240.129 Failure to have:
(a)—(b) Adequate procedures for monitoring PErforMAaNCE ..........cccceereieeriirieeieree e 9,500 17,000
Subpart C—Implementation of the Certification Process
240.201 Schedule for implementation:
(a) Failure to select supervisors by specified date ..o 2,500 5,000
(c) Failure to issue certificate to engineer .................. 2,500 5,000
(d) Allowing uncertified person to operate ................. 19,500 25,000
(e)—(g) Certifying without complying with subpart C .. 9,500 17,000
(h)—(i) Failure to issue certificate t0 ENGINEET .........cociiiiiiiii e 2,500 5,000
240.203
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APPENDIX A TO PART 240—SCHEDULE OF CIVIL PENALTIES '—Continued

Section? Violation vivovlllaIIiuoln
(a) Designating a person as a supervisor without determining that
(1) Person knows and understands this Part ...........cccooeiiiiiiiiiiieee e 9,500 17,000
(2) Person can test and evaluate engineers .......... 19,500 25,000
(3) Person has experience to prescribe remMedies ...........ccooereriiriieininene e 9,500 17,000
(b) Certifying a person without determining that:
(1) Person meets the eligibility Crteria ..........coceiriiiiiiii e 19,500 25,000
(2) Person meets the mediCal CHEEMa .........cooiiieiiiieeee e 9,500 17,000
(3) Person has demonstrated KNOWIEAGE .........cocueiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieieeee e e 9,500 17,000
(4) Person has demonstrated SKillS ...........c.coiiiuiiiiiiiiiiiie e 9,500 17,000
(c) Certifying a person without determining that:
(1) Person has completed training Program .........cooc.eoieeiieereeeiee ettt 9,500 17,000
(2) Person meets the eligibility criteria ... 9,500 17,000
(3) TIME @S €lAaPSEA .....c.eiiiiiiiitiii ettt st r e r e nb e 9,500 17,000
240.205 Procedures for determining eligibility based on prior safety conduct:
(a) Selecting person lacking eligibility ..........coocuiiiiiiiiiii e e 19,500 25,000
(d) Failure to have basis for taking @CON ..........cciiriiiririeieee e e 9,500 17,000
240.207 Ineligibility based on medical condition:
(a) Selecting person [acking PrOPEr ACUITY .........cooiiiiiiriiiriieiieeie ettt reesare e e 13,000 20,500
(b) Failure to have basis for finding of proper acuity .............. 2,500 5,000
(c) Acuity examinations performed by unauthorized person .. 2,500 5,000
(d) Failure to note need for device to achieve acuity .... 2,500 5,000
(e) Failure to use device needed fOr ProOPEr @CUITY .........coeeriirieriiieeiesee st 2,500 5,000
240.209 Demonstrating knowledge:
(b) Failure to properly determing KNOWIEAGE .........coocviiiiiiiiiiiieiiic ettt 13,000 20,500
(C) IMProper tESt PrOCEAUIE ......ccuiiiiitieiiiite ettt ettt ettt san e et sanennesseennesseens 9,500 17,000
(d) Failure to doOCUMENt tEST FESUILS .....couiiiiieiie it 2,500 5,000
(e) Allowing person to operate despite test failure ..........ccccoiiiiiiiiiiii e 9,500 17,000
240.211 Demonstrating skills:
(b) Failure to properly determing KNOWIEAGE .........coouiiiiiiiiiiiieiie et 9,500 17,000
(c) Improper test procedure ........... 5,500 10,000
(d) Failure to document test results .........ccccceeveenee. 2,500 5,000
(e) Allowing person to operate despite test failure ..........ocoiiiiiiiiiiie e 9,500 17,000
240.213 Completion of approved training program:
(a) Failure to properly deterMINe ..........cciiiiiiiirieei ettt 9,500 17,000
(b) Failure to document successful program COMPIELION .........ccccuiiiiiriiieiieiiee e 5,500 10,000
240.215 Supporting information:
(@), ()—(h) Failure 10 haVe @ rECOIT ........cciiiiitiiieetiee ettt nre e 2,500 5,000
(b) Failure to have complete record . 2,500 5,000
(i) FalSification Of FECOI ........coiiiiiiiii et sttt sre e e neesneesneess | beesseesiseesnenreeneneens 25,000
240.217 Time limits for making determinations:
(a), (c) Exceeding tiMe lIMIt ........coiiiiie ettt b e ae e e b san e 5,500 10,000
240.219 Denial of certification:
(a) Failure to notify or provide opportunity for COMMENt ..........cciiieiiiiiiirieee e 5,500 10,000
(c) Failure to notify, provide data, or untimely NOtIfication ............ccocoiiiiiiiiii e 5,500 10,000
240.221 Identification of persons:
(2)—(C) Failure 10 have @ FECOIT .......cciiiiiiiii ettt ettt sre e e nne e 5,500 10,000
(d) Failure to update a record .........cc......... 5,500 10,000
(e)—(f) Failure to make a record available 2,500 5,000
240.223 Certificate criteria:
(2) IMPrOPEr CEMICALE ......eiiiiiiiietie ettt sttt she et e e s ae e e b e e s aeeebeesateebee e 2,500 5,000
(b) Failure to designate those with signatory authority .. 2,500 5,000
(d) Falsification Of CEMfICAE .........cciiiiiiiiiie e srens | tresneene s e 25,000
240.225 Railroad relying on determination of another:
(a) Failure to address in program or failure to require newly hired engineer to take entire training pro-
[o 2210 1 TP P P OPPRPOTRPPIN 19,500 25,000
(2) Reliance on wrong class of Service .........c.ccceceveeeneenieeennnn. 5,500 10,000
(3) Failure to familiarize person with new operational territory .... 5,500 10,000
(4) Failure to determine knowledge .........cccccovvieviiniiinenniiceneen. 5,500 10,000
(5) Failure to determine performance SKillS ...........cccuoiiiiiiiiiiiiieee e 5,500 10,000
240.227 Railroad relying on requirements of a different country:
(a) Joint operator reliance:
(1) On person NOt @MPIOYEA ......cocueeiiiiiieti ettt sttt n e e s ereeeane s 2,500 5,000
(2) On person who fails to meet Canadian requUIremMeNts ...........ccceeieeriiriierie e 2,500 5,000
(b) Canadian railroad reliance:
(1) ON Person NOt EMPIOYEA ......ccuiiiiiiiiieiee ettt sttt et sa e e s e e sae e b e sane s 2,500 5,000
(2) On person who fails to meet Canadian requUIreMENtS ...........cocceeiieiriinieenie e 2,500 5,000
240.229 Requirements for joint operations territory:
(a) Allowing uncertified PErSON t0 OPEIALE ......c..iiiuiiiiiiiii ettt ae e sane e 5,500 10,000
(b) Certifying without making determinations or relying on another railroad ............c.ccocovnviiinieinnennens 13,000 20,500
(c) Failure of
(1) Controlling railroad certifying without determining certification status, knowledge, skills, or fa-
miliarity with physical CharaCteriStiCS ..........ceiiiiiiiiiiiii e 19,500 25,000
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(2) Employing railroad to determine person’s certified and qualified status for controlling railroad 19,500 25,000
(3) Person to notify employing railroad of lack of qualifications ...........ccccccoeieniiniiiniiiicneeeen 19,500 25,000
(d) Failure to provide qUAlIfied PEISON .......ccciiiiiiiiiiieie ettt b e e e sbe e st eeeaas 5,500 10,000
240.231 Persons qualified on physical characteristics in other than joint operations:
(a) Person unqualified, no exception applies or railroad does not adequately address in program ....... 19,500 25,000
(b) Failure to have a pilot:
(1) For engineer who has never been qualified ... 19,500 25,000
(2) For engineer previously QUAlIfied ...........cooiiiiiiiiiiie s 9,500 17,000
Subpart D—Administration of the Certification Programs
240.301 Failure to have system for certificate replacement ...........cociiiiiiiiiiii e 5,500 10,000
240.303 Monitoring operations:
(2) Failure t0 have Program ........cooceoioiiiiie ettt ettt s e e bt e ar e e b e e narenne e 19,500 25,000
(b) Failure to observe each person annually 2,500 5,000
(c) Failure to test each person annually ....... 2,500 5,000
(d) FaIlure t0 tESt PrOPEIIY ...ttt sttt e bt sae e et e e s ae e et e e saeeebeesaneentee e 2,500 5,000
240.305 Prohibited conduct:
(a) Unlawful:
(1) Passing Of STOP SIGNAI ......coiiiiiiiiie ettt 19,500 25,000
(2) CONLrOl Of SPEEA .....eiiiieiie ettt ettt be et e e bt e st e e beeenbeesae e et e e saneebeeanneas 19,500 25,000
[ =1 =L I (oI TSR 19,500 25,000
(4) Occupancy of main track .........cccocceereerieeeneeniieeseee. 19,500 25,000
(5) Tampering or operation with disabled safety device 19,500 25,000
(6) Supervisor, pilot, or instructor fails to take appropriate action ............ccocceeieiiinniiiinneeeeen 19,500 25,000
(b) Failure of engineer to:
(1) CarTY CEIIfICALE ..o utiiieeiiiie ettt b e e s bt et e e e b e e sae e et e e saneebeesnneas 2,500 5,000
(2) Display certificate When requeSTEA ..........cceiiiiiiiiiiiii e s 2,500 5,000
(c) Failure of engineer to notify railroad of limitations or railroad requiring engineer to exceed limita-
(1] PR SRT 19,500 25,000
(d) Failure of engineer to notify railroad of denial or revocation ...........ccccoeieiiiiiiieniiiecee e 19,500 25,000
240.307 Revocation of certification:
(a) Failure to withdraw person from SEIVICE .........coiciiiiiiiiiieiieeie et saee e aee 13,000 20,500
(b) Failure to notify, provide hearing opportunity, or untimely procedures ............cccocvriienirienecnieennenns 5,500 10,000
(c)—(h) Failure of railroad to comply with hearing or waiver procedures .... 5,500 10,000
(j) Failure of railroad to Mmake reCord .........ccooiiiiiiiiiiiiecee e 5,500 10,000
(k) Failure of railroad to conduct reasonable inquiry or make good faith determination ......................... 13,000 20,500
240.309 Oversight Responsibility Report:
(a) Failure to report or t0 report ON tME .....c.ooiiiiie e be e saee e e 2,500 5,000
(b)—(h) Incomplete Or INACCUIAte FEPOIT ......c.eiiiiiiiiiiee ettt sae e nr e 5,500 10,000

1A penalty may be assessed against an individual only for a willful violation. The Administrator reserves the right to assess a penalty of up to

$100,000 for any violation where circumstances warrant. See 49 CFR part 209, appendix A.

2The penalty schedule uses section numbers from 49 CFR part 240. If more than one item is listed as a type of violation of a given section,

each item is also designated by a “penalty code,” which is used to facilitate assessment of civil penalties, and which may or may not correspond
to any subsection designation(s). For convenience, penalty citations will cite the CFR section and the penalty code, if any. FRA reserves the
right, should litigation become necessary, to substitute in its complaint the CFR citation in place of the combined CFR and penalty code citation,

should they differ.

Authority: 49 U.S.C. 20103, 20107, 21301,

21304, 21311; 28 U.S.C. 2461, note; 49 CFR
54. The authority citation for part 241 1 49,

continues to read as follows:

PART 241—[AMENDED]

APPENDIX B TO PART 241—SCHEDULE OF CIVIL PENALTIES !

55. Appendix B to part 241 is revised
to read as follows:

: I Willful
Section 2 Violation violation
241.9:
(a) Requiring or permitting extraterritorial dispatching of a railroad operation ...........cccccceveiiniirieinnens $9,500 $17,000
(c) Failing to notify FRA about extraterritorial dispatching of a railroad operation in an emergency sit-
L0 F= 1o ST 5,500 10,000
241.11 Conducting a railroad operation that is extraterritorially dispatched:
(B)(1) GENEIAIIY ...ttt ettt b ettt h et ettt et eeh ettt e ae bt e an e e ne e nareeteeaa 9,500 17,000
(c) In an emergency situation—where dispatching railroad fails to notify FRA of the extraterritorial
[0 1] o= (7 o 11T [PPSR PRSI 2,500 5,000
241.13 Requiring or permitting track to be used for the conduct of a railroad operation that is
extraterritorially dispatched:
(B)(1) GENEIAIIY ...ttt ettt h e ettt e e ab e e bt e e ab e e s he e sab e et e e e nbeesaeeeabeeehbeebeeeneeebeenaneeteean 9,500 17,000
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Willful

L, —
Section Violation violation

(c) In an emergency situation—where dispatching railroad fails to notify FRA of the extraterritorial
o 157 o= (e o 11 Vo [N PO OUPROURRN 2,500 5,000

1A penalty may be assessed against an individual only for a willful violation. The Administrator reserves the right to assess a penalty of up to
$100,000 for any violation where circumstances warrant. See 49 U.S.C. 21301, 21304 and 49 CFR part 209, appendix A.

2The penalty schedule uses section numbers from 49 CFR part 241. If more than one item is listed as a type of violation of a given section,
each item is also designated by a “penalty code,” which is used to facilitate assessment of civil penalties, and which may or may not correspond
to any subsection designation(s). For convenience, penalty citations will cite the CFR section and the penalty code, if any. FRA reserves the
right, should Iiggation become necessary, to substitute in its complaint the CFR citation in place of the combined CFR and penalty code citation,
should they differ.

Issued in Washington, DG, on August 23,
2010.

Karen J. Rae,

Deputy Administrator.

[FR Doc. 2010-22141 Filed 9-20-10; 8:45 am]
BILLING CODE 4910-06-P
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